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Chairman’s statement
“Good progress in a tough environment”

Despite difficult market conditions our results for 2016 were in-line with expectations and

the Group continued to deliver against our ambitious strategic objectives. The combination

of necessary management actions to address the current market difficulties and the continued
progress in the execution of our strategy underpin our plans to enhance customer relationships,
grow our market shares and further improve working capital. The Group’s balance sheet is
strong and our operations are inherently cash generative which provides the headroom to
invest in organic development and appropriate acquisition opportunities as they arise.

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman

Continuing to execute our strategy

During 2016, the consiclerable work being undertaken to improve our businesses
gained traction as we continued 1o improve both our operations and our customer
offering. The strategic initiatives behind that work remain our priority, despite the
market headwinds our industry currently faces. There is no quéstion that IMI is
becoming a stronger, more efficient and more cormpetitive company capable of
delivering long-term sustainabie growth.

As our businesses continue to improve, the resulting benefits are becoming
increasingly evident to our customers — improved on-time-delivery, faster response
times and reduced scrap rates are the fundamental pre-requisites that will confirm
IMI as a world-class supplier. We have also improved significantly our product
offering in 20186, having launched many new products and re-yitalised our go-to-
market and sales sirategies in several parts of the Group. All of these initiatives are
significantly enhancing our customers’ senice experience and our competitiveness.
More details about these positive developments are set out in the Chief Executive's
review on pages 4 1o 43.

Our people

The improvements being made in all parts of the Group are due to our pegple who,
despite the on-going difficult economic and market conditions, are relentlessly driving
our many strategic and operational growth initiatives. | have seen this first hand during
the site visits we undertook during the year. In October, the Board mel in Germany
where we had an opportunity to visit Hydronic Engineering’s plant in Erwitte and
Precision Engineering's Buschjost operations. In both locations the progress has been
impressive and the hard work and enthusiasm of employees were clearly evident.

Dividend

Reflecting continued confidence in the Group's prospects, the Board is recommending
a final dividend increase of 1% to 24.7p (2015: 24.5p) making.a total dividend for the
year of 38.7p, an increase of 1% over last year's 38.4p.

Looking ahead

This is an exciting time to be part of IMI. Our various strategic growth initiatives are
laying the foundations for long-term sharsholder value creation. Today our underlying
business is stronger and our ability to compete and win in the marketplace is being
significantly enhanced. We will be very well placed to deliver accelerated growth

and sustainable and profitable progress as market conditions improve.

Board detulls Corporste Governance
Tum to paga 46 Tun 1o page 49
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Group overview

IMI plc is a specialised engineering company that designs, manufactures and services highly
engineered products that control the precise movement of fluids.

IMI S

Critical Engineering Operating proit

IMI Critical Engineering is a world- £8 1 : 8m
leading provider of critical flow control
solutions that enable vital energy and  Number of employses
process industries 1o operate safely,

cleanly, reliably and more efficiently. 3 ’ 700

1M1 Gritical Enginesring operational review
To' 10 s 22

IMI e

Precision Engineering Operating proft

IM{ Precision Engineering specialises £118.5m
in developing motion and fluid control
technologies for applications where Number of emoh

precision, speed and reliability
are essential. 5 ’ 300

1M1 Precision Enginesring operational review
Turm o page 24

IMI Soon

Hydronic Engineering Operaling profit

IMI Hydronic Engineering is the leading £5 1 gm
global supplier of products for hydronic

distribution systems which deliver Number of empioyees
optimal and energy efficient heating

and cooling systems to the residential 1 ,900

and commercial building sectors.

e M1 Hydronic Enginearing oporational review
Tum to page 25
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IMP's globat footprint

htip/Avwadmipic. comyabout-imbour-ohvisions/Ami-at-g-glance asp

Group revene by geography

Group revenus by division

Key brands

IMI Bopp & Rauther, MICCI,

IMI Fluid Kinetics, IM! interAtiva,
IMI NH, M1 Orton, IMI Remosa,
IMI SSF, IMI ST, IMI TH Jansen,
IMI Trufio Marine, IMI Trufio Rona,
IMI Trufio Raly, I 23.), IMI Zikasch
Major operational locations
Republic, Germary, India, fialy,
Japan, South Koraa, Swedan,
Switzerland, UK and USA

Power Oil& Gas Petrochemical Actuation
We are the world Wa supply anti-surge Wo design and We focus on the dasign
leading supplier of valve and actuator systems  manuiacture infegrated and production of complete
snginaansd to onder to the world’s lamest LENG fiow control systems actuation systems to operate
turbine bypass vaives compression faciliies. Cur ~ for critica) applications industrial valves for the most
for critical apphications in systems are capable of utra-  in Fuid Catalytic Cracking.  dermanding applications and
conventional and nuclear {ast response to maximise Wi also supply bespolea processes in terms of forces,
power plants - helping 1o LNG production while vaives into the ethylene, speed and accuracy.
provide the safest, most protecting the critical polypropylene and 2016 Revenue: £27m
refiable and efficiert process equipmant, delayed coking

power genaration. 2016 Revenue: £167m production processes

2016 Revenua: £260m

Kay brarcis
M Norgren, IMI Buschjost,
MI FAS, IMI Herion, IMI Maxseal

Major operational locations
Brazi, China, Czech Republic,
Gemnany, Maxico, Switzedand,
UK and USA

tndustrial Automation Commarcial Vehicle Oll& Gas Life Sclences
We supply high We dasign and We offer a comprehensive We supply precision
performance products manufacture a range rangs of products which flow control solutions
including valves, valve of cab chassis and deliver precision controt used in medical devices,
islands, proportional in sokstions ineven the harshast diagnostic equipmant
and pressure monitoing which deliver fual environments, including and biotech and anglytical
controls and ar preparation  efficiency, emissions slainfess steel valves and instrumants. Wa halp to
products, aswel as a reduction and faster reguiators, nuciear class raduce the size of customers’
comprehensive range assambly times for valves arxi emergency products, while enhancing
of pheumatic actuators. the world's leading shutdown contrals. accuracy, throughput and
2016 Revenus. £396m ocommenial vehicle 2016 Revenus: £83m fiuid control performance
menutachrers. 2016 Revenue: £57m

2016 Reverue: £161m

Key brands
IMI TA, IMI Flow Design,
IMI Heimeiar, IMi Pneumatex

Major operational locations
Germany, Poland, Siovenia,
Sweden, Switzedand and USA

2]

o

Ralancing & Contro) Thermostatic Contro) Pressurisation Water Quality
Our hydronic balancing ‘We design and Reliable pressurisation is The single mostimportant
and control solutions manuiaciure thermostatic a basic requirement for a cornponent in any hydronic
enable buildings to keep control systerms which trouble-free aperation of system Is the water itself.
cormfort at tha right level guarantea direct or heating, cooling and When compromised, the
while increasing HVAC automatic controd of solar systems. Our effects can significantly impact
efficiency by up to 30%. raciators and underfioor robust range of pressura the efficiency of the system.
Our expertise oovers heating systemns to maintenance systems with  Our dirt and air separators
constant and variable fow  precisely control individual compressorsorpumpsand  and pressure step degassers
and both static and roorn termnperatures. axpansion vessals maintains  protect the installation
dynarmic balancing. 2016 Revenue; £102m the right pressure in the by keaping water free of
2016 Revenue: £145m system at all times. microbubbles and sludge.

20116 Revanye; £31m

2016 Reverua: £12m

MOLOY
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Chief Executive’s review
“Building competitive advantage”

2016 was another year of important progress for IMI. As well as continuing to improve
both our operational performance and our customer offering, we have acted decisively
to ensure our cost-base continues to support our growth ambitions while also protecting
near-term performance. '

Improvement despite headwinds

2016 was a year of significant progress for the Group with results in-line with market
expectations despite continuing headwinds in a number of our key markets. Our various
initiatives have further improved operational performance, and on-going investrent in
great new products and customer solutions has enhanced our market competitiveness.

Trading conditions in many of our geographies and markets remained difficult
throughout 2016. The cautious industrial investment environment continued to impact
new order opportunities as customers tightened spending in the face of economic and
political uncertainty.

The Off & Gas market, which represents aimost a third of Critical Engineering’s
revenues, continued to be impacted by falling investment, including a significant
reduction in liquid natural gas (LNG) projects. The Power generation sector was
impacted by lower operational spending reflecting delays, particularly in North America,
where power providers have extended the time between planned outages.

While European and Asia Pacific truck markets remained resiient, the US heavy truck
market declined significantly which impacted revenues in Precision Engineering.
Industrial Automation markets globally were broadly flat with some signs of recovery
in Europe and North America in the finai quarter of the year,

In Hydronic Enginesering, European construction markets remained subdued with
warmer weather impacting the heating season. In addition, North America and China
experienced some project delays.

In response 10 the protracted deterioration in several of our most important markets,
the Group has undertaken a number of restructuring activities that will continue into
2017. These actions include the sale or closure of eight lower growth, higher cost
Critical Engineering sites and the reduction of operating costs across the entire Group.

In Precision Engineering, in-line with our strategy to simplify the business and ensure
that wa have the most efficient platform for future growth, the division undertook an
extensive review of its operational footprint. The review —~ named Project Janus - is now
being spiit into two phasas. The implementation of Phase 1 has already begun and
involves those projects that can be executed quickly and with the least disruption to
our business, This includes a structured programmee of cost reductions, insourcing to

018

Mark Seiway
Chief Executive

Strategic timeline
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Reported profit before tax

E208 . Om Down 5%

Segmental operating margin

1 88% Down 160bps

increase machining capacity utilisation, simplification of the
organisational structure and further leverage of our low cost
European manufacturing operations. A second phase is
contingent on market conditions and anticipates potentially.
substantial and more complex changes, particularly in areas
such as Commercial Viehicle, where significant new project
quotation activity exists. All of these actions will help to protect
operating margins and improve our competitive position in
what remains an uncertain market environment.

in Hydronic Engineering, the subdued environment in key
European markets, combined with greater efficiencies resutting
from the IT and oparational improvements, have provided the
basis to reduce operating costs, which wilt be evident in the
division’s activities in 2017.

Results overview

Reported Group revenues were 6% higher at £1,649m (2015:
£1,557m). Excluding favourable exchange rate movements and
disposals, Group revenues on an organic basis were 5% lower
due to continuing difficult end markets. Reported segmental
operating profit was 5% lower at £228m (2015: £235m).
Exdluding the impact of favourable exchange rate movements
and disposals, segmental operating profit was 17% lower

on an organic basis reflecting lower volumes and continued
investments, partiadly offset by the benefits of restructuring.
The Group's operating margin was 13.8% (2015: 15.4%) and
reported eamnings per share were 4% lower at 59.8p (2015:
62.2p). Operating cash flow of £246m (2015: £232m) reflected
the banefits of the Group's lean initigtives which underpinned
working capital improvements in the year.

Net Debt of £283m (2015: £237m) was impacted by adverse
currency of £97m and resutted in a Net Debt to EBITDA ratio
of 1.0x against 0.9x at the end of 2015.

M1 Critical Engineering has world-class cryogenic
tasting faciliies, for &fl classes of valves. Hene butterfly

valves ara baing lowemed into the kouid nivegen in Switzerland

The iMI Exacutive team discover Hydronic Engineering's
new Zaeparo G-Force tumable dirt separators at the plant

Good strategic progress

It is particularty rewarding to report a further year of successful
execution of our strategy. Key achleverments, including

a significant and positive cultural shift with a passion for
continuous improvement, improved operational performance
and success in our endeavours to add high quality products
across a)l three divisions, have all contributed to our resuits

in 2016, We move forward with confidence that we will achieve
world-class performance by 2019, as envisaged in our onginal
2014 plan. Qur cbjective 1o double operating profit by that point
also remains our goal, although achieving that will clearly rely
upon a more favourable market environment, and will aimost
certainly be rsached beyond the original 2019 timescale.

Improving our operational performance

Improving operational performanca is fundamental to our
obiective of creating competitive advartage and remains

a key part of our strategic growth pian. During the year the
efficiency of our operations improved significantly.

Ouwr operational improvemnents are assessed twice yearly

using an industry recognised lean benchmarking methodology.
Duwring 2016, the Group's average lean score has continued to
improve, and ended the year at 66% against 59% at the same
point in 2015. As a result of more efficient operations, scrap
rates continued to improve, on-time-delivery and inventory
management both made good progress and the benefits were
evident in the Group's working capital in the year. This improved
productivity and operational perfonmiance provides an important
foundation to underpin our increased competitiveness and
responsiveness to customers.

Mark Salway with Ciiver Wehidng, Managing Dimctor of
IMI Buschiost, on a visit to Precision Enginesring's site
in Germany
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Readying our businesses for growfh

In the past two years, we have invested heavily in new systems
and processes which are essential to the Group's sustainable
competitive advantage. During 2016 new integrated IT systems,
that make day-to-day operations more cost and time efficient,
were successiully installed on-time and on-budget in Critical
Engineering’s plants in Sweden, Japan, India and Korea, two

of Precision Engineering’s US operations, Hydronic Engineering’s

Polish plant and at its headquarters in Switzerland. in 2017,
Critical Engineering will roll out an additional six sites in the

US and Asia, Precision Engineering will complete their remaining
sites in the US, and Hydronic Engineering will largely complete
the vast majority of their factories and sales offices.

In addition to ruch needed IT investment, our focus also
axtends 10 embedding disciplined and efficient processes,
including New Product Development, competitor product
tear-downs and the application of Value Engineering.
These processes underpin the sustainability of continuous
improvement and ensure that investment ultimately delivers
an sarier and greater return. Much has been achieved 1o
simpiify the way our businesses operate.

New product portfolios

Our focus on New Product Development gained significant
momentum during the year and as a result we have expanded
our portfolio of great new products which enhance the
competitiveness of the Group. The Group's advanced product
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quality planning process (APQP) and competitor product
tear-downs have resulted in the development of an industry-
leading range of platform products in Precision Enginesring
which reprasent the first significant investment for more than
10 years. During the vear Hydronic Engineering maintained
its development pipeline and launched 13 new products
while Critical Engineering introduced a significant number

of enhanced products. All three divisions have ambitious
plans to continue their product development sirategies

in 2017 and beyond.

Compelling customer solutions

During the year, Critical Engineering developed an aggressive
Value Engineering programme to enhance its competitiveness.
Despite challenging market conditions, Value Engineering
helped to deliver new orders totalling £80m at historic margin
levels while providing, on average, a 15% cost reduction for
customers. in addition, Value Engineering has opened up

a number of new product markets where we ame now able

to offer our worid-class vaive technologies, providing an
additional basis for profitable growth.

Revised go-to-market strategies

In our Precision Enginesering division, following the work
undertaken in 2015 to identify the markets that offer the
preatest growth potential, the division's US and European
operations have been reorganised around key industry verticals
of Industrial Automation, Commercial Vehicle, Life Sciences
and Energy. This new structure delivers sector marketing
strategies that address distinct customer requirements,
target specific market opportunities and build stronger
custorner relationships. In November, Precision Engineering
launched an innovative IMI Norgren Express App which
enables customers, using their smartphones, to identify,
locate and purchase replacement parts quickly and easily.

Business development

Alongside our arganic: growth initiatives, targeted acquisitions
that mest our clearly defined and disciplined criteria remain

a core part of our strategy. While market conditions have
reduced the pipeline of opportunities, we continue to refine
our targets, enhance our integration processes and make
our underlying businesses stronger, all of which will faciitate
the success of any future developments.

Our people

As the Chairman highlights in his statament, the progress

that we continued to make in the year is due to our employees
around the world. | would ke to thank them for their hard
work and on-going drive and passion to deliver our strategic
ambitions. | am pleased to report the significant cultural
progress which has been achieved across the whole of Il
The business today has a passion for continuous improvernent
and the ambition to improve competitiveness and deliver
better customer outcomes is firmly embedded throughout

the organisation. | rernain convinced that these core ambitions
underpin the future success of IMI.

Outiook

Based on cument market conditions, we expect organic
revenues in the first half of 2017 to reflect a similar percentage
reduction to the first half of 2016, with margins slightly lower
than the first helf of last year. Results for the full year are
expectad to include a second half bias reflecting the timing

of restructuring benefits and normal trading seasonality.
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Our strategic model

Our business model is built around our core strategic priorities of capitalising on growth
opportunities, operational excellence, investment in product development and targeted
acquisitions. Continuous investment in these areas will deliver improved, more innovative
products and services to our customers and help us increase our competitive advantage.
By meeting our customers’ needs and investing in our leading market positions, we are
well placed to grow profitably to the benefit of all stakeholders including our shareholders.

Engineering GREAT
the IMI Way

How we
generate
oLUr revenue

Strategic
growth
priorities

Strategic
enablers
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Strategic growth enablers

To deliver our strategic growth objectives while capitalising on the geographic and operational
capabilities of the Group we have outlined the following key strategic enablers.

Working together as

one simplified IMI

To hamess the Group's fulf potential

wea remain determined to channel

and maximise our scale to act as one

IMi. Establishing core processes has
provided a strong platform that underpins
a framework for creating consistent
Group—wide standards and behaviours.

Originally daveloped by our Pracision
Engineering division, the structured
performance testing, tear-down and
detailed analysis of competitor products
is a key part of our new product
development process. This tear-down
procedurs, which ensures that our new
products will out run the competition,
has now been adopted within the
divisions' development processes.

It is one of several disciplines that have
been embraced by all three of the
divisions as they share best practice.

Maintaining
financial
discipline

As wa execute our strategy to deliver
accelerated growth, we will continue to
maintain financial discipline. Capital will
be allocated to drive organic growth,
maintain a progressive dividend policy in
lne with eamings and fund acquisitions.
Whilst retaining flexibility to develop IMI's
full potential, we wil continue to focus on
maintaining an efficient balance sheet
and, in the event of us having cash in
axcess of the Group's current needs,

we will return this excess capital to
shareholders. Through the life of our five
year plan we will work o maintain net
debt to EBITDA of no more than two
times through the cycle.

Net debt to adjusted EBITDA
201560.9x 2016 1.0x

Investing in Group-wide
IT and infrastructure

The programme to equip our businesses
with effective IT is well underway with the
first sites either launched or on track to
do so across all three of the Group’s
aperating divisions. This commitment,
alongside selective investment to
upgrade or replace our manufacturing
facilities, and our on-going initiatives,

is a pre-requisite to achieving our
strategic goals. IT implementations

are being phased on a site by site basis
to minimise risk and deliver an optimal
solution. Overall capital spending is
progressively increasing to closer to

two timss depreciation where it will
remain for the first few years of the plan.
During 2016 all three divisions have
progressed their ERP programmes.

In Critical Engineering, implementation
has taken place in Japan, Sweden, india
and Korea. In Precision Engineering, it
has been installed in two facilities in the

US and Hydronic Engineering have rolted

it out at their facifity in Poland and their
HQ in Switzeriand.
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Strateqgic growth priorities

Capitalising on significant organic

growth opportunities
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IMI Critical Englneering Field Service Engineers ensure
our custornars' plants nin optimatly around the world

Focusing on markets that
offer the greatest growth

The Asian market offers significant growth potential and we have
been expanding our presence in the region. In China, our enlarged
footprint has enabled us to localise the manufacture of a number
of our products for the Chinese market at our manufacturing
plant in the Qingpu Industrial Zone. This development brings us
closer to both our existing customers and a range of potential
new customers, and it also enhances our cost competitiveness.

Cass studies on-line
www imipic_com/mediaimi-in-action

World-ciass faciities support our customers in high
potentia) markets

In South Korea, home of some of the
world’s largest engineering design houses,
IMI CCI's manufacturing facility at Paju,

a clty to the North West of Seou!, achieved
several significant milestones duning the
year. Opened in 2015, the Group's lean
operational processes are now embedded
in &ll parts of the facikity and it is now
recognised as the most efficient plant

in the Critical Engineering division.

The enginecring teamn at IMI CCI Florance ensure the
highest safety integrity levels on our High Integrity
Pressure Protection Systems

New product development processes
have been accelerated and, during the
year, an enhanced range of conventional
valves, which significantly expand our
power sector product offering, were
developed and launched. In March
2016, following extensive reviews of

its enginesring and quality assurance
systemns, its products and facilities,

the business was additionally awarded
approved supplier status for semi-severa
control valves by Korea Hydn and
Nuclear Power Co. Lid, the largest power
generation company in South Korea
which provides approximately 30%

of the country’s electricity supply.
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The praduct development tesm in Fellbach, Germany

Driving growth with a new
go-to-market strategy

in 2015 we undertook an extensive review of all the

Electronic testing of new products

businesses within our Precision Engineering division to
identify the markets and products that offered the greatest
potential to deliver the best returns. Building on the findings
of this review, during the year we changed our go-to-market
strategy and put in place a new regional, vertically focused,

organisational structure.

Case studies on-tine
weww mipic.comymediatmi-in-action

Given the diversity of products and
brands in the division, and the
differences in the markets and regions
where wa operate, by structuring our
operations by region in accordance with
the key verticals we serve — industrial
Automation, Commercial Vehicle, Life
Sciences and Energy — we are now able
to provide a bespoke offering tailored to
our customers’ specific requirements. in
particular, we can now execute country
and vertical marketing strategies that
address distinct customer requirements,
and target specific market opportunities
focused on building stronger customer
relationships. By organising our
businesses in this clear way, both
visibility and accountability across our
operations have been greatly improved.
With a single regional leadership team,
we are all able to drive our lean and
other operational improvement initiatives
more consistently and effectively.

This new organisation structure was
adopted across our US businesses
during the first half of 2016 and in the
second hatf of the year, following the
merger of our Wastern Europe and
Continental European operations, it

was implemented in our new single
European business.

Broadening our

market presence
and customer reach

Our Hydronic Engineering
division is a market leader

in products for water-based
heating and cooling systems
and room temperature
controls. in 2015 we
capitalised on this leadership
position and strengthened
our over-the-counter sales
channel by securing a
strategic partnership with
one of the largest European
wholesalers of building parts
and materials.

Case studies on-line
wwwimipic comymesiaimi-In-action

Packaging designed ta grab atlention hits wholasaler
sheives across Europe

This key devalopment extends and
underpins our intermational market
presance and enablas us to penetrate
the European market faster, particularly
in the small residential and renovation
segment. During 2016 much progress
has been made to further enhance this
route to market. In particular, a number
of new agreements have been entered
into with major wholesalers such that we
now have a growing distributor network
with broad international reach. To capture
the market opportunity that this provides,
we have redefined our sales team’s roles
and rasponsibilities to ensure that we
have dedicated resource focused on

our distributor customers.
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Strategic growth priorities
Improving operational
performance

The 10 areas of lean

All sites are benchmarked against these areas of lean every six months

Status as of December 2016:

i

8. Total Froductive
Maintenance

== [MI Critical Enginearing
woun M Precision Engineering
o00o M| Hydronic Enginearing
[ word-class > 85%

The operational performance ¢f every site
in the Group is benchmarked every six
months against the ten areas of lean and
significant progress has already been
achieved. A world-class operational
performance score is 85% or higher.

At the time of the first benchmark in
2014, none of our facilities came Close
to achigving this, with the average score
being 31%. At the most recent review,
the average score reached 66%, and
our Hydronic Engineering division now
has two faciliies with a world-class score.
Al of our businesses continue fo
implement detailed plans to achieve
world-class performance by 2018.

bast practioa within IM| and provides visibitty of whers
to focus improvemants and where to go for assistance
to improve performance going forward.
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First assessment 2014 Year-end 2015 Year-end 2016 Year-end 2017 Year-snd
(averape 24%) assessment scone  assessment scom asgassment soore  lamget
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Site key:
1 IMICCl Koma 14 MI SSF
2 IMICCIRSM 15 M) Z8.) Germany
3 IMICCiBrno 18 M Bopp &
Reuther
4 IMICCi SriCity
17 M Trufio Rona
5 1MICC! Japan Belgiun
& IMISTI 18 W1 Truflo ftaly
7 IMI Critical
Engineering

Houston
8 IMI Fluid Kinetics
S Ml InterAtiva
10 iIM! Trufto Marine

11 IMi Critical
Engineering China

12 IM| Remosa
13 IM) Orton

Modern, lean and sfficient plards resull in compeiitive. nighly engineered products

Driving efficiency to offset
market conditions |

As highlighted in the Chief
Executive’s Review on page 6, in
many of our markets we are facing
challenging trading conditions.

To ensure that we continue to be
competitive and remain on the path

to sustainable growth in our Critical
Engineering division, we have undertaken
a number of cost management initiatives
and accelerated some of the improvement
projects which were scheduled for
implementation in the later phases

of our fiva-year strategic plan. As part

of the consolidation of our European
manufacturing footprint we have created
an engineering centre of excellence

within IMI| Z&J's manufacturing plant

in Ddren, Germany. Using the new and
improved R&D facilities within the centre,
IMI Z&J has accelerated its new product
pipeiine and developed a number

of lighter, more efficient and cost
effective products.

Confinuous improvement is embedded
in our culture and we continue to work
towards achieving world-class
operational performance in all our
businesses. During the year, across the
whole of our Critical Engineering division,
approximately 12,000 improverent
actions have been undertaken.

IMI CCl designs actuation and control systems 10 deliver
the highest salety levels in the word

As a result, our lean score assessments
have improved year-on-year and we

are continuing to reduce our operating
costs, with an overarching objective of
enhancing our market competitiveness.
During 2016, our operational infrastructure
was further strengthened. New [T systems
were installed in more of our factories,
including our plants in Sweden, Japan,
India and Korea, and the Cbeya project
management system which significantly
enhances our project management
capahilities, is now operating in Critical
Engineering’s major plants around

the world.

w
=
=

eoustLeACD) 810104100



18 Ml plc
[ | O 0 O e
Firstassessment 2014 Year-end 2015 Year-end 2016 Year-end 2017 Yesr-end She key:
{average 33%) asmm;oom gssessmeni score  assessmentscore  target 1 IMINomgren Seattis 15 IM) Lesds
47 59%
{average 47%} (average 59%) (average 66%) (average 70%) 2 IMIFASS ;18 IMI Norgren
;"’" 3 1Ml Norgren Bmo Genmany Alpen
R 4 MIEDC Worchouse 7 MY Norgren Fradiey
e Alpen 18 IMI Brigto!
® X 19 IMIN
20 o0, ® ® 5 1MIPoole Lm;ﬂmnn
7o 1 H ®0 ] IMINomM
| |- AR~ ® Germany Fellbach 20 IMI Norgren
= HHH H-E 005 ®— 7 MiNogenDetor oo
M e 21 IM Norgren
a g = = 8 WMiNorgren
= s - v Brookwille
i | | - n 8 IMiNorgren 22 M1 Norgren Brazi!
Auztralla 23 1M Herlon
= ] = = Systemtachn
* 10 IMI Norgren China t
% 1 2 . = 11 M1 Buschiost 24 1M IMF
12 M1 Nargren india 253:;1?'9""""
% 13 IMI Norgren
Singapore
% 14 IMI Norgren
Warshouse
Louigville

Site

T2 3 4 6

8 7T 5 0

1 12 13 14 15 18 17 1

19 X N 2 D M5

Establishing

a strong

foundation
for future
accelerated

growth

Testing of produats in indie

Historically our Precision Engineering
division had a complex and
fragmented structure which has
impeded its growth. Over the last

two years a great deal of work has

been undertaken to resolve some of

the fundamental issues and today the
division's structure is simpler and, as

a resuit, the way it pperates is more
efficient and effective. During 2016 our
Fix8 programme, an initiative specifically
focused on reducing complexity and
improving market competitiveness,
delivered matarial benefits including a
significantly streamiined product offering.
Work continues to further rationalise the
product portfolio with a view to offering
customers better solutions dslivered

by fewer products.

In-line with our strategy to simpiify the
business and ensure thal we have the
most efficient platform for future growth,

the divigion undertook an extensive review
of its operational footprint. The review -
named Project Janus - is now being split
into two phases. The implementation of
Phase 1 has already bagun and involves
those projects that can be executed
quickdy and with the least disruption to
our business. This includes a structured
programme of cost reductions, insourcing
1o increase machining capacity utiisation,
simplification of the organisational
structure and further leverage of our low
cost European manufacturing operations.
A second phase is contingent on market
conditions and anticipates potentially
substantial and more complex changes,
particularly in areas such as Commercial
Vehicle, where significant new project
quotation activity exists. All of these
actions will help to protect operating
margins and improve our competitive
position in what remains an uncertain
market environment.
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Accelerating operational
excellence, further
enhancing competitiveness
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Greater efficiencles ensun ncreased capacity 10 keep
‘ up with higher custorner demands
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Lean operating principles are now the year, a new integrated IT system

firmly embedded across the was installed, on time and to budget,

Hydronic Engineering division and at the Olkusz plant and across a large

the commercial benefits of these part of Hydronic Engineering’s Swiss

activities are becoming increasingly  based business. During the course

apparant. The division’s Olkusz plant of 2017, these new systems willbe . .\ oranis inlean have hetped Hydronic Enginesring
was the first of our Group operations introduced across the entira division get their products faster onlo the shehves of wholesalers
to achieve world-class lean status and to further embed common ways of

during the year our Slovenian faciiity was  working and accurate data collection,

awarded this status with a score of 88%.  all of which will make our businesses

Ta further enhance compstitiveness more efficient and competitiva.

wae continue to focus on delivering

operational improvernents and during
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Strategic growth priorities
Increasing investment in
new product development

_— '
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Continuing .
to innovate
to secure
leadership
position

To maintain our market leading
positions and reputation for
engineering expartise, our product
offering must respond to changing
market dynamics so that at all times
we provide customers with the best
competitive solution that meets
thelir current requirements. As the
leading supplier of valves to the kquefied
natural gas {'LNG') sector, we arg well
positioned to identify developing trends
and anticipate likely changes in customer
demand. In particular, impacted by the
oil price decline and following a period
of rapid growth when a number of
sizeable LNG plants using large vaives
were constructed, it was clear that
customer requirements would change
as they looked to build smaller and more
cost efficient plants. In response, our
product development teams creatad

& new flightweight valve which has

a computationafly optimised profile,
replacing the previous vaive's heavier
and more expensive body. This new
spherical profile optimises the design of
the valve, reduces its weight and improves
performance without compromising its
strength or durability.

Case studies on-line
wwwimipic_com/madiafimi-in-action

Assembly of metal on metal seated,
triple offset butterfly valves




Annuat Report and Accounts 2018

19

Using the new robust product
development processes now
embedded across the Group, our
product development activities made
great progress in the year. For the first
time in a decade, we are ready to launch
a new platform Précision Engineering
product offering which will underpin
growth in the years to come. Curently
tha new development pipeline includes
arange of products, that will be launched
in April 2017 at Hannover Messe, the
world leading industrial technology trade
fak. included in the new product offering
is an enhanced range of compressed air
a in production processes and help
prevent damage to machines and costly

Enhancing our

mesromearbmonsaece,.  CcOMpetitiveness by
[ and smaller, easi install and - -
mamanmasmarasanmonarew  OFfEring compelling
safety features. .
N solutions
To drive competitive advantage
and market leading positions we

Building a sustainable
competitive advantage

must offer customers cutting edge
products and technologies that solve
their engineering challenges in the
maost efficient and environmentally
sustainable way. Hydronic Engineering
was the first of our divisions to bring
new products to market with the launch
of 14 new products in 2014 and 15

new products in 2015. During the vear,
new product development momentum
has been maintained krgely through

the advanced product quality process
which involves the systematic tear-down
of competitor products. During 2016,
Hydronic Engineering further broadened
its customer offering with the launch of
another 15 new products. Thesa include
an innovative dirt separator, G-Force,

dirt from water-based heating systems,
eliminating the risk of damage or shut
downs. The G-Force incorporates highly
heating and cooling systams up to nine
times more efficiently than any other cirt
separator on the market. It is also the only
dirt separator on the rmarket with flexible
installation positions which are of great
benefit to customers if space is a challenge
during instaliation. These new product
launches will make an important
contribution to the division's growth.

Case studias an-line

uoponposy|
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Strategic growth priorities
Expanding our addressable markets
through targeted acquisitions

Our process and approach

The M3A function forms an integral part of our strategic planning process, working
closely with the divisions 1o support their strategies and evaluate potential acquisitions
and partners for the future. The processes involved have improved considerably and
are now much more effective at identifying opportunities with regards to geographic,
market, product and cultural suitability as well as commercial logic and financial impact.
Overall, these enhancements have driven a reduction in the number of opportunities
assaessed, whilst significantly increasing their quality. This much more focused approach
has also enabled us to spend more time developing impartant relationships with
companies, leaving us well positioned to efficiently execute a transaction, whenever

the time is right.

Our acquisition strategies for the divisions are:

Within Gritical Engineering, bolt-on acquisitions to extend both our
product range of semi-severe and configured products and our
geographic footprint in both our existing and adjacent markets remain
our focus. Opportunities with attractive aftermarkets are always
important, but particularly given recent market conditions.

We remain pleased with the acquisition of IMI Bopp & Reuther,
which has helped us address a number of our strategic objectives.
The business is now fully integrated into IMI Critical Engineering and
provided a vital foundation to consoidating Critical Englneering's
global Nuclear Power business into its Mannheim facility.

Precision Engineering continues to simplity its organisation,
implementing robust systems and lean improvements, while developing
alist of value enhancing potential acquisitions. At the same time, the
Precision Executive, supported by the IMi Business Development team,
are building senior level relationships in readiness for both lange and
small scale acquisitions.

Our product strategy is well underway in Hydronic Engineering, as we

Woe have devaloped a well-dsfined pipeline of opportunities, many of
which are family owned which would fit well with IMI's culture, whilst
enabiing us to leverage thair strong brands and management capabilities.

start to focus on high quality well run European acquisition opportunities.

, e
frio AN s

Is e

Broadening the
acquisition universe

* Potential to double
addressable market

* Leverage existing positions
in attractive end-markets

* Non-valve related products
and businesses

Geographies

+ North America
* Europe

* Latin America
* Asia

Market dynamics

» Aftermarket >30%

« Growth rate >5% pa
» Customer intimacy

Products

= Barriers to entry

« Criticality of application
= Predictable aftermarket
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Operational review

IMI Critical Engineering

IMI

Critical Engineering

IMI Critical Engineering is

a world-leading provider of
flow control solutions that
enable vital energy and process
industries to operate safely,
cleanly, reliably and

more efficiently.

Revenue

£e51m

Operating profit

Down 7%"

£81.8Mm  pown 24%*

‘organic

Key achievements

» Value Engineering initiative helped
to secure £80m of new onders

» introduced 23 new products

= Rationalisation programme defivered
on-time and on-budget with £12m
profit benefit

* On-time and on-budget ERP
implementation at four sites

= Increased average lean score t0 62%

» Successful consolidation of three sites
into new world-class facility in China

» Sale of loss-making hakan
service businass

BA! Critical Enginesring Webaite
www.imi-critical.com

Performance

Full year order intake at £614m (2015:
£619m) was 119% lower on an organic
basis, after adjusting for disposals and
exchange rate movements. in the second
haif, order intake was 7% below the same
period in 2015. In the year, as predicted,
naw construction Oil & Gas intake was
13% lower resulting from reduced LNG
orders, following the peak in new project
activity in 2015. Significant improvernents
were avident in both midstream, where

a large Kazakhstan order was booked in
the year, and in HIPPS, where a £15m
order was booked in the second half.
New construction Fossil Power orders
were 23% lower due to reduced activity
levels, particularly in the Middle East and
Asia. Significant orders were also awarced
in Petrochemical where fult year order
input was 2% higher, including a strong
performance in the first half of the year.

Aftermarket onders were 6% lower
when compared to 2015 with a return
10 2015 levels in the second half of the
year. In the full year, il & Gas was 11%
lower reflecting reduced parts activity in
the upstrearmn sector which offset good
growth in our downstream activities.
Lower levels of spend, particularly in North
America, resuited in a 13% reduction in
Fossil Power while Nuclear Aftermarket
increased 36%, reflacting a substantial
Korean order in the fourth quarter.

After adjusting for £77m of exchange rate
benefit and £6m from prior year disposals,
revenues of £651m (2015: £631m) were
7% lower on an organic basis and 3%
higher on a reported basis. Segmental
opevating profit of £82m (2015; £93m}
was 12% lower on a reported basis and
24% lower on an organic basis. Reflecting
the impact of lower volumes, margins
were 12.6% against 14.8% in 2015.

The division’s Value Engineering initiative
continued to have a significant positive
impact and contributed to £80m of new
bookings in an increasingly compatitive
market environment. Value Engineering
and improved project management
activities helped deliver a year-end order
book of £486m at broadly equivaient
margins to the prior year. Lean scores also
improved significantly to 62%

against 56% at the year-end in 2015,

QCutlook

Based on the current order book and
market outiook, we expect first half
omganic revenues 1o reflect a similar
percantage reduction to the first half
of 20186 with margins broadly similar
to the first half of last year. Results for
the full year are expected to include

a second half bias reflecting the timing
of restructuring benefits and normal
trachng seasonality.

“During a year when the market was challenging, IMI Critical
Engineering made further important improvements in its
competitiveness and manufacturing footprint. We also accelerated
our Value Engineering and new product programimes, significantly
increasing the value proposition for our customers while improving

our order intake.”

Roy Twite
Divisional Managing Director
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During 2016, we significantly
enhanced our Value Engineerimgy
skills and capability and won new
orders totalling £80m as a direct
result of our new amproved levels

of competitiveness,

Enhancing our
competitive advantage
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Operational review

IMI Precision Engineering

IMI

Precision Engineering

IMI Precision Engineering is

a world leader in motion and
Jfluid control technologies
wherever precision, speed

and reliability of process are
essential. We deliver integrated
solutions which improve the
productivity and efficiency of
our custorners’ equipment.

£708m
Operating profit

21 1 85m Down 10%*

organic

Down 3%*

Key Achievements

+ Successfully developed first new
platform products for taunchin 2017

* Improved operational performance
resulted in new Commercial Vehicle
opportunities

+ Launched innovative IMI Norgren
Express App

= 22% reduction in scrap costs

= Seven day improvement in
inventory tums

+ Janus Phase 1 now being implemented

IMI Precision Enginesring Webaite
wyewlni-pracision.com

Performance

After adusting for £72m of exchange rate
benefit and £1m from prior year disposals,
revenues of £708m (2015; £662m) were 3%
lower on an organic basis and 7% higher on
& reparted basis, industrial Automation
revenues were 1% lower principaly driven
by a small decline in Europe which offset
broadly equivalent revenues in the balance
of our core markets. The revenue profile in
the year included a 5% pick-up in the final
quarter providing early indications of

a potential, so far unconfimmed,
improvement in the sector.

In the year, Commercial Vehicle sales were
9% lower reflecting a 22% decline in North
America due to lower truck production in
that region. European Comrmercial Vehicle
revenues were broadly consistent with the
prior year whilst Asia improved. Energy
saies continued to be impacted by lower
investment and were 7% lower than 2015
while Life Sciances and Rail were broadly
equivalent to 2015.

Segmental operaling profit of £119m
{2015: £118m) was 1% higherona
reported basis and, after adjusting for
£13m of exchange rate benefit and
disposals, 10% lower on an organic basis.
Operating margins of 16.7% compared

to 17.8% in 2015 and reflected the impact
of lower overhead recoveries following
weaker market conditions and investment
to support long-term growth.

Our detailed review of the Industrial
Automation market and its various sub-
sectors confimed that we have excellent
market positions with a valuable installed
base and high margin aftermarket and
identified those sub-sectors and products
that would provide us with the greatest
opportunity for growth. In response,

the division has embarked on a significant
programme of new product development

with the first of our great new products
due to launch in the first half of 2017.
This review also formed the basis for &
structured programme of reorganisation,
including Janwus, to capitalise on the most
significant opportunities.

The successful implementation of lean
throughout the division has continued

to make excelient progress with the
scorg increasing to 66% apainst 59%

at the 2015 year-end. The impact of

lean was clearly evident in the results
with improved productivity, a 22%
reduction in scrap costs and a seven day
improvement in inventory days in the year.

Qutlook

The global industrial outiook remains
mixed albeit with some leading indicators
and improved fourth quarter sales
providing a more positive backdrop

for Industrial Autormation in the year
ahead. We remain cautious given the
considerable economic, political and
industry uncertainty that remains across
many markets and geographies, We
expect the European heavy truck and
North American Class 8 volumes to soften
in 2017 which, when combined with
the ¢conclusion of £13m of Commercial
Vehicle contracts, will resut in lower
revenyes in the year ahead.

Based on curvent market conditions,
we axpect first half organic revenues

to be slightly lower than the first haf of
2018, Excluding the £4m benefit from
2016 property disposals, marging will be
comparable to the first half of last year.
While markets remain uncertain, the
benefits of further restructuring activities
and new product launches are expected
10 deiiver broadly equivalent marging

for the full year.

“At IMI Precision Engineering we made further significant progress

on a number of strategic initiatives in the year, continuing to improve
operational performance through the application of lean, re-organising
the business to be even more customer-focused and preparing for some
important new product launches for 2017 and beyond.”

Massimo Grassi
Divisiona! Managing Director
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A significant proportion of
Precision Engineering’'s revenue
enerated by aftermarket

sales. To maintain our strong
existing market positions, and

ta mcrease the rate at which

we convert competitor's preducts
into our own, a number of new
initiatives were launched

to enhance the customer

service experience.

Driving the aftermarket
through innovative
sales channel

The new, unique IMI Norgren Express App
“OF enables maintenance engineers ko find and
buy replacement prneumatic products fost
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Operational review

IMI Hydronic Engineering

IMI

Hydronic Engineering

IMI Hydronic Engineering is
the leading global provider
and recognised expert in
hydronic distribution systems
and room temperature control,
with experience in more than
100,000 construction projects
world-wide.

£290m
Operating profit

£51 9m Down 10%*

‘organic

Down 1%*

Key achievements
= 19% of revenue from products launched
inthe last three years

* Two substantial over-the-counter sales
contracts signed

* Successful Product Development
mormentum building sustainable
competitive advantage

* Refurbishment of foundry in Germany
significantly reduces scrap

» |_ean score increased to 76%

WA Hydrenic Engineering Websits
‘www.imi-bydronic.oom

Performance

Revenues on a reported basis of £290m
(2015: £264m) were 10% higher than
2015 and after adjusting for £30m of
exchange rate benefit, were 1% lower
on an organic basis. While wammer
weather impacted the heating season

in the division's largest European markets,
revenues in that region were marginally
higher than the previous year. Due to
project delays, sales in China were
significantly reduced in the first half before
recovering with positive momentum in the
final quarter of the year. North American
sales reflected an overall increase of

6% in the year.

Segmental operating profit of £52m (2015:

£52m) was equivalent on a reported basis
and, after adjusting for £6m of exchange
rate benefit, 10% lower on an organic
basis. As expected, operating margins
showed a second half seasonal
improvement to 19.4% while full year
margins at 17.9% (2015; 19,6%) were
lower than the prior year refiecting the
impact of iower volumes and the on-going
investment in great new products and
operational excellence.

New products faunched in the last three
years continued to have an important,
positive impact on the results and
generated £55m of sales in the year.
included in the 2016 product launches
were a number of products specifically
targeted at the development of the
division's over-the-counter sales strategy,
which resulted in two significant new
agreements being signed in Europe.

These agreements, while having relatively
modest impact on the 2016 results, are
expected to underpin increased trading
in future years. The previously announced
entry into the actuator market, with
TA-Slider, has received an excetlent
market reception and 2017 plans

include further product launches.

The division’s lean scores continued to
improve and incraased to 76% against
72% at year-end 2015. In the vear,
Hydronic Enginesaring's Polish opsrations,
the Group's highest kean scoring plant,
successfully launched the division’s
standard J D Edwards ERP system.
This system is now providing increased
efficiencies and forms the foundations
for future ERP rofi-outs across the
division. Also in 2016, the division’s
largest manufacturing plant, in Germany,
undertook a total refurbishment of its
foundry facilities resutting in a significant
reduction in scrap and work in progress.

Qutlook

While the European construction markets
are forecast to remain subdued, the
success of new products and over-the-
counter sales are expected to resut in
organic revenue growth in the year, albeit
weighted to the second half. Operating
margins are also expacted to show their
normal second half improvement and will
include the benefits of restructuring.

“As well as delivering another great performance in the application of
lean and maintaining strong momentum in new product development,
at IMI Hydronic Engineering we also made good progress with a new
ouver-the-counter sales strategy, successfully re-opening an important

market segment for the business.”

Petar Spencer
Divisional Managing Diractor




To support our significant
new product offering and
our strengthened over-the-
ceunter sales strategy. we

have revitalised our sales
and marketing activities
within the division.

Revitalising our sales
and marketing activities
to drive revenue
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Corporate responsibility
Our approach

“Our ambition is for IMI to become a truly great company that is preferred by all its
stakeholders because of our market leading products and services and the way we operate
all aspects of our business. We achieve this by maintaining a long-term focus, investing

in our future and at all times operating our business in an ethical and responstble way.
This approach is fundamental to delivering sustainable profitable growth.”

Mark Selway
Chief Exacutive

IM1 Critical Engineers
are world-class, solving
customers’ major challenges
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Our people

Geoff Tranfield

Group Human
Roasourcos Dircctor

“We employ some 11,000 people around the world. On a daily basis they are tasked
with delivering our strategy and the progress IMI has made this year is down to
their hard work. To ensure that this progress continues, we must continue to attract
and retain good people, ensure we have relevant skills and leadership capabilities
across the Group and foster a positive working environment which provides our
people with development and engagement opportunities.”

Shaping our culture - The IMI Way

At the heart of making IMI a great company are our values and behaviours - which, in conjunction with
the Jaunch of our new strategy, were refreshed and rolled out across the Group in 2014. These values
and behaviours, which help shape our ctuiiture and outline the standards and conduct everyone in the
Group should comply with, are integral to ‘The IMI Way’ which defines how we do business. Reviewed and
endorsed by the Board our IMI values and behaviours are now embedded in all aspects of our business
including our recruitment and induction processes, our bi-annual management perforrmance assessments

and our succession planning.

As outiined on page 11 of this Strategic Repont, comnecting and collaborating with colleagues across the Group to share best
practice and establish consistent Group-wide standards and process is one of our key enablers helping us deliver our strategic
plan. This way of working, which is improving our competitiveness and profitabiity, is becoming common practice across IM,

Collaborative projects undertaken during the year included:-

* Precision Engineering's enhanced range of compressed air
preparation units have been developed in conjunction with
our Hydronic Engineering division. The range incorporates
one of Hydronic Engineering’s new word-class ball valve
designs, which provides excellent value for money, great
performance and is perfectly matched to the needs of
our Precision Engineering customaers. in addition, the
new product offering is manufactured on a new automated
assembly systam, developed, designed and built by
Hydronic's Polish-based assembly systerm supplier, which
has resulted in reduced costs and lead times. This new
product range enhances Precision Engineering's customer
offering and creates a new market for one of Hydronic
Engineering’s existing products;

connccr

= the transfer of specialist value engineering resource and
skifls from Precision Engineering to Critical Engineering
has enhanced Critical Engineering’s world class capabilities
and has helped the division win new orders in excess of
£80 million at our historic margin levets while still delivering,
on average, a 20% cost reduction for our customers.

Our mindset

b

“Engineering GREAT together”

Behaviours: \

Deliver Lead

Learn lmprove

UORONPORU|

]
|

fewaNg woUBULY



30 M pic

Corporate responsibility
Our people (cont’d)

Our work environment

{n addition to reinforcing the IMI values
and behaviours across our business

we are committed to ensuring that all
employees and workers are treated fairly
in an erwironment which is free from any
form of discrimination with regard to the
nine protected characteristics outlined

in the Equality Act 2010, which are age,
religion, race, sex, disability, gender
reassignment, mamiage/civil partnership,
pregnancy and matemity and sexual
orientation. Further detail about our
Diversity and Inclusion Policy, which was
revised in 2014, is set out below in the
paragraph titled ‘Diversity and Inclusion’.

The IMi Code

It is essential that we run our business in
an ethical way with the highest standards
of integrity. As part of their induction,
every smployee who joins the Group
receives training in redation to our Code of
Conduct (the ‘Code’), which covers anti-
bribery, anti-corruption and fair market
competition. Refresher training on the
Code is provided regularly as appropriate
and is reinforced through face-to-face
sessions at the armwal IMI Way Day.

During the year Code training was
enhanced by the introduction of &
number of e-leaming programmes
which utitise the Group's global intranet
that employees, regardless of location,
are able to access. In Aprit we ran a
Group-wide e-leaming module focused
specifically on anti-bribery and anti-
corruption. The module was completed
across our businesses within six weeks.
in October, as part of our supplier
evaluation process, all our purchasing

Collaagues trom Critice! Engineering and Pracision
Enginearing colaborate during The IMI Wiy Day

teams participated in an e-learning
programme to raise awareness of slavery
and human trafficking to ensure neither
take placa in ejther our own or our
suppliers’ businesses.

We encourage all employees to report
to their manager any incident that

is not in keeping with the IMf values
and behaviours. We also operate a
confidential independent compliance |
hotline in more than 20 languages
which employees can use to report
issues anonymoustly. Hotline activity

is reviewed on a monthly basis by the
Group’s Ethics and Compliance
Commiittee, which | ¢chair, and all reports
are investigated thoroughly and, where
required, appropriate action is taken to
resolve issues quickly. During 2016 48
cases were reported via the hotline
which compared to 97 in 2015 and
103in 2014,

Community activities

Consistent with our values we belfieve we
have a responsibiiity to the communities
around the world in which we operale,

In addition to creating jobs and investing
in our focal communities, each year
employees across the Group participate
in what has become known as The IM|
Way Day during which they receive face-
to-face refresher training on both The

IMI Way and the Code and spend time
supporting a local community charity or
project. As well as being the right thing to
do, these initiatives contribute to the kocal
community, help buid trust and reinforce
our teamn building and collaborative
approach. Some of the local charities
our employees supported during the
2016 IMI Way Day included:

Empioyeas from M) Buschjost suppon a local school for
childran and young adults with disabilities at their sportsday

A group of our graduates receive a tour of Hydronic
Enginesring's faciiity in Poland

¢ a charity that provides foad to famiies
on low incomes in and around Selangor,
Malaysia;

¢ a home for the terminally il in Bangalore
and Sai Kripa, a charitable organisation
which provides food, shelter and
education for homelass and orphan
chidren in India;

* Newlands Bishop Farm near Sofihull
that provides opportunities for pecple
with leaming disabilities and mental
health problems to learn work-based
skills, in the UK;

+ a school for disabied children in Bad
Oeynhausen, Germany: and

= & rehabiitation centre for recovering
alcoholics in Paju, South Korea.

Code on-ine
www.Imipic.com/comporite-responsibiity

Employees receive ince-1o-face training on The iMI
Way Dey at Hydranic Englneering’s faciilty in Brezi|
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Attracting good
people

Recruitment

Our performance and our ability to
execute our strategy is dependent on
recruiting the best people with the most
relevant skills and experience who are
aligned with our values and behaviours
and our strategic ambition. During

the vear we continued to improve our
recruitment processes. In particular

our graduate programme, which was
refreshed at the beginning of 2015,
continued to go from strength to strength
as we recruited twice as many graduates
in 2016 (31) compared to 2014 (15).

Diversity and Inclusion

At IMI we beligve it is essential that we
employ and retain the very best people
to serve our giobal business and our
diverse customer base. in 2015, a
revised Diversity and Inclusion Policy
was embedded in the recruitment and
other human resource processes and
procedures that we operate across
the Group. By applying this policy,

we aim to recruit the best people to
execute our strategic pricrities and to

Gender mix across the Group

Femals Female % Male Mas %

All 3,157 27% B,575 73%
employees

Managers 223 20% 80 BO%
Senlor 104 8% 530 B4%
managers

Board 2 2% T 78%
directors

reflect the location of our operations,
custorners and markets. Additionally,
when creating shortlists for intermal and
mcruiters take account of our policy
and, as part of our intemal management
Managing Director is set objectives aimed
at improving diversity in their division.
These objectives include an ambition to
recnit local talent and during 2016 much
progress was made in this area. By way
of example, at the end of December 2014
across the Group, 32 of our management
or senior technical roles were undertaken
by expatriate employess on secondment
from their home country. Today only

11 of these positions are undertaken

by expatriates who have returned to
roles in their home countries and have
been replaced by talent developed or
recruited locally.

During 2016 our approach to diversity
and inclusion was further smbedded
by the addition of a number of diversity
awareness training programmes. Our
leadership development prograrmme,
Leading the Way to Engineering
GREAT, includes a session on diversity
and inclusion and we have piloted a
standaione e-leaming programme on
diversity, which employess can access
via our giobal intranet.

UORINPOIMY
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lean audit at Hydronic Engineering’s facility in

A group of 2015 intake graduates undertake a mock
O]
. Poland as part of their development workshop
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Corporate responsibility
Our people (cont’d)

IMI's 2016 graduate intake during their

two week induction at HQ

Developing
our people

Development programmes

To achiave our strategy we must
continue to ensure that our employees
have the relevant business and
lsadership capabilities.

in 2016 around 100 people participated
in our ‘Leading the way to engineering
Great’ programme, which is focused
an our senior management team and
potential future leaders. In addition,
across the Group, 200 people joined
our 'Being a Great IMi Manager'
deveiopment programme which is
targeted at employees who have recently
been promoted to a management role.
The programme’s two and a half day
training course was run in China, the
Czech Republic, Germany, the UK and
the US and, in 2017, the prograrnme
will be further extended to include aly,
Poland and Sweden.

IMi Leam, our e-learning platform which
is hosted on our global intranet, was
launched in February and during 2016

over 8.000 employees around the
Group participated in e-leaming modules
on a wide range of business specific
topics as wel as training in refation to
anti-bribery and anti-comuption and
diversity and inclusion, both of which
are highlighted above,

Our Operations Fast Track programme,
which runs for 12 months and covers
both professional and personal
development, was first launched in
our Hydronic Engineering division in
April 2015 and has continued to be
rolled-out across the division during
the year. The programme focuses

on our néxt generation of managers
and its main objective is to accelerate
their development and create intemnal
succession candidates.




Jifun Kun

graduates, one of IMI Precision Engineering’s current graduates

During ¢ week of development activities for our 2015 intake of
" O

presents his most recent project to his peers in the Czech Republic

Succession planning

During the year as part of the talent and
succession process, we again undertook
an extensive review of our management
succession plans to ensure that we have
strength and depth of leadership talent
across the Group. The performance of
our managers was assessed against

a number of criteria including leadership
skills, values and behaviours and their
business’s performance. The findings

of this procass have been used to build
individual development plans and inform
our future planning, thereby ensuring
that we have a pipeline of high calibre
talent throughout the Group.

Engaging
our people

At IMI we also recognise that we
must retain good people. In addition
to the development opportunities
outlined above, providing a positive
working environment which enables
our employees to understand the
contribution they make and be fully
engaged is key to our success.

The global intranet has been
instrumental in keeping employees
informed and connected across the
Group and it has also facilitated cross-
business collaboration and the sharing
of best practice. In terms of face-to-face
engagemsent our annual Group and
divisional conferences, which involve
our top 350 managers, sefve as a
catalyst to cascade information

across our businesses and all
management who attend are required
to share conference key messages
with their broader teams. The Group's
financial results, strategic progress
and important initiatives in areas such
as health and safety are communicated
through a number of mechanisms
including regular town hall meetings.
Wa also work with our European
Works Coungil, covering 11 countries
across Europe, to further encourage
effactive employee communication
and engagement.

Twice a year we publish our cross
dhivisional magazine, the IM| Eye, which
features news stories generated by
our businesses around the world and
is distributed in multiple languages to
employees and key stakehoiders.

We gather feedback from employees
annualfly. This takes the form of a survey
that is completed at the end of the IMI
Way Day and covers a number of key
areas. All survey feedback is reviewed
and areas where understanding needs
to be improved or potential concerns are
identified and further investigated via &
pulse survey (a quick and effective real
time survey that gathers further detaif)

in the relevant part of the business.

i required, based on the puise data
information, appropriate actions are

put in place to resolve issues and
clarify understanding.
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Corporate responsibility
Our operations and products

Health & Safety

The health and safety of our
employees and the health and
safety of our other stakeholders,

" including our customers and
suppliers, is paramount. This
unconditional commitment

to health and safety is also
consistent with our strategy

to significantly improve the
operational performance and

the efficiency of our businesses.
By prioritising health and safety
and reducing the occurrence

of incidents, we will also minimise
the time spent investigating
iSSl.IQS, reduce the amount Earty in 2016, vl CCI Korea celebrated 2,000 days with no lost ime accidents
of time lost to absence and
sick leave and save on legal,
insurance and medical costs.

Our ambition is to achieve world-class
health and safaty perforrmance. To ensure
that we realise this, we have embedded

a proactive continuous improvernent
approach to health and safety across our
entire organisation and during the year wa
made significant progress. The number of
Lost Time Accidents significantly reduced
in 2016 {15 in 2016 compared to 31 in
2015) and a number of our facilities have
recorded significant periods of zero Lost
Time Accidents, including IM! CCI Korea
in our Critical Engineering division, which
in July 2016 marked 2,000 days without
a Lost Time Accident.

Our proactive approach to health and
safety, which is aimed at continuousty
improving the identification and

The ten attributes of safety - fourth round
assessment average HSE scores by division

removal of potential hazards in ocur
facilities, covers all operations and all
levels of management and ncludes:

= a rigonous bi-annual assessment of the
ten operational and safety areas we
consider most important in order to keep wmm M| Criticel Engineering
our emp!ayees fleefmm hann and owr wunn IMI Precision Engineering
ThoFlalauansa octve and e Gmci L soes |MI Hydronic Engineering

s assessment process, which is

combined with the bi-annual iean T word-class
benchmarking reviews (further details
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of which are set out on pages 14 to 17),
is undertaken by specialist health and
safety experts in each operating unit
which drives greater ownership of the
process and ensures that heslth and
safety is embedded in each business.
Each local assessment is then
independently reviewed by one of the
Group or Divisional Health and Safety

champions and & combined Lean-HSE  proo .y testing st Precision Enginsering's facityin

report is produced which measures
progress since the last assessment,
identifies potential hazards,
recommends remedial actions and
targets further overall improvements.
All assessments are posted on the
Group intranet which ensures
performnance is visible and facilitates
the sharing of best practice across

all of our businesses. In addition,

the combined Lean-HSE reports

are analysed 1o identify any commonly
recurring Group-wide hazards which
require specific remedial action. During
the year this analysis, combinad with
scrutiny of our accident reports,

Shanghai, China

confirmed the need to reinforce our
efforts on harkl injuries and in
rasponse, a Group-wide campaign
focusing specifically on hand safety
was launched recently;

= real time monitoring of our health and

safety performance: during the year
the Group enhanced our HSE 360

IT system which operates in all our
facilities to track any and every incident
which requires first aid or any other
medical intervention. In addition, in the
case of an incident requiring more than

UORANPORU]
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first aid treatment, a report is issued to
the relevant divisional management
team and a remediation plan is agreed
and implemented; and

regular heaith and safety training for
all employees: every empioyee who
joins IMI receives relevant health and
safety training as part of their induction
and where appropriate, participates
in further on-site training focused on
hazard identification, risk assessment
and action planning. In addition,

site management is responsible for
detailed health and safaety ‘Gemba
Walks', (a lean manufacturing term
used to describe the personal
observation of work which involves

a detailed physical review of the
factory to observe and identify real
time potential hazards and risks).
This, in addition to our bi-annual
assessment process described above,
has made a measurable impact on
both our Lean-HSE scores and
accident reduction.

Swewems [poueu)y
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Corporate responsibility

Our operations and products (cont’d)

Our
operations

We have a responsibility to
minimise the environmental
impact of our day-to-day
operations,

Given the nature of our production
processes, our main focus is on energy
efficiency. Historically we have regularly
conducted internal reviews of our energy
usage. in 2015, in accordance with the
European Union Energy Directive, we
augmented this process by undertaking
independent energy assessment surveys
acnoss our major European operations.
Data and recommendations from these
surveys were collated and fed into our
Group-wide energy efficiency programme
that was developed and rolied out during
the course of the year. This programme
has delivered a number of efficiency
improvemeants including:

* Precision Engineering's Fellbach facility
in Genmany installed a new boiler for
their heating system that is estimated
will achieve annual savings of some
300 tonnes of COz and £100,000; and

* iMI CCl's Bmo plant in the Czech
Republic and IM! Trufio Marine's
operation in Birmingham, England,
upgraded lighting and lighting controls
and are anticipating a combined 300
tonne reduction in COz2 emissions each
year, with an investment payback on
thesa improverments in under two years.

During the year we continued tc make
good progress to reduce our COze
emissions. In 2015 we set our minimum
baseline perforrnance at 61,250 tonnes
and during 2016, we reduced this further
by 2%. In keeping with our continuous
improvement culture, we wilk look to
deliver further reductions year on year.

Empiloyess st Precision Engineering's faciity in Shanghal,
China, inspect a pneumnetic maniicld for & customar

As detalled on pages 14 1o 17, we have
made significant progress in improving
the operational efficiency of our facilities
through the application of lsan processes.
A key part of the lean process is the
elimination of waste and during the year,
the improvernent in the Group's inventory
turns has freed up £9.6m in cash.
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Our ;
products g
We design and manufacture s
products that help our

customers operate their

systems and processes
safely, cleanly and cost
effectively. We also sell
products that directly help

to tackle some of the biggest
issues facing the world today
including globhal warming
and resource scarcity.

High Integrity Pressure Protection
Systerns (HIPPS), designed by our
Critical Engineering division, and installed
in pipelines and processing plants,
contro! the build-up of fluid and gas
pressure in the system and ensure

safe operation whilst avoiding harmful
emissions being released into

the atmosphere,

u
e

HIPPS unit, designed by IMI OCI,
provides the highest safety levels
and zero emissions

Collapsible kandrail, actuated
with pneumnatic cylinders.
Courtesy of Booth Engineering

Wa continucusily look at our prochucts to see how they
can better satisfy cusiomer needs

The new IMI Maxseal solenoid valve,
designed and produced by our Precision
Engineering division, for-a wide range of
Qil & Gas applications, uses less power
helping customers save energy without
sacyificing refiability or performance.
Eclipse, the thermostatic radiator valve,
designed and manufactured by our _
Hydronic Engineering division, delivers

a constant room temperature which

enhances the efficiency of the heating

system and saves on energy costs.

SN [BousULY
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Measurements and targets

Business performance is measured through Group-wide targets and improvement measures.

Each IMI business participates in an annual round of planning meetings with the Executive
Committee, during which performance and future plans for that business are reviewed and
updated. These business plans have all been aligned with the Group’s strategy. The Key
Performance Indicators (‘KPIs’) set out below represent the financial and non-financial
targets which are integral to the delivery of the Group's strategy.

Organic revenue growth

Segmental operating profit

*
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Organic revenue growth excludes the

. impact of acquisitions, disposals and
foreign exchange movements. The
revenues from acquisitions are only
included in the cumrent year for the
period during which the revenues were
also included in the prior period. In 2016,
the Group's continuing businesses
exparienced a drop in organic

reverue of 5%,

In 2016, Group segmental operating
profit was £228m compared to £239m
representing a reduction of 5% on a
reported basis. On an crganic basis,
after adjusting for the favoursble impact
of exchange rates and acquisitions and
disposals, segmental operating profit
was lower by 17%.




Annua) Report and Accounts 2016

Lost time accident rate

Lean assesament

Return on capital employed

Hje
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The heaith and safety of all our
employees remains paramount.

We measure our progress in this area
by tracking our >1 day lost time accident
frequency rate ('LTA rate’). In 20186,
our LTA rate improved relative to 2015.
Our work to reduce workplace hazards
and integrate health and safety audits
with the Group lean audit programme
in 2016 had a very positive impact on
our performance.

%
’IIII

Yosr-ons

Yagr-and
214 w18 e

Yoar-and

During the year we continued to improve
our lean scores and moved closar
towards achieving Group-wide world-
class operational performance. Qur
highest score is now 94% and the
average has increased from 31% when
we first benchmarked the business

in 2014 to 66% in the year-end 2016
assessment process.

Return on capital employed ('ROCE’)

is defined as segmental operating profit
after tax divided by capital employed.

In 2016 ROCE was 12.5% which
compares to 14.3% in 2015 and reflects
the reduced operating profit impacted
by market headwinds,

UoRONpORUY|
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Our risk management processes were significantly updated in 2015 and are now well
embedded in all our businesses. These processes identify, evaluate and manage the risks
which could impact the performance or reputation of IMI and its ability to implement its

growth strategy.

The Board determines the Group's risk appetite and reviews

the Group's risks formally throughout the year. Responsibility for
implementing and manitoring intemnal controls and other elements
of risk management, is delegated to the Group Chief Executive
and the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee operates
alongside the Audit Committee, which has primary responsibility
for oversight of financial controls, the Nominations Committee,
which has primary responsibility for succession risk, and the
Remuneration Committee which has primary responsibility

for remuneration and incentive structure risk.

Risk appetite

The Board is responsible for datermining the nature and extent of
the principal risks it is prepared to accept to achieve the Group's
strategic objectives. Specific risk exposures and appetites vary
according to the nature of the risk, including the organisation’s
ability to mitigate its impact.

ety ek,

Detalils on risk appetite are communicated to the Divisional
Managing Directors and the Group's Executive Committee to
ensure that decision making and behaviours across the business
are consistent with the guidance set by the Board.

Risk management

The risk management processes we operate ensure that we
have a common, Group-wide approach to the identification,
assessment and quantification of risks and the way in which
thay are managed, mitigated and monitored.

ldentify and

/V Assess e risks \
Monitor improvement Identify existing mitigating
actions and report actions and comrols
Assess if further comtrols identify monttors to
are reguired and inftiate _____  confirm controls are
fmproveincnt actions operating cffectively

Our nisk managemsent processes are embedded in all parts of
our operations and our bottom up risk management framework,
which is described below, ensures that the Board and the senior
ieadership team is able to actively assess risks and monitor the
measures used to mitigate, transfer or avoid such risks.

All of the Group’s manufacturing operations are required to
maintain an up-to-date risk profile which identifies the key
risks facing the business, assesses the mitigating processes
and controls in place to manage the risk and monitors

and measures the effectiveness of those controls. The risk
profile enables management to identify issues and areas that
require improvement and to efficiently develop remediation
action plans. During the year, the formality and rigour of risk
assessment within our manufactunng businesses was enhanced
principally through incorporating it into each business' monthly
management reporting procedures. This monthly review
increases management ownership and accountabiiity,

both of which are crucial to ensuring an effective risk
management framework.

Bi-annually each manufagturing operation uploads its risk profile
to the Group intrangt. Each of our thres divisions review and
consolidate their most significant site leval risks and mitigation
strategies into a summarised divisional risk profile, which
includes any additional divisional level risks as appropriate.
Tha divisional risk profiles are then consolidated into a single
Group risk profile using the same methodology. Both the
divisional and Group risk profiles are presented and reviewed
by the Executive Committee twice a year. The Executiva
Cormmittea’s review, which includes a detailed analysis of the
Group risk profile, the supporting divisional summaries and
actions undertaken to ensure compliance with the enhanced
requirements of the UK Comporate Govemance Code, are all
submitted to the Board.

The key strategic, operational, financial and compliance risks
facing the Group, in order of pricrity, are shown in the table on
the following pages. This analysis includes why we think the risk
is important, how we are mitigating the risk, our perception of
whether the risk has increased or not, and the main changes
during 2016.

In addition to strategic, operational and compliance risks, the
Group is also exposed to broader financial market risks, in
particutar, cumency exchange rate volatility following the Brexit
referendumn. A description of these risks and our centralised
approach to managing them is described in Section 4.4 of
the financial statements.
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RISK

MECRO-ECONDMIC
INSTASLLTY

6LOBAL ECOROMIC OR
POLITICAL INSTABILITY
IMPACTING THE GROUP'S
ABILITY TO ACHIEVE
FORECAST AND MARKET
EXPECTAMONS

uonoNpoIRI

RIS GESCRIFTION AND POTENTIAL IMPACT MITIGATION
]

The Group operates in giobal markets and » Divigional managemert monitor key customers ar respond quicidy to

demand for our praducts is depandent on changes in customer demnand.

economic and gactor-facing environments. » Our cone fonacasting process uliises sarly indications of reduced demand

A downium in a global / regional economy and ensures operational output can be right sized appropriately.

m&mw& + Tha Group operates across a range of regional markets and our strategy
Moup Is to ensure that we have a balanced portfolio with no single dependency

Iommﬂmﬁ“&m.mm o a single market sector or geography.

associated Brendt ara not considerad

as materigl to the Group. » Enhanced strees testing and sensitivity analysis of business plans with

RISK
MOVEMENT

1)

CHANGES DURING 2018

MAIOR PROJECT
IMPLEMENTATION

FAILURE TO DELIVER MAJDR
TRANSFORMATIONAL PROJECTS

ON TIME AND ON BUDGET

RISK
MOVEMENT

&

CHANGES DURING 2016

regular reviews of key market and sector metrics.
= increasad investment in new product devalopment, enhancad openation
performancea to improve competfiiveness,

".:.:
Pl

Economic and market conditions have remained challenging throughout 2018. Criical Engineering experienced reduced activity in Ol
& Gas and Power genaration as the effects of the low oil price continue 10 Impect thess and related sactors. Precision Enginesring

was aflected by lower demand in Europe and Asia for indusirial Automation and the Commerncial Vishicle merket was significantly down
in the Americas. Tha Group has continuad to ncraass investment in new product development, enhanced operational

and increased value engineering initiatives to improve competitiveness, To mitigate the impact of current market weakness, all throe
divisions have implemented significant cost-reduction programmes which wil be executed in the early part of 2017,

The Group is undertaking & number of major » Continued managerment of nesources 10 exacute projects.

change projects to adjust 1o the changing » Detalled plans with clear and measurable milestones reviewed by the
economic condliail?'gs ln;lu:ﬁng: bush:fss Dhvisional Managing Direciors 10 track progress.

reorganisations imptermentation of new

IT systems, Faire to deliver the desred * Raguiar review of major project progress by the Exacutive Committes.
obijsctives on tima and on budget and failure + Enhanced risk agsesament process including full mitigation action plans
to react quickly enough o changing market for ol major change projects.

condilions, could have an adverse financial * Specialist |T and Group Assurance reviews of mejor IT projects.

Impact on the Group. * Datailed contingency plans.

SUMLOACD 01210000

In response to adverse market devetopments, the Group continues 1o axecute majar change projects relating 1o business re-
organisations. The continued ERP investmert programme will also see a number of complex 1T systerm implementations. Al

projacts during 2016 heve received substantial senior management oversight in the form of bi-weeldy Executive project reviews 10
ensure they are appropriately resourced and remain on track to deliver the objectives that were approved at projact inftiation.

ERODUCT QUALITY

QUALITY ISSUES LEADING 70

PRODUCT FAILURE, RECALL,

WARRANTY ISSUES, INJURY,

DAMAEE OR DISRUPTION TO

CUSTOMERS' BUSINESS

RISX
MOVEMENY

)

CHANGES DURING 2016

mmm\n’lconﬁn%t:bea Planning process (APQP).
= Gontinued focus audits to -
g e e o .
mdmdmhmﬂthnegaﬁvew 'PWNWWMMmsmo«mmmmm B
‘ * Targetad lsan evants 1o improve qualty and sppiication of problem g
sohving lools.
* Upgrade of talent and focus on axcellence in quality and g
product davelopment, g

mmmmwmmmmmwhowmmm recuce waste and

improve performance. Lean assessments continue to show significant improvernents in 2016, In onder 10 éxtend the benefits of
sharing Group-wide best practice, managemant have instigatad a combined metric which consists of the lean assessmaent, the
Health, Safety and Erwvironment assessment snd five key perfarmance Indicators: cost of quality, on time dalvery, productivty,
inventory tums and Lost Time Accidents. In addition, the APQP process introduced in 2015 now underping new product
development across all divisions and manufacturing

ACQUISTION RiSK
FAILURE TO INTEGRATE

ACOVISITIONS SUCCESSRILLY
AND DELIVER THE REQUIRED

SYNERGIES

RISK
MO

o

CHANGES DURING 2016

An integral part of the Group's strategy Is = Central MBA function, suitably resourcad, working with divisions to
1o make value anhancing acquisiions that Identify hard and soft synergies within targeted acquisition
complement our product portfolio. Falere 10 * Formalised acquisition spproval, due diligence and -acquistiion

raduce the value of scquind businasses. » Documented process and 100t to monlior and effectively manage

100 days post-acquisition integration.

The revised and formalised integration process used in the acquisition of Bopp & Reuther has been further enhanced,
mspmmmammmmemmwmmmwmummmm
across al discilines are avallable to successhdly project manage

|
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Principal risks and uncertainties (cont’d)

RISK RISK DESCRIPTION AND POTENTIAL IMPACT MTIGATION
|
BEGULATORY BREACH IMI has established a framework which * Commitment to good governance practices which are embodied in
FAILURE TD COMPLY WITH instigates the highaest standards to ethics and tha M Way.
LEGISLATION GA A ',"mwl nnsnr regulatory compliance across our business » Continuad enhancement of the intemal controls declaration process
OF ETICAL BEARVICUR mh i is mportant ¢ et wo meintatn these and continued rigorous #nancial aucits by our Group Assurance team.
standards, Legislative requirements around * The annual IMI Way Day was held in June across the Group and
AISK tax, anti-bribery, fraud and competition law included ethics iraining for all employees.
MOVEMENT Q requiire ngorous monitoring and tralning to « Policies, manueis and guidelines are gvalable to all employees under
avold financial and reputational damage. the legal, compliance and financial sections of the IMI giobal intranet.
» Group, division and specific tenritory resources dedicated to legal
and regulatory compllance.

« Training of employees focuising on how 10 apoly the IMI Way in everyday
situations and key risk aneas such as competition law, fraud and antl-
bribery and coruption. :
¢ The confidential IMI hotiine to report concerns.

* Group standard operating procedures are availabie on tha inlranet
and increasad rigour around cove legel and compliance proceases.

« Third party agent dua diligence and approval procedures, standsrd
agency ageements and terminated non-compliant agents.

CHANGES DURING 2018 iMI has a zero appetite for compliance rgsk and the challenging market and regulatory environment demands the very highest
standards of conduct. Our processes and procedures have continuad 1o strangthen and embed throughout the business. During
2016 we trained over half our workforce on anti-bribery and & thind of our employees on comgpetition law using elearning modules
hosted on our new IMI Leam platform. This system provides the abilty to target particular employee groups and tracks completion
of requined compliance training. The introduction of stringent new pracedures and processes to oparate in high risk territories
ensures compliance when we axidress future business opportunities in these regions.

SUPPLY CHAIN The Group has a significant number of -mmummmmmmmmmm

FAILURE TO MANAGE mmmnbrnndbaaam:jwppﬂers.h Impact of a suppilier talure or increased prices.

THE SUPPLY CHAIN Fallure 10 meet customers’ rements -Prafmadanpiarmsloraﬂmajormateﬁalsandmmhaadw
respect of quality or delivery, could have a of the divigions.

AISK o materal impact on the Group's res.lts. « Adequate safety stock and/or dual supply for critical corponents.

HOVEMENT - « Suppiier sconecard process to monflor performance, capablty and resience.

CHANGES DURING 2016 The implementation of a supply scorecerd. The supplier risk assessmant selection tool and introduction of commodity experts,
has resutted in & reduction In the likeihood of a critical, strategic supplier fallure. Preiamdswplbmlstsmnempmd.mdto
concenirate straiegic purchasing with certified and approved suppliers. Framework agreements have been introduced to increase
fornality in standard purchase agresments.

]

CYBER SECURITY Unapproved access to [T systems could * [T Security improvement prograrmime underway across the Group.,

UNAUTHORISED ACCESS result in loss of intellectusl property, fraucutent

T0.0UR 7 SYSTEMS Bctviy, thett and business intemuption, T o oo oo oprooeratives o il dhasions

Wseu:hymussrmroralm.mmm
RISK o regard to fraud.
MOVEMENT

* Drsaster recovery plans instigated on all critical IT assats,

CHANGES DURING 2016 The Group is In the second year of a three year Group-wide Security Improvement Programme and during 2016, a 24/7 secuity
operation centre was established 10 monitor and resolve security iIncidents. The prograrmme includes deployment of consistent
antvinus, firewalls, intruder detection, device coritrol and encryption software across the Group. Combined with greater cyber risk
awarenags and behaviours from our empioyees, thase developmaents have helped mitigats the increasing cyber threat to a laval
consigtent with 2015.
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RISK

COMPETITIVE MARKETS
TNCREASINGLY COMPETITIVE
MARKEYS LEADING TO
PRICING PRESSURES OR

RISK DESCRIFTION AND POTENTIAL IMPACT ITIGATION
- ]

Increased volatiity and siowdown in mejor * Competitor tear-down and value enginsering procodures.

economies could resutt In increased

com fing 16 loss of sicme -Wmﬂawummmmmﬂmbmw&

sdes“andrawcedglprdils. v » Standard costings to ensure thorough undarstending of product cost.

L0SS OF CUSTOMERS

HOVEMENT o

CHANGES DURING 2018

* Monitoring of markets 10 ensure cost competitiveness and markst shares.
+ Formal markat, competitor and peer reviews undiartaken quarterty.

improvements in operational capahilities, routine tear-ciown testing anct competitive benchmarking of competitor products in
all threa divisions has underpinned new product development and value enginearing intistives. These procedures have proved
erucial success factors In winning business, particularly in the Critical Engineesing division. The APQP process is also producing
tangible benafits across the Group following its successiul introduction in 2015,

ISEW PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT
OVEMENT o
"CHANGES DURING 2016

The Group's strategy for sustainable + Five year technology roadmaps inciuded in divisional strategies.
long-term growth will be achieved in part * Contirwed investment in resssrch snd development 10 encure we
?wm Fu:-amdai::rmm Iaan::\g target the most proftable opportunites.

X * Cenitres of dasign and technological excellence established with
products will impact our abilfty to grow., Ay .

* New product introduction procedures in place.
 Tracking of key performance metrics - lovel of sales from new
products and level of research and development spend against sales.

The APQP process launchad In 2015 is now operating effectively across all three divisions. Hydronic Engineering, the division

which pioneered the process, continued to benafit from the pipaline of new products, generating £30m of sales in 2016

{E30m in 2015). mmmammhmmpmdmmmmmmm
commercial priovitios and development roadmaps lor all the Group's principal markets.
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Board of Directors

Lord Smith of Kelvin Mark Selway Roy Twite Daniel Shook Bob Stack
Chairman Chief Executive Executive Director Finance Director Senior Indepmdem

non-executive diractor
Nationality
Commiitee membership
Nominations Committee — Chair Exacutive Committee Execyutiva Committes Exacutive Commitiea Nominations Committee

Remunaration Committes

= Chair
Date of appointment
2015 2013 2007 2015 2008
Expertiss
Sigrdficant UK and international Experianced and praven Proven organisational and Extensive financial Expanenced non-executive
board sperience Chief Executive engineering expertise managernant expenencs diractor at public company level
Extensive knowledge of both Solig track record running Managemant capabilty having BExtensiva knowledge of complex  Sugnificant international
engingenng and manufacturing intermational engineering run gl of IMI's divigions process manufacturing across business expafience
Strong track record in private businesses Extensive knowladige of end- 8 range of industrial sectors Specialist capabilty in human
equity, mangers and acquisitions In-depth knowladge of relevant markets end customer base Strong Intamational resources, organisationat
Speciaist capabilty in finance end-markats including ol & gas, perspeclive, havng worked in change and comporate affairs

anergy and automotive a number of key geographias
during his time with two isading
global businasses

Key sxternsl sppoiniments
Non-exacutive Chalnman of Non-sxecutive director of Non-axacutive director of
Alllance Trusi pic Haima plc the Eartrweaich insiinte
Non-axecutive Chairman of the Non-exacutive director of
UK Grean irvastrment Bank pic Signat Jewellers Limited

Board experience
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Cari-Petar Forster Birgit Nergaard Ross Mcinnes Isobel Sharp
Non-executive director Non-executive director Non-executive director Non-axecutive director
Nstionality
German Danigh French Australian British
Commitios membership
Aucit Commities Audit Cornimittes Aucht Commities — Chair Ayt Committee
Nominations Committes Nominations Coramities Nominations Cormmitios Nominations Commitiee
Remuneration Commities Remunaration Committes
Date of appointment
202 202 2014 2015
Expertise
Expadenced intemational Experignced non-executiva Gonsglderable fnancil expertise  Considerabls accounting, audit,
butiness leader He!d senior exacutive positions and m“’ei a;z;an?;ncﬁons
in-depth knowledga of the in enginearing consuftancy axparience of workdng infarge  EXpariance including time as
eutomotive sector Wide rangng sectoral international companies that the Senlor Technical Pariner ot

ranging in global markats Deloitte In London, President
Expart in operational excellence  experience indluding energy, operate in g of the nstitute of Chantered
and isan manifacturing water, infrastruciure and Accountants of Scotland

buiiding Industries I
Significant experienca in ng and membership of the UK
tschnology managernent Exparience in strategy as wall Agcounting Standards Board
as finance and accounting and the Financial Review Pans!

Key external appolntments
Non-executiva director of Geely
Automoblie Holdings, Hong Kong
Chairman of London

Taxi Company

Non-axecutiva director of Volvo
Cars Corporation, Gothenburg,
Swadean

Chalnman of Chermring Group pie

MNor-gxecutive director of

DSV /s

Non-gxecutive director of WSP
Global Ing and Charman of
the Guvernance, Ethics and
Compflance Committes
Non-executive director of
Cobham ple

Non-axecutive Chalman of
Safran SA

Non-oxecutive drector

and Chairman of the Audit
Committes at Faurecia SA
Nen-executive director

and Chairman of the Audit
Committes ot Eutelsat
Communicattons SA

Non-executive director of the
UK Green Investmaent Bank pic
Non-execiulive director and
Audit Commities Chair ot
winton Group Limited
Honcrary Profassor at
Edinburgh University

Busingss Schog!

Find pat more sboust the Baard on-tine

wwwirmipic.com/about -imifleadership-and-governance/board
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Corporate Governance introduction
Chairman’s Governance letter

Lord Smith of Ketvin

Dear Shareholder

Strong governance is of great importance to me and my fetiow
directors. We firnly believe it makes a real difference 1o Board
effectivaness, underpins a healthy culture and contributes to IMi's
sustainable success. In the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 49 to 54 of this Annual Report, we describe our govemnance
practices and the workings of the Board and Its commitiees.

Compliance with the 2014 UK Corporate Governance Code

i am pleased to report that IMI complied with the 2014 UK
Corporate Governance Code (the *Code") throughout the year.
Further details of how we comply with the Code are provided

in the Corporate Governance Report. In keeping with our
Group-wide focus on continuous improvemnent, during 2016 the
Company's Corporate Governance Framework (the ‘Governance
Framework'), which incorporates the vital elements of our Board
level governance amangements, was reviewed and refreshed.,
Changes to the Governance Framework included updating the
remits of each of the Board's committees and refining the matters
reserved 1o the Board, The Governarce Framework appears on
the iV website www.imiplc.com.

Leadership -

During my second year as Chairman, the various changes made
to the Board and the Executive during 2015 have been bedded
in. Our non-executive directors are making a positive contribution
and the dialogue with Management is open and transparent. As a
result we enjoy a good quality of discussion at mestings. Through
regular contact betwesn formal meetings, | have developed a
strong working relationship with the Chief Executive and Mark
and 1 enjoy frank, constructive and suitably challenging debates.

Culture

In 2014 the Board adopted a clear set of values which flow
through all parts of IMI and are reflected in the culture and
behaviours of our people across the Group. These values, which
are key to the delivery of our strateqy, inform all our operational
processes. They are also built into our people development
programmas and are assessed bi-annually as part of the staff
performance review process. Further information about our values
and behaviours is detailed in the Corporate Responsibility section
on pages 28 t0 37.

Strategy and familiarisation

During the year we dedicated more time as a Board 1o reviewing
the detailed implementation of our strategy, which we reaffirmed
at our strategy day in September 2016. We visited two of our
miajor faciliies in Germany and our largest UK manufacturing
operation. in addition, several of the non-executive directors and
| attended the Group management conference and we have all
visited sites on an individual basis. This direct contact with the
Group’s businesses is critically important as it accelerates our
understanding of IMI's operations and helps us get to know the
wider managerment team. It also allows us 10 ses the great work
our paople do on a daily basis which is clearly evident in the
operational improvements we are seeing across the Group.

Strengthening IMI

As highlighted in my statement on page 1, through effective
execution of our strategy we continue 1o see significant
improvements being made across the Group and as a result
IMI is becoming a stronger cormparty.

Progress is being made in all parts of the Group and across all
functions. In particular, our financial controls have been further
strengthened and | am pleased to report that the level of control
effectiveness across the Group remains high. Another area
where we have seen good progress is in relation to succession
planning, which is key to IMI’s long-term success. As described
in the Corporate Responsibility section on pages 28 to 37,
during the year we undertook an extensive review of managemernt
succession planning which involved an assessment of the
Group's top 230 leaders. | am pleased with the significant
progress being made towards buiiding a pipeline of high calibre
management talent.

| enjoy engagement with shareholders and appreciate the support
shown by our institutional shareholders. | look forward to meeting
shareholders again at our Annual General Meeting.

Y

(4

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairnan
23 February 2017
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Corporate Governance Report

Set out below is the Board’s formal report on corporate governance and separate
reports from the Audit, Nominations and Remuneration Committees.

UK Corporate Governance Code -

Compliance statement

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate govemance and confimns that throughout the
year-ending 31 December 2016 the Company has applied

the principles of good govemance contained in the 2014 UK
Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code’) and complied with its
best practice provisions. Further details appear below, and in
the Directors’ Report and other cross-referenced sections of this
Annual Report, all of which are incorporated by reference into
this report. There are no provisions in respect of which an
axplanation is needed under the “comply or explain® requirement,

A description of the main features of the Company's intemal
control system and disclosures on other regulatory matters
including statements on going concern and viability can be found
on pages 132 to 135 in the Directors’ Report. A summary of
our risk management systems and information about the risks
and uncertainties that relate to our business is detailed within
the Principal Risks and Uncertainties section on pages 40 to

43. Information on corporate responsibility can bea found in the
Corporate Responsibility section on pages 28 to 37.

The Board

Composition

Throughout 2016 and to date in 2017, the Board comprised nine
directors: the Chaiman; the Chief Executive; five independent
non-executive directors; the Finance Director and one
operational executive director,

in lings with the Code, all continuing directors submit themselves
for election or re-election at each Annual General Meeting.

The role of the Board and the clear division of responsibilities
between the Chairnan and the Chief Executive are outiined

in the Directors’ Report on pages 132 to 135,

Independence of non-executive directors

The Board considers that af five non-executive directors

are free from any business or other relationship which could
materially interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgement and all meet the criteria for independence under
the Code. Isobel Sharp is a co-director with Lord Smith on the
board of the UK Green Investment Bank pic, a government
owned financial institution. Cross-directorships are recognised
In the Code as a polential consideration in relation to the
assessment of independence. The Board has considered the
circumstances and regards Isobel and all of the other non-

executive directors as independent. The Chalrman was also
regarded as independent at the date of his appointment to
the Board. -

Boaord diversity

The non-exacutive directors are a diverse group from different
backgrounds and nationalities and bring with them a wide range
of skilis and experience in commerce, finance and industry in
various parts of the world. There are six nationalities on the
Board and two of the nine directors are female {L.e. 22%).

Our approach to diversity is set out in mome detail in the
Corporate Responsibility section on pages 28 to 37 and

in the Nominations Committee Report on page 58.

Under the Codeg, the Chainmen is axcluded
whaen considaring the intiapandent non-
axacutive compoasttion of the Board,

3 Exscutive diractors
5 Inclap or Jthves Clin
Dates of appointment
Name Date of appointment  Gxte of cument isitar  Anticipated sxpley of
of appoinmmen cunent W
Carl-Pater Forster 1 October 2012 3 January 2017 30 September 2018
Aoss Mcinnes 1 October 2014 3 January 2017 30 Saptember 2017
Birgit Nergaard B Novemnber 2042 3 January 2017 5 November 2018
isobs! Sharp 1 Seplember 2015 3 January 2017 31 August 2018
Lord Mobert Smith 7 May 2015 3 January 2017 6 May 2018
Bob Stack 13 June 2008 3 January 2017 12 Juve 2017

Meetings and use of Board time

The Board met on six occasions during the year including

two results reporting meetings, a day dedicated to strategy
discussions and regular review meetings. In addition, there were
several days spent on group site visits to three oparating units.
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Corporate Governance Report (cont’d)

Board activity
Highlights of Board activity in the year were:
» Bedding in the Board and Executive membership following
various changes during 2015
+ Reaffirming the commitment to the strategy
* Overseeing progress with growth and process investments
- Continuing growth investments made in new products and
business IT systems
- Priving core process disciplines including lean, risk,
compliance, advanced product quality planning and
policy deployment
+ Approval and review of strategy impiementation including
- Manufacturing transfers in IM( Critical Engineering
- Adopting a new organisation structure in IMI Precision
Engineeting
- Reviewing the “go to market” strategy in IMI Precision
Engineering
- New product introductions in IMI Hydronic Engineering
= Owversesing risk and the continuing actions to sirengthen
the intemal control environment
* Reviewing talent and succession management and the
continued embedding of our people development processes
including succession plans, talent programmes and
improvements in management capability

Board attendance
Director Board mestings %
eligible

Carl-Peter Forster 6/6 100
Ross Mcinnes 6/6 100
Bingit Nargsard &/8 100
Isobel Sharp 6/6 100
Lord Smith 6/8 100
Bob Stack 6/6 100
Mark Selway 6/8 100
Daniel Shook 6/6 100
Roy Twite® 4/6 87

1 Roy Twite did not participate in two meetings due 10 etiendance at a lsadership
and strategic development prograrmme at the Company’s request.

In 2017 to date the Board has met once with all members
in attendance,

Board roles and reserved matters

A description of Board roles and reserved matters is included
in the Governance Framework and summarised in the Directors’
Report on pages 132 to 135.

Induction and continuing development programme

A formal induction process for new non-execistiva dinectors is well
established and is the responsibility of the Chaimman with support
from the Chief Executive and Company Secretary.

Business familiarisation is at the core of induction ard continuing
development for non-executive directors at IMI and is based
around gaining an understanding of the business and getting

to know the wider management team. In addition all non-executive
directors attend a corporate induction day for senior managers
held at head office. There is also a committee induction process
designed 10 brief new committee members on the relevant
committea’s activity and the issues it faces.

Non-executive directors are required to visit business units
around the Group and to meet face-to-face with senior operating
management and key corporate staff. Non-executive directors
continue to become farmikar with the businesses after induction
and there is regular contact between management and non-
aexecutive directors during site vigits, formal meetings and events.
During 2016 all of the non-executive directors made site visits
and the whole Board spent several days in Germany, where they
visited sites in both IMI Precision Enginearing and IMI Hydronic
Engineering. There was also a visit to the Group's largest

UK operation.

Appropriate coaching and access to training and other continuing
professional developrment is available to all non-executive directors
and appropriate updates are given during the vear at Board and
committee meetings. Special governance and requlatory refresher
sessions were hald during the year and were attended by all of the
non-executive directors. in 2018, these included update sessions
for all three of the standing committees and govemnance updates
for the Board which covered the EU Market Abuse Regulation

and other developments.
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Corporate Governance Report (cont’d)

Board visits 1o IMI Buschjost and IM! Heimeier In Germany

IMI has a substantial presence in Germany which is home to
business units in all three divisions and IMI's largest Eurcpean
market. In October the Board visited Germary where it held
meetings and visited two outstanding manufacturing sites,

one in Precision Engineering, M| Buschjost, and the other

in Hydronic Engineering, IMI Heimeier.

IMI Buschiost is a key brand for Precision Engineering and offers
a comprehensive range of valves ideally suited to the process
industry including solenoid vaives, angle-seat valves, motarised
valves and systermns for dust filters. IMI Heimeter is a key brand
for Hydronic Engineering and offers thermostatic radiator vaves,
actuators and room thermostats.

During the factory tours, the engingers and machine operators
had tha opportunity to showcase new product development and
operational improvements. Local and divisional management
mads business presentations and after the site visits they enjoyed
dinner with the Board,

The Boand commended the investment in lean improvement,
new products and innovation and the high standards of
operational management. IMI's core processes were seen to
be well embedded at each site. The Board was very impressed
with both businesses and congratulated local management for
the progress being made.

Site visits are an important, regular faature of the Board calendar.
Such visits provide an axcellent opportunity for the Board to
meet a wider group of employees and gain a more in-depth
understanding of the business.

The Board with memibers of IMI Buschjost's management tearm

Board evaluation

In 2016 an intemal evaluation exercise was camied out through
questionnaires and canvassing commants from directors. The
Board received the findings of the internal evaluation in December
2016 and relevant elements were shared with the committees.
While the findings of the intemnal evaluation were overwhelmingly
positive, in keeping with the Group's commitment to continuous
improvement, the Board agmreed that some areas shoukd be further
developed over the coming year, including changes to the order
of meetings.

Action taken in response to the intemal evaluation undertaken

in 2015 included the appointment of al non-executive dinectors
{0 the Nominations Committee and subsequent training on best
practice for the expanded Nominations Commitiee.

The Board reviewed effectiveness, taking account of the
Financial Reporting Council’s best practice guidance on board
effectiveness, and the directors confinmed that the Board is
fulfilling its responsibiiies appropriately and that the Board

and its committees were effective. Evaluations of individual
Board directors were also underiaken to assess whether each
continuing director has demonstrated an effective contribution
and commitment to the role. The Chairman fed back to indhvicdual
directors the relevant findings.

As senior independent director, Bob Stack conducted a review
of the Chairman with the other non-executive directors and
shared the results with the Chairman. During the year the
Chairman also met with the non-executive directors o review
the performance of the Chief Executive. The Chairman passed
an to the Chief Executive appropriate feedback from the review
of his performance.

In fine with the Code, the Board has agreed that the Chairman
will arrange an externally faciitated evaluation process every
three years and the next such process will be conducted in
2017 facilitated by Egon Zehnder.

Standing committees of the Board

The standing committees of the Board are the Audit Committea,
the Nominations Committee and the Rernuneration Committee.
Each of these committees operates under written terms of
refarence which dlearly set out their respective delegated
responsibilities and authoritiss. The full terms of reference

of these committess are pant of the Governance Frarnework.
The committees report to the Board on their work, nomally
through their respective chair, following each mesting.

Separate reports from the committees appear in this Annual
Report as follows: Audit Committee Report on pages 55 to 57;
Nominations Committes Report on page 58 and Remuneration
Committee Report on pages 58 to 71.
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Audit Committee Nominations Committee Remuneration Committee
Ross Mcinnes Lord Smith of Keivin Bob Stack
Chairman Chalnman Chalrman
Membership: Membership: Moembaership:
= Caii-Peter Forster + Cerl-Peter Forgter * Cart-Peter Forster
* Birgit Nevgaard * Ross Mcinnes » Birgit Nergaard
+ |sobel Sharp « Birgit Nergaard
¢ Isobel Sharp
= Bob Stack
Main responsibifitins: Main responsibliities: Main responsibliities:
Fanancial raporting » Board and commities composiion « Define and recommend the remuneration policy

= Oversight role in relation to financial staternaents

* Rgviewing significant areas of judgement and
socounting policies

+ Reviewing the proposed statements on
going concem and viability to appear in the
Arnwal Report

» Advising the Board on whather the draft Annual
Report is fair, balanced and undarstandable

= Monttoring announcements in mespect of
financial perfornance

Financial control and risk

* Reviewing the effectiveness of internal
financial controls .
*» Reviawing financial rigk inchading fraud risk
* Oversight of internal sudit

= Managing the external audit process, its objectivity,
effactiveness and cost

* Appointmant of tha auditor and responsibility

for the audit fee

* Reviewing the system for coniidential
whistieblowing and the treatment of
reporis received

» Succassion plans for the Board and for senior
management and corporate roles

» Search for and recommendation of canclicates
for appointmant as non-axecutive cirectors, Chief
Executive and other exacutive director positions

» Diversity policy and monitoring of progress

» Review and recommenciation of proposals for
tha assignment of major executive responsibilitios
and the appointment and removal of divisional
business leaders

» Determine the individual remuneration packages
for the most senior executives and the Chalrman
within the policy approved by shareholders

+ Set annual and long-term incentive metdcs and
awards and determine the outcomes

*» Report on remuneration matters and constructively
engage with shaneholders

* Assass rigk in respect of remuneration and
Incentive structures in particular
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Corporate Governance Report (cont’d)

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is chaired by the Chief Executive and
the other members are shown on page 9. Regular attendees
include the Head of Group Finance, Director of Risk and
Compliance, and the Head of Investor Relations. Other senior
executives and ine managers from around the Group are regularty
called upon to attend meetings of the Executive Committes. The
Committee meets monthly and more often as may be required.

The Executive Committes is the senior Management body and
as part of the broad remit set by the Chief Executive it monitors
and manages business performance, reviews progress against
strategic ohjectives and considers divisional management issues.
it also formulates budgets and proposals on strategy, policy and
resource aliocation for consideration by the Board. The Executive
Committee is a Managernent committee which takes its authority
from the Chief Executive and is not a committee of the Board.

The Executive Committes plays a key part in risk assessment,
risk management and monitoring processes and receives
regular reports on health and safety, compliance, legal and
corporate affairs.

Investor relations

The Board as a whole seeks to maintain a balanced
understanding of the issues and concemns of major shareholders
and to assist them in the stewandship of their investments.

The Chief Executive and Finance Director have primary
responsibikty at Board leve! for investor relations ank they,

and the Head of Investor Relations, report to the Board

on shareholder issues at every Board meeting during the

ysar. Financial analysts’ notes are circulated to the directors

and the Board receives regular feedback reports from the
Company's brokers and public relations advisers as well as from
Management, Dialogue is maintained with sharsholders and the
axecutive directors meet regularly with institutional investors:
during 20186 there were over 130 such meetings with institutional
shameholders, The Chairman and the senior independent director
also are available to shareholders as needed and both have had
contact with investors during the year.

The 2016 Annual General Meeling was presided over by the
Chairman and attended by all of the directors. The Chairman
encouraged debate and questions at the formal imeating and
the directors met shareholders infformally afterwards. Each
substantively separate issue was put to the Annuat General
Meeting as an individual motion. A resolution for the approval
of the Directors' Remuneration Report was also put to the
meeting. Notice of the Annual General Meeting was issued
more than twenty working days in advance and the levet of
votes lodged for and against each resolution, logether with
details of abstentions are shown on the IMI website. The Board
values the support of shareholders and the poll results for all

- resolutions proposed at the Annual General Mesting were well
above 90% in favour in each case.’

in addition to the Annual Report, the Company issues
prefiminary results and interim results announcements, as

well as two interim management siatements between results
announcements. The IMI website includes recordings of certain
key presentations made by senior Management, recent annual
and interim reports, interim management statements, other
corporate announcements and links to the websites of the
Group's businesses.

The Cormpany has arranged a dealing service for the convenience
of shareholders with Equiniti (details are shown on page 156).

A sponsored Level 1 American Depositary Receipt programme
has been established for which Citibank, N.A. acts as depositary
{details can be found on page 156).

b
John®O’'Shea

Group Legal Director and Company Secretary
23 February 2017
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Audit Committee Report
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Ross Mcinnss
Chairman of the Audit Commitiee

Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to present my third report as Chaiman of the
Audit Cormmittes. This report is intended to give an account

of the Committee and its activity in support of the Board.

The core responsibiiity of the Committee is oversight in relation
fo financial reporting, internal financial controls and assurance
provided by internal and external audit.

Composition of the Audit Committee

Birgit Nergaard, Carl-Peter Forster, fsobel Sharp and | were
members of the Audit Committee throughout the year. Al of the
Committes members ane reganded by the Board as independent
non-executive directors. | have chaired the Audit Commitiee
since 1 January 2015 and became a member on 1 October
2014. | was a career finance director until my retirement from
executive office with Safran in 2015 and | have significant
recent and relevant financial experience. | also chair the audit
committees at two French public companies, Faurecia SA and
Eutelsat Communications SA. My colleaguss on the Committee
have experience at audit committes level and Isobel Sharp

is a Chartered Accountant with a strong financial assurance
background through her career in audit practice. Together

the Committee members have the skills, experience and
objectivity to be an effective audit committee and constructively
challenge Management.

The Committee generally asks the following to join its meetings:
the Chairmnan, the Chief Executive, the Finance Director, the
Head of Group Finance, the Director of Risk and Compliance,
the Group Assurance Director and the extemal auditor, EY.

| consult with the Finance Dirsctor and other key staff and with
the external auditor ahead of meetings to ensure issues are
waell understood and the mesting papers are appropriate.

The Committee holds at lsast part of several meetings each yaar
alone with the external auditor and with the Director of Risk and
Compliance and the Group Assurance Director. The Committee
has the powers to call on any employess to come before it.

The Secretary to the Committee is the Company Secretary,
who is also the Group Legal Director.

Main areas of activity

The Audit Committee met four times in 2016, including

two results reporting meetings and two planning and

review mestings.

Financial controls continued to be a key focus area for the
Committee and Management has continued to make significant
progress in strengthening internal financial controls and risk
management processes. Based on Iits review of selected key
controls, EY agreed with Management's assessment that the
level of control effectiveness at full and specific scope locations
remains high at 98%. The IT investment and infrastructure
programme will further strengthen the control environment in the
years ahead and facifitate efficiency improvements in the audit.

The Committes has received reports on the six-monthly
Internal Control Declarations which are submitted by each
business unit and cover intamal controts in refation to financial
affairs, [7, human resources and other key areas. The process
is managed by Group Assurance, which routinely audits and
follows up declarations to review scores and appropriate
improvement actions.

The Committes’s work aiso included reviewing the firancial
statements, tha effectiveness of infemal financial controls and
assurance processes and the significant issues of judgement
described below.

The Committee reviewed and approved for submission to the
Board the statements on going concern and viability, which
appear in the Directors' Report on pages 132 to 135.

The Committee remit calis upon it to advise the Board in
relation to the fair, balanced and understandable requirerments
in respect of the Annual Report and the Committee has

made a positive report 10 the Board in this connection. This

is also an area for review by the auditor in relation to which

it did not report any exceptions. The statement of Directors’
responsibifities on page 136 includes confirmation by the
Board that it considers the report and agcounts, taken as

a whole, to be fair, balanced and understandable.

During the year, the Committee received a technical and
governance update covering changes in accounting standards,
developments in audit reform and other key topics.

anny apcindion




56 M1 pic

Audit Committee Report (cont’d)

Attendance
Director Audit Committee % attended where
mesatings efigible
Cari-Petor Forster 4/4 100
Ross Mcinnes 4/4 100
Birgit Nergaand 4/4 100
Isobet Shamp 4/4 100

Oversight of financial reporting

The Committee acts in an oversight role in respect of the
Annual Report and announcements with financial content all of
which are prepared by Management. The Committee received
reports on the annual and interim financial statements from
Management and the extemnal auditor who presented to its
meetings. The auditor's report including a summary of key
areas of audit focus is set out on pages 137 to 143, ’

Significant judgements related to the financial statements

In preparing the accounts, there are a number of areas requiring
the exercise by Management of judgement and estimation.

The Committee reviews the most significant accounting areas
involving such judgements and estimates and these are
described below.

impairment of goodwill and intangibles arising from
acquisitions

Woe considered the level of goodwill held on the Group's balance
sheet in respect of a number of past acquisitions and whether,
given the future prospects of these businesses, the value of
goodwil in each case remains appropriate.

The Committes reviewed the assumptions and calculations
used by Management in the assessment of any impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets and agreed that no impairment
charges were required save for a £5m charge in respect of
Stainless Steel! Fasteners Limited. Impairment was also a
focus area for EY which reported its findings to the Committee.
Section 3.2 to the financial staterments on page 97 provides
details regarding the Group's intangible assets and goodwill
and the impaiment charge mentioned above.

Revenue recognition

The Committee discussed the timing of revenue recognition
on some of the Group's larger contracts. In addition, this is an
area of audit focus on which EY reported to the Committee.
Having reviewed Management’s process and EY's report,

the Committee concluded that revanues wene appropriately
reflected in the financial statements. Section 5 note C to the
financial statements on page 127 provides further information.

The Committee aiso reviewed Management's assessment of the
impact of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’
which is discussed further in Section 1 on page 84.

Pensions accounting

The Committes reviewed the appropriateness of the accounting
treatment in respect of pension scheme liabilities, including the
actuarial assumptions used and the impact of one-off special
pension events. The Committee also reviewed reporting from
the external auditor, which concurred with the accourting

for pensions as proposed by Management, The Committee
supported Management's on-going effort to de-risk its pension
obligations. Further detalls can be found in Section 4.5 on
page 114,

Inventory valuation

The Committee reviewed the judgements applied to standard
costing valuations and provisions against excess and cbsolete
inventory and concurred with Management'’s assessment.
This was another focus area for EY, in respect of which it
reported to the Committee that inventory valuation across the
Group is considered appropriate. Note 3.1.1 to the financial
statements on page 96 provides details of inventory valuation.

Other judgement areas

In addition the Committes reviewed tha appropriateness of
restructuring costs disclosed as exceptional, property sales and
the adequacy of taxation provisions. Further details on these
matters can be found in Sections 2.2 and 2.4 respectively.

External audit independence and performance review

The Committee approved the proposed external audit approach
and its scope based on the size and level of risk of the entities
concerned. The Committee takes a risk based approach to
audit and other assurance activity. The key audit risks identifiec
by EY are set out in its report on page 137 and were reviewed
by the Committee in approving the audit scope and plan.

The Committes considered the independence and objectivity
of the external auditor. In assessing auditor independence the
Committee had regard to the Financial Reporting Council's
latest best practice guidance for audit committees. n addition,
tha auditor confirmed that its ethics and independance policies
complied with the requirernents of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales,

The policy on the use of the auditor for non-audit work was
reviewed and updated by the Committee in 2016 to take
account of developments in regulatory requirements and ethical
guidelines for the audit profession. The policy requires approval
by the Committes for any non-audit engagement which is

more than trivial. The Finance Director monitors any proposed
non-audit engagement of EY and refers to the Committee

for approval as appropriate. The policy does not allow work

to be placed with the auditor if it could compromise auditor
independence, such as, functioning in the role of management
or auditing its own work. Non-audit fees paid to the auditor were
£0.2m (2015: £0.2m), which represents 8% of the audit fee and
demonstrates the tight control which is maintained in this area.
No non-audit engagemsnts involved fees above £30,000 and
the main areas of activity were tax compliance and the interim
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results review. We are of the view that the level and nature of
non-audit work does not compromise the independence of
the extemal auditor.

Banchmarking of the audit fee was conducted to ensure that
it is appropriate and competitive ar the Committee approved
the proposed audit fee payable to EY.

We formally reviewed the effectiveness of the external audit
process. A questionnaire was used to review the external
auditor and was completed by each member of the Committee
and by the Finance Director. Feedback was also received from
the Chief Executive, the Head of Group Finance, Group and
Divisional Management. The output from this process was
considered by the Committee and was provided to the external
auditor. As a result of this exercise the Committee befleves

the external auditor's performance has been satisfactory and
the external auditor is consicered to be effective. To further
enhance the external audit process, certain improvement
actions were identified in the effectiveness review and plans
have been put in place by EY to address these. These included
a focus on improving continuity of staff and earfier completion
of certain locations statutory accounts.

Auditor ¢choice, tenure and tendering

The Committee recommended and the Board approved

the proposal to re-appoint EY as the external auditor at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. EY was first appointed
as auditor for the year-ending 31 December 2003, following

a competitive tendering process, after which it replaced the
previous auditor. The term of appointment is annual and there
are no contractual restrictions on the Committes’s choice

of auditor,

To maintain the objectivity of the audit process, the external
audit partner responsible for the Group is rotated within EY
at least every five years and the current Senior Statutory
Auditor, Andrew Walton, has now been in place for four
years and will change following completion of the 2017 audit.
Succession planning has been carried out and a new audit
partner designate has been approved by the Committee.
New regulations for audit tendering and rotation of audit firms
have been introduced which require mandatory tendering
after ten years (i.e. ahead of the 31 December 2019 audit}
and a change of audit firm after 20 years {.e. ahead of the

31 December 2029 audit). The Committee does not cumently
intend to do so but reserves the right to run a tender for the
audit role at an sardier date if that is right for the Company and
otherwise, will conduct a tender by the regulatory deadiing.

internal audit

The Committee also receives reports from and monitors the
work of the internal audit function, known as Group Assurance.
Group Assurance reports through the Director of Risk and
Compliance to the Chief Executive. Group Assurance also has
adirect reporting line to the Committes. Assurance work is
primarity directed towards financial control audits but has been
broadened Into other areas including major business change

project planning and implementation and internal control
dedciarations. The principal projects reviewed in 2016 were
major computer systems implementations in each of the

three divisions.

Group Assurance is working closely with the divisions to
develop improved monitoring and review processes to
complement the internal and external audit coverage. The
annual plan and resourcing for internal audit were approved by
the Committee and take account of the enhanced monitoring
and review activity planned within the divisions.

The Commitiee reviewed the effectiveness of Group Assurance
with Management and received input from the external auditor.
The Commitiee was pleased to note the contribution that
Group Assurance had made to the further strengthening of
internal financial controls during the year.

Compliance hotline

The Committee reviews the operation of the independent
compliance hotline for reporting concems, oversees the

more significant reports received and considers how these

are investigated and followed up. We believe that the hotline
process and invastigations are effective and that proportionate
action is taken by Management in response.

Committee evaluation

The Audit Committae reviewed its own performance and terms
of reference and received positive feedback from the evaluation
exercise carried out in relation to the Board and each of its
standing committees.

The Committee approved the foregoing report on its work.

e

Chairman of the Aulfit Committee
23 February 2017

Yours faithfully

uonanpoqul
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Nominations Committee Report

-

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman ¢f the Nominations Committee

Dear Sh‘areholder

Composition

Carl-Peter Forster, Ross Mcinnes, Birgit Nergaard, Iscbel Sharp,
Bob Stack and | were members of the Committee throughout
the year. All of the other members of the Committee are
regarded as independent non-executive directors,

Attendance
Director Nominations % attendad where
Committee meetings eligible
Carl-Peter Forster 33 100
.Ross Mcinnes a3 100
Birgit Nergaard 3/3 100
Isobel Sharp 33 100
Lord Smith 3 100
Bob Stack 3 100
Main areas of activity in 2016

No new directors have been appointed during the year. All of
the directors are recommended for re-election at the 2017
Annual General Meeting. The Board approved all of the
recommendations made by the Committee for the renewals
of appointment for continuing directors. Other key areas of
activity are described below.

Succession planning

The Commiittee reviews Board composition and has formulated
a structured, medium-term plan for Board succassion. During
the year we reviewed talent development and succession
planning for the top 230 roles in the Group with the support

of the Chief Executive and Group Hurman Resources Director.
We were encouraged to see that significant progress continues
to be made in terms cof cultivating a pipeline of high-calibre
talent. Further details of the Management succession planning
process are set out in the Corporate Resporsibility section on
pages 28 to 37. The Committee noted the Financial Reporting
Council's 2016 feedback statement on UK Board succession
planning as a useful point of reference.

Review of time commitments and contributions

The appointments of the Chairnan and non-executive directors
are made on the basis of a formal letter of appointment including -
a stated minimum time commitrnent judged appropriate by the
Committee. The Commitiee considers that the time given to IMI
by each non-executive director is sufficient. The Board is satisfied
that | have the necessary time to devote to my role as Chairman.

Diversity

The Board recognises the benefits a diverse pool of talant can
bring to a boardroom and remains committed to increasing
diversity in the businesses by voluntary measures. We will
continue to review the composition of our management teams
and the Board to ensure that we have the right mix of skills and
experience while maintaining our effectiveness and execution
capabilities. At Board level, there are six nationalities, two of the
five non-executive directors are famale and there is a broad mix
of backgrounds and experience. Further information on diversity
matters is given in tha Corporate Responsibility section on
pages 28 to 37.

Committee svailuation

The Nominations Commiittée reviewed its own performance

and terms of reference and recsived positive feedback from the
evaluation exercise caried out in respect of the Board and each
of its committess. Following the Board evaluation in 2015, the
Committee membership during 2016 has included all of the non-
executive directors and an update on Nominations Committee
best practice was provided for the expanded Committee.

The Committee approved the foragoing report on its work,

Lord Sm lvin
Chairman of the Nominations Committee
23 February 2017
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
Annual Statement from the
Chairman of the Committee

Bob Stack
Chalrman of the Remuneration Committee

Dear Shareholder

2016 was the second year under our remuneration policy
following its approval by sharehclders in 2015. In line with

last ysar's approach and to simplify this year's report, our
approved remuneration policy can be found in the 2014 Annual
Report on the IMI website. Our focus this year has been
twofold: 10 ansure consistent application of our policy and to
ensure remuneration arrangements remain appropriate in light
of the continuing tough economic and market conditions.

2016 has been a challenging year for IMI with continued
difficult economic and market conditions putting pressure
on the Group's ability to deliver progress in many of the

key financial measures. It is pleasing 1o report that many of
the longer term actions have been executed well and the
new product pipeline, operational improvements and ERP
implementation have all made excellent progress in the year.

Group profit before tax has decreased by 5% to £208m while
organic revenue was lower by 5% 10 £1,649m. EPS was also
lower by 4% in 2016 and shareholders received a dividend of
38.7p - an increase of 1% from last year.

Despite the challenges encountered, we remain focused

on executing our strategy, investing in the business and
capitalising on long-term growth opportunities. In particular,
the investments made over the course of 2015 and 2016 give
us improved potential to grow shareholder value in the long-
term and we remain confident that we are well positioned to
capitalise on future market recovery. The Committee believes
that the remuneration arrangements in place will continue to
support the strategic business plan and ensure a strong focus
on growth and efficiency.

How were pay outcomes linked to performance in 20167

Remuneration for the executive directors is closely tied

to business performance, with a high proportion of total
remuneration delivered through variable pay linked to our
strategic pian. At IMI we remain committed to a pay-for-
performance philosophy and as a result of the performance
challenges | have outlined, the outcomes under our variable
pay schemes ara below the on-target level,

Annual incentive awards to executive directors for 2016 were
based on a combination of Group profit before tax (40%),
organic revenue growth (20%), cash conversion (20%) and
strategic and personal objectives (20%). Although only
threshold levels were achieved in respect of Group profit before
tax and organic revenues, above larget levels were achieved
for cash conversion. which together with achievernant against
strategic and personal objectives resulted in the annual
incentive bonus payments, and consequently the single total
figure, being marginally higher than last year. The Committee
is confident that this reprasents a fair reflection of performance
in the context of the aforementioned challenges faced by the
business. Summary outcomes against financial targets are
presented in the chart below:

Target Maximum
Group profit
bafors tax 16%
Organic revenus
growth 2%
Cash conversion 2%

Additional to the annual incentive awards is the IMI incentive
Ptan, which is further explained on page €6. This plan was only
implemented in 2015, the first vesting of the award will be in
2018. MW Selway and R M Twite were granted a matching
share award and performance award in 2014 and the awards
vested at 0% and 0% respectively. -
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
Annual Statement from the Chairman of the Committee (cont'd)

]
What decisions were made in 20167

The Committee reviewed remuneration arrangements for

the executive directors during the year and decided that no

change to remuneration policy or to structure in 2016 or 2017

is appropriate or necessary.

The Committee reviewed the base salary levels for executive

directors in light of 2016 business performance and concluded

that an increase of 2%, effective 1 January 2017, was

appropriate and in line with the wider employee workforce.

The Chairman and non-executive director fees were also
reviewed and were increased by 2%, effective 1 January 2017.

Looking forward

The Committee will keep the axisting remuneration policy under
review to ensure it continues to support IMI's strategic
objectives. With this is mind, it is noted that the remuneration
policy was last approved by shareholders in 2015 and is due to
be reviewed before a policy is put to the 2018 Annual General
Meeting. This policy review will be a key area of focus for the
Committee ahead of the 2018 Annual General Meeting.

Yours faitwfly

Bo C

Chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee
23 February 2017
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Annual Remuneration Report

introduction

The Committee presents the Directors' Remuneration Report, which will be put to shareholders for an
advisory (non-binding) vote at the Annual General Mesting to be held on 4 May 2017. The report inciudes
details of the Committee, the pay received by our executive directors during the year in accordance with
our current remuneration policy (approved on 7 May 2015) and comparative internal and external data.

The Remuneration Committee (‘the Committee’)
Composition

The members of the Committee throughout the year were
Bob Stack (Chairman), Carl-Peter Forster and Birgit Nergaard.
In accordance with the 2014 UK Corporate Governance
Code, all of the non-executive direciors were regarded by

the Board as independent.

The Committee determnines the remuneration policy and rewards
for the execiitive directors and, in his absence, the Chaimnan.
The Committee also reviews the remuneration packages

of those at the next maost senior level of management and

has considered the levels of pay across the broader Group.

A copy of the Committee’s terms of reference, which are
reviewed annually, is included in the IMI Corporate Governance
Framework and available in the Comporate Governance section
of the IMI website.

intaral advisors to the Committee

During the year, the Committee consulted the Chief Executive,
regarding the packages of the other executive directors and
senior managers. It also received support from the Finance
Diractor, the Group Human Resources Director, the Head

of Group Reward and the Company Secretary, who is also
secretary to the Committee. None of these individuals were
involved in determining their own remuneration.

External advisers to the Committee

Indepandent remuneration consultant, Willis Towers Watson,

is formally appointed by the Committee and provided advice
on directors’ remuneration to the Committee in 2016. The
Committes noted that the firm are actuaries and administrators
for the IMI Pension Fund, The Commiittee is comfortable that
these activities do not represent a conflict of interest and that
objective and independent advice continues to be received

by the Committee from the dedicated team senvicing it at

Willis Towers Watson.

During 2016, Willis Towers Watson has also supported
management on some broader reward and human resource
matters. The fees charged by Willis Towers Watson in respect
of advice and services to the Commitiee totalled £50,000
and for support to management totaked £17,000 in 2016.
Willis Towers Watson are signatoties to the Remuneration
Consuitants' Code of Conduct in the UK.

A summary of the Commitiee activities during 2016

The Committee had three formal meetings during the year,
and each was attended by all members. The principal agenda
iterns were as follows:

= a review of total compensation packages of the executive
directors and the most senior management of the Group
to ensure alignment with IMI’s strategic growth plan;

« approval of achievernents and cutcomes under the
incentive plans;

« consideration of the fees for the Chairman;

* setting the framework and target levels for the 2016 incentive
cycle including review of the perforrnance targets attaching
to the 2017 long-term incentive plan awards;

» approval of the granting of share awards to executive
directors and certain other levels of management;

= a review of the UK corporate govemance environment
relative to remunaration;

* 3 risk review of the remuneration framework;

+ a review of the engagemant of the independent remuneration
consuitants to the Committee; and

* a review of the Committee’s own performance, constitution
and terms of reference.

Attendance
Director Remuneration % attended
Corvmnittee moetings ~ whern eligible
R J Stack 3 100%
C-P Forster 3 100%
B Nergaard 3 100%

Voting outcome at the 2016 Annual General Meeting

The following table summarises the dstails of votes cast for
and against the remuneration report resolution including those
votes withheld. The Committee was plsased with the level

of support shown by shareholders and will continue

to consider the views of, and feedback from, shareholders
when setting and reporting on remuneration arrangements.

Directors’ Remuneration Votes for Votes against  Votes withheld
Report

Annual Remungration Policy 98.73%

1.27% 2,408,779
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Annual Remuneration Report (cont'd)

Executive single figure table (audited)

Annual Other itoms In the natyum
Fisiad pay variable pay Long-tarm variable pay of
{E000) (£000)
Subtots)
Anrvasl Matching  Performance fong-term All- Dividend
Taxabie incentive Pian Sham variabis equivalent Tots
Pirector Base sy Penslon banefits bonus {SMPY) Ptan [PSP) pay | sharplans payments ®ook)
: Pages Pagea
Ses page Page 64 Page 64 Page 65 8510 66 Page 67 67 1o 68 Page 63 Page 50
2016 785 2% 42 ™ 38 k- 4 - 1888
M W Selway
20156 70 23 50 811 . - ] - 1887
2018 454 158 19 3n - - 4 - 7
R M Twite
28 445 158 19 L 136 - 135 4 - 53
2016 410 82 M 252 - - 4 - 782
D J Shook
2018 0 80 100 13 . - - - m

R M Twite served on the Board of Halma pic during the year and received fees of £51,000 in respect of this appeintment which he retained.

These figures have been calculated as follows:

Basa salary: the aclual salary receivable for the year.
Pension: the cash aflowance paid in lieu of pension.
Taxatie banefits: the gross value of all taxabte benefits [or benefits

that would be taxable in the UK) received in the year

Annual incentive bonus:  the valua of the annual incantive payable for
performance In respect of the ralevant financial
yaar (hatf of this is automatically dalivered In shares
when the executive does not meet the share
ownership requirement),

Share Matching Plan: the valua on vesting of the matching sharaes that
wara subject to parformance over the three-year
period ending on 31 December in the relsvant financial
yoar (see share price assumptions adjacent}.

Performance Share Plan:  the value on vesting of shares that were subject
to perfommance over the three-year perod ending
on 31 December in the relevant financia) year
(see shara price assumptions adjacent).

Share price assumptions

. All-employes sham plans:

Dividend equivalent
payments:

for shares vesting in 2017, that related to performance
in the three years to 31 December 2016, the average
share price over the final three months of 2016
1,007.51 pence is used to estimate the valug of shares
on vesting. For shares vested in 2018, relating to
performance in the three years 1o 31 December 2015,
previously reported figures* are updated 10 reflact the
actual sham price on the date of vesting (825.50 pance
for the Share Matching Plan and 938.00 pence for the
Perforrnance Share Plan).

the value of free shares at award and dividends undar
the Employee Share Ownership Flan In the relevant
financial year and the Intrinsic value of Save as You
Earn ghare options on the date of grant in the relavant
financial year {apphving a 10% discount as permitted
under the Save as You Eam Share Plan).

the value of dividend equivalent shares on vested but

unexercised awards under the share plans, valued at
the price on the dividend payment date.

1 The average shara price over the final three months of 2015 (840.93 pence)

was used.
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Comparative data of pay spend
The following information is intended to provide additional context
regarding the total remuneration for executive dinactors.

Reiative importance of pay spend
2016 2015  Changs
(£m) (Em)
Acquisitions - - 106.2 -100%
Dividends T 1042 1025 2%
Total employment costs for Group 566.6 508.2 1%

{see Section 2.1.3.1 on page 89)

In 2016, the total dividend for the year of 38.7 pence represented
an increass of 1% over last year's 38.4 pence.

Relative percentage change in remuneration for
Chief Executive

The Committee actively considers any increases in base
pay for the Chief Executive relative 1o the broader emploves
popufation. However, benefits and bonus payments are not

Historical performance and remuneration

In addition to considering executive remuneration in the
context of interna! comparisons, the Comimities reviews
historical outcomes under the variable pay plans.

The graph below compares IMI's total shareholder return
(TSR} to the FTSE100 over the last eight years. We compare
performance to the FTSE100 as IMI has been included in the
index in the past and it is a position where IMI aspires to ba. -
TSR measures the raturns that a company has provided for
its shareholders, refiecting share price movements and
assurning reinvestmerit of dividends {source: DataStream),
with data averaged over the final 30 days of each financial year.

As the graph below illustrates, iMi's absolute and relative TSR
performance has been strong over the last eight years. This is
reflected in the outcomes under our variable pay plans, which
are largely driven by the financial performance of the Group
and IMI's share price.

Value of a hypothetical £100 investment

a0
typically compared given they are driven by a far broader froa N
range of factors, such as local practices, eligibility, individual o0 / \
circumstances and role, £500 P
. / \./’
Chief Executive Employees’ - S~
Base salary 2% 2% = i _ .
Benefits -16% 5% w0 e @
Annuat bonus 28% T% o

' All UK head office employess. This comparison axciudes our international
workiorce which we feal would not provide a tnwe comparison given ciffering
local market factors.

2008 2008 210 2011 anz 1] 2014 200 2018
Bl = -=-aFTSEIN
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Annual Remuneration Report {cont'd)

|
The following table summanses the total remuneration for the Chief Executive over the last eight years, and the outcomes of short

and long-term incentive plans as a % of maximum.

Financial year-ended 31 Decamber 2009' 2000 2011 202 2ny 4 205 2016
Total remuneration 2,547 4,439 12,289 7.954 6,888 1,567 1,667 1,886
[single figure, £000)

Annusl variable pay 9% 95% 85% 47% 82% 36% 40% 50% .
(% of maximum}

Long-term variable pay B54% o7% 95% 100% 100% - - -
(% of maximum) -

Share Matching Plan

Long-term variable pay 45% 100% 100% 100% 82.6% - 3.5%
(% of maximum) -

Pearlormance Share Plan

' Represents remuneration for M J Lamb who was Chisl Executive from before 2008 uniit 31 December 2013,
? Represents remuneration for M W Selwey who wes appointed Chief Executive on 1 January 2014,

Executive remuneration received in respect of 2016

Base salary

Salaries effective January 2016 were agreed taking into account
a range of factors including the prevaifing economic conditions,
the financial performance of the Group and salary increases

for other employees. The average increase for employees

was 2.7%, compared to 2.1% for the executive directors.

M W Selway's, R M Twite's and D J Shocok’s salaries were
increased by 1.9%, 2.0%, and 2.5% to £785,000, £454,000
and £410,000 respectively.

Pension

Executive directors are entitied to receive a taxable cash
allowance instead of pension benefits. With the Committee’s
approval the executive directors may, at their discretion,
redirect part or all of therr alowance into any defined
contribution pension arrangement in the country in which they
are contracted. M W Selway receives a cash aflowance of 30%
of salary and D J Shook receives & cash allowance of 20% of
salary. R M Twite receives a cash allowance of 35% of salary
as a legacy obligation from his appointment as an executive
director which continues to be honoured.

Pension benefits for past service

R M Twite was previously an active member of the defined
benefit IMI Pension Fund, He opted out with effect from

1 February 2007, bafore he became an executive director
and as a result, he retains past pensionable service up

to that date in the IMI 2014 Deferred Fund {'the Fund').

The key elements of the benefits in the Fund are
summarised below:

» the normal retirement age under the Fund is 62 and
R M Twite may retire from employment with IMI any
time after age 60 without actuarial discount;

« on death after retiremant, a dependant's pension is
provided equal to 50% of the member's pension;

= should he die within the first five years of retiremert,
the dependant's pension is increased to 100% of the
member's pension for the remainder of the five year period; and

* pensions in payment, in excess of any guaranteed minimum
pension, are increased each vear in line with price inflation
up to a maximum of 5% in respect of pension built up before
1 January 2006, and 2.5% in respect of pension built up
after 1 January 2006.

Accrued pension Accrued pension

in the Fund as at in the Fund as at

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

£000pa £000pa

A M Twite 0 69
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Benefits Annual incentive bonus

During the year the executive directors received a number of The 2016 bonus plan focused on the financial performance of
benefits. These are summarised below and amounts less than IM! during the year, considering Group profit before tax (40%),

£10,000 p.a. are combined. organic revenue growth (20%), cash conversion (20%) and
strategic and personal objactives (20%). Health and safety —
M W Salway A M Twite D J Shook will serve as an undemin to ensure bohuses are only paid
6 5 e s e ams Ot when minimum standards are achieved. g
Hon-cash benefiis (E000) 2016 was a challenging year for IMI with difficult economic and
o ) ; " 2 " » market conditions contributing to waaker than targeted financial E’_
results when compared to 2015; ) H
Cash benefits and taxsbie allowances f000 * Group profit before tax decreased to £208m in 2016 from
Company 20 2 17 7 % 14 £219m in 2015, representing a 5% decrease;
pobiotig * Group revenue decreased by 5% on an organic basis
compared to 2015;
roeaten i : . : T «cashconversion was 95%, compared with 97% in 2015;
s 2 » . i s " e the total dividend for the year increased by 1% compared
Total a2 50 19 18 L7 100 to 2015; and o
» strong performance for health and safety with leading <
In addition to the above benefits and allowances that are measures showing benefits from lean and HSE integration
inciuded in the single figure {refer to table on page 62), ¥ the year.

the executive directors are also beneficiaries of company policies
that have no taxable value, including directors’ and officers’
insurance, death in service cover, travet insurance, the use

of a company driver and personal accident cover.

=
O

Summarised in the table below is the achievement against Group targets set at the beginning of the year slongside the resulting
contribution to bonus payout.

Annual bonus metrics® 2018 Actual Payout as & Weighting as a Contribution 2
performance performance® percentage of  percentage of total to payout as a -]
required maudmum bonus opportunity percentage of g_
maximum bonus -
opportunity
Group profit before tax Threshold £172.5m £180.4m 16% 40% 6%
Target £197.2m
Maxirnum £216.9m
Group crganic Thrashold £1,454m £1,486m 39% 20% 8%
revenue growth T o
Maximum £1,534m
Group cash conversion  Threshoid 76.0% 95% 2% 20% 18% -
hown|]
(FY figurea s ) Target 89.0%
Maximum 98.0%

'R M Twite's annusl bonus opportunity is dependent on a combination of Group (35%) and Critical Enginesnng {45%) financial objectives in ling with his mole's
responsibiiities. The Committes believas that the divisional targets are commercially sensitive and these are therefore nict disclosed in the table above.

2 Actuat performance is stated at the exchangs rates used in the targets.
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- ]
In addition, each executive director has a number of personal objectives agreed with the individual during the first quarter of

the financial year, and which pertain to areas directly within their remit. The Committee seeks to set personal objectives that are
demanding and measurable, and in all cases they are subject 1o a robust and rigorous validation exercise at both the half and

full year which take into account multiple points of reference, These personal objectives and the Committes’s assessment of

each executive director's performance against them is described below. ’

Individual performance metrics 2016 performance required Payout as a Weighting as  Contribution to payout
percentage of a psrcemiage u3 a percentage of

maximum of total bonus . maximum bonus

opportunity oppoftunity

Individual performance objectives M W Selway: 59.2% 20.0% 17.8%

are robustly set and are customised  Opjectives included areas such as organisation,
for each individual, All ocbjectives strategy, financial integrity and specific projocts.
are measurable and are pbjectivaly

detemined, individual objectives for gy T pe: 56.6% 20.0% 19.3%
2016 were built around the Group’s
key porformance indicators. PS  Otjectives inchuded arsas such as diversity,

strategy, core process and specific projects.

D J Shook: - B6.0% 20.0% 17.2%

in aggregate this resuited in the following annual incentive bonus cutcomes:

2016 maximum Total bonus Tota! bonug Achievernent of share Bonus delivered Bonus delivered

bonus opportunity awarded (£000) awarded ownership guidelines in form of cash In form of shares

(% of salary) [% of salary) at 31 Dec 2016" {2000} (£000)

M W Selway 200% 78 100 21% 390 ao
A M Twite 150% 3an . 60 141% 311 -
D .J Shook 126% 252 81 16% 126 128

' Exacutive dinactors are subject o guideines which require them to bull! a shareholding in IMT worth at lesst 250% of salary for M W Salway, 150% of salary for D J Shock and
200% of salary for R M Twite. When assessing compliance with this guideline the Commitiee reviews both the level of beneficial share ownership and vested but unexercised
share incentive awards on & post-tax basis. Although M W Setway and D J Shook continug 10 make progress towards this guideline, and have a material interest In the
Company's shares (as can be noted In the table on page 70), as a consaquence of awards not having vested the Committes has determinad that half of the annual bonus
payable 1o M W Selway and D J Shook shall be delivered in shares which must be heid for a period of at least three years and untll the shareholding guidefine has been met.

Share interests granted 10 executive directors during 2016 (audited)

Grants made under the IMI incentive Pian ('IP’) The following grants were approved and made in 2016:
Grants under the lIP were made on 9 March 2016 in the form

of nil-cost options. Awards are due to vest on ¢ March 2018, ": m Value on m Award as &
subject to performance in three core areas alighed to our oo | salery
longer-lerm strategic priorities: retum on capital employed MW Selway 219007 1962 0%
{25%), refative Total Shareholder Return {25%) and Group . !
profit before tax growth (50%). R M Twite 98,553 208 200%
The performance targsts that apply to the 2016 IP awards are D J Shock 8.5 618 150%
as follows: ' Tha three cay average mid-merket price on the date of sward was 921.33 pence.
ROCE Relative  Group profit Level of
TSR before tax vesting The IIP iz also used to grant deferred bonus awards exercisable
growth after three years 10 satisfy annual bonuses delivered in the form
Threshold 40% Median 25% 2%  of shares. Details of these acditional IP awards made in 2016
Maximum 50% Upper 7.5% 100% are shown in the table on page 70 under the "without
Quartie performance conditions' column.

Weighting 25% 26% 50% -
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Awards vesting under legacy share plans

The Share Matching Plan {('SMP'} - the last grant made under
this plan was in 2014 and it will vest in April 2017, '

M W Selway and R M Twite received an award under the SMP
in April 2014,

Vesting was subject to the achieverment of an Economic Value
Added (‘EVA’) performance condition, measured over the three
years ending 31 Decemnber 2016. The calculation of EVAis
based on segmental operating profit after tax with appropriate

adjustments, less a capital charge on the invested capital
in the business reflecting IMI's cost of capital.

The performance measure considered compound annuat

" growth in EVA over the three financial years from 2014 to

2016 compared to EVA in the preceding three financial years.
Awards lapse for negative compound growth. However,

for positive growth between 0% and 6%, 10% to 25% of
matching shares vest; and for growth between 6% and 17%,
25% to 100% of matching shares vest. Within each range,
vesting is calculated on a straight-ne basis,

Over the period IMI delivered compound annual EVA growth of -5.6% based on three-year EVA from 2014 to 2016 of £479.7m
compared to three-year EVA from 2011 to 2013 of £570.3m. The resultant vesting outcoma in April 2017 is nil:

Shares Inftial  Value on date Number of Additional Total matching  Value of matching
investod bythe . matching of award’ matching shares dividend shares vesting  shares on vesting’
executive award (£000) vesting equivalent {£000)
shares
M W Selway 8,528 28,146 380 . -
R M Twite 17,358 85,404 976 -

1 The mid-market price on the date of award was 1,490.00 pence.

* Awards will lapse in fult on 1 April 2017 as a result of the EVA performance threshold not having been mat.

The Performance Share Plan ("PSP’) — the last grant macle
under this plan was in 2014 and will vest in March 2017.

In March 2014, awards were made to M W Selway and R M
Twite with vesting of the awards subject to the achievernent
of three independent performance conditions: EPS growth
{50%), relative TSR (25%) and organic revenua growth
(25%), measured over the three-year period ending

31 December 2016.

On appointment (1 October 2013} M W Selway was made
an award under the PSP worth 2009 of salary subject to
four independent performance conditions: TSR (20%)
measured over the period 1 October 2013 to 30 September
2018, organic revenue growth (20%), EVA (20%) and EPS
{40%) each measured over the percd 1 January 2013 to

31 December 2015. The award vested in October 2016,

» EPS growth
Under the PSP, EPS is defined as adjusted basic eamings
per share before the post-tax impact of any reported
exceptional items, which may include impaiment losses,
profit/ loss on disposal of a subsidiary, rationalisation costs,
acquired intangible amortisation and IAS 39 charges or
credits for changes in the fair value of financial instruments.
EPS was chiosen as an appropriate measure because it
rewards absolute growth in undertying earmings and because
the Comnittee believed it worked well in combination with
TSR which is an external, relative measure of performance.

Growth of 6% per annum would trigger the minimum level of
vesting (25% of the EPS element), increasing on a straight-
lina basis such that the EPS element of the awards were
eligible to vest in full for EPS growth of 15% per annum,
Over the three year period ending 31 December 2016 IMI
deliverad EPS growth of -10.9% per anhum, decreasing
EPS from 72.6 pence in 2013 10 a comparable 51.4 pence -
at the end of 2016° Over the three year period ending 31
December 2015 IM defivered EPS growth of -5.7% per
annum, decreasing EPS from 64.7 pencein 2012*to a
comparable 54.2 pence at the end of 20153,

3 Acjusted for 2014 share consolidation and the acquisition of Bopp & Reuthar.
“ Adjusted for IAS 19.

¢ Relative TSR

TSR is defined as the movement in share price during

the parformance period, measured in local cumrency, with
adjustments to take account of changes in capital structure
and dividends, which are assumed to be reinvested in shares
on the ex-dividend date. TSR was chosen as a measure as it
is an extarnal, relative benchmark for performance that aligns
executives’ rewards with the creation of shareholder value.

The October 2013 and March 2014 peer groups sach
comprised of the companies shown on page 68, adjusted
to take account of merger and acquisition activity during
the performance period in line with the Committee's
established guidelines.
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At the end of the three-year performance periods ending
30 Septernber 2016 and 31 December 2016, the Company
ranked 34 and 35 respectively in the peer groups. The
Committes was in agreement that the outcomes under

the TSR measure was reflective of the general underlying
financial performance of the Company.

* Organic revenue growth

Organic growth is calculated as an average annual growth
rate, 10 encourage continued focus on organic growth.
Revenue is defined as segmental revenues before exceptional
items adjusted, at the Committee's discretion, to exclude the
impact of material acquisitions and disposals by the Company
completed during the performance period and to remove the
impact of exchanga rate movements.

Organic revenue growth of 2.7% per annum would trigger the
minimum level of vesting (25% of the organic revenye element)
increasing on a straight-line basis such that this element of
the awards were cigible to vest in full for growth of 8% per
annum. Over the three year period ending 31 December 2016
iMI delivered growth of -2.5%. Over the three year period
ending 31 Decamber 2015 M| delivered growth of -0.7%.

Economic Value Added ('EVA)

Vesting in respect of the 2013 PSP award made to
M W Selway was subject to the achievement of an EVA
condition, measured over the three years
ending 31 December 2015, The calculation of EVA is based
on segmental operating profit after tax with appropriate
adjustments, less a capital charge on the invested capital in
the business reflecting IMI's cost of capital. The performance
measure considered compound annual growth in EVA over the
three financial years from 2013 to 2015 compared to EVA in
the preceding three financial years, Awards lapse for negative
compound growth. Howewver, for positiva growth between 0%
and 6%, 10% to 25% of shares vest; and for growth between

UK us

BBA Avistion Borgwarner
Bodycots Eaton

Cobham Emerson Electric
GKN Flowgerve Corp
Halma Honeywesll
Johnson Matthey IDEX

Meggitt Ingersoll-Rand
Rotork llinois Toot Works
Spactris Johnson Controls!
Spirax-Sarco Enginsering Manitowoe
Vesuvius Parkar-Hannlfin
Weir Group Pentair

Japan Continental Europe
Amada Atlas Gopco

Fanuc Heidelberg Druckmaschinen
NSK Metiso Corporation
SMC Sandvik

THK SKFB

Yaskawa Electric Sulzer AG

' Johngon Contrals acquired Tyco Ilemational in Saptember 2016.

6% and 17%, 25% to 100% of the shares vest. Within

each range, vesting is calculated on a straight-line basis.

As disdlosed in last year's report, over the period ending 31
December 2015, Ml delivered compound annual EVA growth of
2.9% based on three-year EVA from 2013 to 2015 of £657.4m
compared to three-year EVA from 2010 to 2012 of £511.5m.

The 2013 PSP award in respect of M W Selway will vest only in relation to the EVA target having been met to an extent and
consequently will vest at 3.46%. The 2014 PSP award in respect of M W Seiway and R M Twite will lapse in full as a result of the

performance thresholds not being met.
Inkial award Value on date of Number of Additionat dividend Total shares Value of shares on
award® shares vesting equivalent shares vesting vesting
{£000) (£2000)
M W Selway 98,792 1,500 3418 339 3,757 38
2013
M W Selway 75,950 1,114 - -
2014°
A M Twite 29.300 430 - -

204

7 The three day average rmid-market price on the date of the 2013 and 2014 awards was 1,515.33 pence and 1,467.00 pencea respectively.
2 awards will lapse in full on 11 March 2017 as a rasult of the performanca threshokis not having been met.
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All-employee share plans

Executive directors are eligible to participate in the all-empioyee share plans on the same terms as other eligible employess at IMI.
In 2016, M W Selway, R M Twite and D J Shock received free share awards under the All Employee Share Ownership Plan.
D J Shook received Save As You Eamn awards in 2016 of 2,129 shares.

ANl Employee Share Ownership Plan SAYE
Dividend Total value under
Number of shares Value of free Number of options Value of SAYE the ali-employee
awarded share award' awarded . options? {£000) share plans {£000)
(£000) {£000)
M W Selway i 3% : - :
2015 289 4 836 1 5
2016 383 4 - . 4
A M Twite
: 2015 269 4 - - - 4
2016 242 2 2,129 2 - 4
D J Shook

¥ In 20116 pe shams were awarded at a share price of 980.71 pence {1,245.00 pence in 2015).
2in 2016 SAYE awards were made at a 10% discourtt and the value shown is the intrinsk: gain at the date of the grart, calculated in accordance with the

single figure raquirements {on page 62), See Section 4.7.1 on page 122,

Dividend payments

Under the SMP and PSP, dividend equivalent payments are
made on vested but unexercised share awards, which take the
form of nil-cost options. Dividend equivalents, while notionally
tracked by W from grant to exercise, are not paid or transfemed
to the participant until the point of exercise. These have been
included in the single figure {the table on page 62) based on
the number of dividend equivalents notionally accrued in the
financial year, valued at the price on the dividend payment date.
Any residual cash is rolled over and applied to the subsequent
dividend equivalent purchase.

Paymenls to past directors {audited)

It is the Committee’s intention to disclose any payments to past
directors, including the vesting of share-based awards post
departure on a basis consistent with the executive directors.

As all of the subsisting SMP and PSP awards made to D M Hurt
in 2014 (who retired from the Board on 7 May 2015) have lapsed
in full due to the minimum performance thresholds outlined
above not being met, there were no payments to past directors .
during the year.

Dividend equivalent payments for vested but unexercised
nil-cost option awards will continue to be made to past
directors under the terms of the original grant.
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Chairman’s and non-execulive directors’ single figure table [audited)

The foliowing table summarises the total fees and benefits paid to the Chairman and non-executive drectors in respect of the
financial years ending 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

Director 2016 {£000) 2015 (£0D0Y

Base fees Adcitional fees Total Base fees Addiional fees Total
Lord Smith of Kelvin 306 ans 195' . 186
C-P Forster 6t 81 80 - 60
B Nergaard 61 81 ] - 60
R J Stack 6t ' 267 a7 60 2x 82
A Mcinnes 6t 18 77 60 L ]
1 Sharp 61 8 200 - 20

! Joined the IMI Baard in 2015 snd became the Chaimnan at the 2015 AGM. Anmuslised fee for the Chalrnan In 2015 was £300,000.
?Includes fees tor being Chaiman of the Remuneration Commitise and Senior Independent Director.

3inciudes feas for being Chaiman of the Audit Commiitee.

+ Joined the IVl Board on 1 September 2015 and is a member of the Audit Committes.

Directors’ sharsholdings and share interests (audited)

The following table summarises the share interests of any director who served during the year as at 31 December 2016 or at the date
of retirement from the Board.

During the period 31 December 2016 to 23 February 2017 there were no changes in the interests of any cument director from those
shown save for purchases within the IMI All Employee Share Ownership Plan on 10 January 2017 of 12 shares on behalf of MW
Selway, R M Twite and D J Shook at 1,067p per share and 14 February 2017 of 10 shares on behalf of each of M W Selway,

R M Twite and D J Shook at 1,216.75p per share.

Director Total Benaficial Schame interests
interosts interasts Nil-cost options All-employee
With performance conditions Without performance conditions share plans
Unvested Vested but Unvested Vesied but
unexercised unaxerciced
M W Seiway 567.765 8,335 496,087 3,757 57,457 1,149
R M Twite 408,925 120,354 281,751 - - - 6,820
D J Shook 135,426 4,000 120,014 - 10,914 - 488
Lord Smith of Kelvin 8,300 B.300 - - - -
C-P Forgter 2,825 2,625 - - - -
B Norgasrd 2,625 2,825 - - -
A-J Stack 13,125 13,125 - - - -
R Mcinnes 3,000 3,000 - - - -
| Sharp 3,000 3.000 . . - - -

From 2015, the Committee requires M W Selway 10 build up a shareholding of at least 250% of salary, 200% of salary in the case
of R M Twite and 150% of salary for D J Shook, 1o mirror the IMI Incentive Plan award. At the end of the year R M Twite significantly
exceeded the share ownership guideline.




Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Application of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy in 2017

Service contracts

The unexpired terms of the non-executive directors’
service contracts can be reviewed in the Board's Corporate
Governance Report on page 49.

Executive director fixed pay .
Salaries effective January 2017 were agreed taking into
accourtt a range of factors including the prevailing economic
conditions, the financial performance of the Group and salary
increases for other employees.

The average increase for employees was 2.6%, compared
10 2.0% for the exeCutive directors. M W Selway's, R M
Twite’s and D J Shook's salaries were all increased by 2% to
£801,000, £463,000 and £4 18,000 respectively.

Other elements of fixed pay (benefits and pensicn) will remain
unchanged.

incantive pay
Annual bonus

In accordance with the approved remuneration policy, the
annual bonus plan will be operated as follows in 2017:

* as in 2016, the 2017 maximum bonus opportunity is set
at 200% of salary for M W Selway, 150% for R M Twite
and 125% for D J Shook;

¢ as in 2016, the annual bonus for M W Setway and D J Shook
will be subject to performance in Group profit before tax
(40%), organic revenue (20%), cash conversion (20%) and °
strategic and personal objectives (209%}. Health and safety
will serve as an underpin to ensure bonuses are
only paid out when minimum standards are achieved;

# as in 2016, the annual bonus for R M Twite in 2017 will
be subject to performance in Group profit before tax
(35%), Critical Engineering operating profit (15%}, Critical
Engineering organic revenus {15%), Critical Engineering
cash conversion (159%) and stratagic and personal
objectives (20%); and

+ the Committee has determined that the targets
associated with the parformance measures will be disclosed
retrospectively on the same basis and to the same extent
as for 2016 targets (see annual bonus metrics table on
page 65).

IMI Incentive Fian (‘IP’)

In accordance with the approved remuneration policy,

the IIP will be operated as follows in 2017:

* 2017 awards are set at 250% of salary for M W Selway,
200% for R M Twite and 150% for D J Shook; and

= awards will vest subject 1o performance in three core areas
aligned to our longet-term strategic priorities: retum on
capital employed (25%), relative Total Shareholder Returmn
(256%) and Group profit before tax growth (50%).

The performance targets that will apply to the 2017 IIP awards
are as follows:

RAOCE Reistive  Group profit Level of
TSR before tax vesting
growth
Threshold 40% Madian 2.5% 25%
Maximum 50% Upper 7.5% 100%
quartile
Waighting 26% 25% 50% -

Fees for the Chairman and non-executive directors

The Chairman and non-executive directors’ remuneration
increased by 2%, effective 1 January 2017. This is in line with
the executive directors and the wider employes workforce.

Share ownership for the Chairman and non-axecutive directors

The Chairman and non-executive directors are encouraged to
hold some shares in IMI within a reasonable period after their
appointment. As at 23 February 2017, the Chairman and
non-executive directors hold IMI shares as set out in the

table on page 70.

Bob Stack fﬂ&%

Chalrman of the Remuneration Committea
for and on behalf of the Board

23 February 2017
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Financial statements
Finance Director’s Introduction

Introduction from Daniel Shook
Dear Sharehoider
Welcome to the financial statements section of our Annual Report.

My financial review commentary is set out in this section alongside the primary statements. These financial statemants are prasented

with the primary staternents first, followed by five sections: ‘Basis of preparation’, ‘Results for the year’, 'Operating assets and

liabilities’, ‘Capital structure and financing costs’ and 'Other notes”.

IMI continues to enhance its averall control environment and financial risk management. Operational improvements in the year have
plivefed further working capital reductions and the Group's pension position remains strong despite adverse discount rate and

pénts during the year.
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Notes to the financial statements provide additional information required by statute, accounting standards or the Listing Rules to
explain a particular feature of the financlal statements. The notes that follow will also provide explanations and additional disclosure
to assist readers’ understanding and interpretation of the Annual Repaort and the financial staterments.
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2016

206 2015
Exceptional Exceptionst
Reported tams Statutory Raported ftams Statutory
Notes m m m £m fm £m
Revenue 2.1 1,649 8 1,857 1,557 10 1,567
Segrmental operating profit 21 227.7 227.7 239.4 2394
Reversal of net economic hedge confract losses 2.21 5.8 5.6 7.8 76
Restructuring costs 2.2.2 (3.5 (18.9) (22.3) 2.1} {27.1) {29.2)
Gains on spacial pension events 223 28 2.8 8.1 2.1
Impairment losses 2.2.4 (5.0) (5.0} - -
Acquired intangible amaortisation 224 (20.5) {20.5)} {32.2) (32.2)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 2.2.5 - - 0.4} {8.4) 8.8)
Operating profit 224.2 {35.9) 188.3 236.9 (51.0 185.9
Financial income 4.3 4.5 12.6 17.1 3.2 20.9 24.1
Financial expense 4.3 {21.8) (19.4) 41.2)) 21.8) 259 (47.5)
Nat financial income relating 1o defined benefit pension schomes 4533 1.9 1.1 0.2 0.2
Net financial expense {16.2) {8.8) (23.0) (18.2) 5.0} {23.2)
Profit before tax 208.0 {42.7) 165.3 218.7 (56.0) 162.7
) Taxation 245 {43.7) 116 (32.1) {48.1) 8.7 (39.4)
Profit from continuing operations after tax 164.3 {31.1) 133.2 170.6 (47.3} 123.3
Profit from discontinued operations after tax 25 - - 6.7 6.7
Totat profit for the year 164.3 {31.1) 133.2 170.6 {40.6) 130.0
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent 161.8 130.8 168.2 1276
Non-controling interests 4.8 24 2.4 24 24
Profit far the year 164.3 133.2 170.6 130.0
Eamings per share 23
Basic - from profit for the year 50.8p 48.3p 82.2p 47 2p
Diluted - from profit for the year 59.4p 48.0p 61.7p 46.8p
Bask: - from continuing operations 59.8p 48.3p 62.2p 44.7p
Diluted - from continuing operations 59.4p 48.0p 61.7p 44.4p
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Commentary on the consolidated income statement

Results summary

Reported revenue increased by 6% o £1.649m (2015: £1,557m). After
adjusting for a favourable exchange rate impact of £179m and the contribution
from acquisitions and disposals, organic revenue decreased by 5% raflecting
difficult market conditions, particularly in Critical Enginearing which continues
10 be impactad by the low ol price.

Segmental operating profit of £228m (2015: £233m) fell by 5% on a reported
basis and by 17% at constant axchenge rates and excluding acquisitions and
disposats. The segmental oparating margin was 13.8% (2015: 15.4%). Further
information on the each of the division's segmental resuilts is included within
the performance review section on pages 22 to 27. Statutory oparating profit
was £188m (2015; £185m) afier the deduction of excaeptional items which

are discussed in maone detail below,

Reported net interest costs on net borrowings were £17m (2015:; £18m),
reflecting the repayment of US$75m of borrowings in July 2016. These were
covered 16 times (2015: 15 times) by continuing earnings before interest,
tax, depreciation, amortisation, impaiment and exceptional items of £273m
{2015: £275m). The net pension financing income under IAS 19 was £1.1m
(2015: £0.2m).

Profit before taxation and exceptional iterms was £208m (2015: £219m),
a decreasa on the pravious year of 5%.

The effective 1ax rate for the Group before exceptional items reduced 10 21%
(2015: 22%). The tolal reported tex charge for the year on continuing operations
was F44m (2015: £48m) and continuing reported profit after tax was £164m
2015: £171m). The Group seeks 10 manage its tax affairs within its core tax
principles of compliance, faimess, value and transparency, in accordance with
the Group's Tax Policy which is explained further in Section 2.4,

Exceptional tems

Operating profit was £188m (2015: £186m) after the deduction of exceptiona!
iterns which are discussad below:

Reversal of net economic hedge contract losses

For sagmental reporting purposes, changes in the fair value of economic

hadges which ane not designated as hadges for accounting purposes, together '

with the gains and losses on their settliements, ane included in the segmental
revenues and opereting profit of the relevant business sagment. The exceptiona!
item at the operating level revarses this treatment and the loss of £6m (2015:
£8m) and records a charge within interest {see Section 2.2.1).

Restructuring costs

The restructuring costs treated as exceptional in 2016 of £18m (2015: £27m)
are as a result of a number of significant restructuring projects across the
Group, in particutar within Critical Engineering and Precision Enginesring.
This restructuring is explained in more datail in Section 2.2.2 on pega 90.
Restructuring costs of £4m (2015: £2m) that arose from nomal recurring
cost raduction exercises have not been treated as exceptional,

Pensions

During 2016, following the conversion to a non-inflation inked pension for
cartain membars of our UK Funds, an exceptional net gain of £6.1m was
reafised. In addition, following further restnuctuning exenciees in Switzerland,
& curtailment gain of £1.4m was recognised. These exceptional gains were
partially cffzet by an exceptional loss of £4.7m relating to the distribution of
pansion assets 1o members from our previously overfunded Swiss schemes.

impairnent and acquirad intangible amortisation

The Group mcorded an exceptional impairment charge of £5m (2015: i)
agalnst the goocwill essociated with the Stainless Steel Fasteners ['SSF')
CGL in the IMI Critical Engineering division. Acquired intangible amortisation
decreased to £21m (2015: £32m) folkowing the full amortisation in 2015 of
the order book acquired from Bopp & Reuther.

Loss on disposal of subsigianies

There were no disposals of subsidiaries during 2016,

Financing costs

A net charge arose on the revaluation of financial instruments and derivatives
under IAS 39 of £7m {(2015: £5m)} principally reflecting movemants in exchange
rates during the year on forward foreign exchange contracts.

Taxation
An exceptional tax credit of £12m (2015: £9m) arose in connaction with
business restructuring and other exceptional items.

Profit from continuing operations after tax and items
Profil after taxation and exceplional iterns was £133m (2015: £123m).

Eamings per share {‘'EPS")

The Board considers that a more meaningful indication of the undadying
psriormance of the Group Is provided by reportad earnings per share. Detalls
of this calculation are given in Section 2.3 to tha Group financial statements
on page 91. Reported EPS was 59.8p, a decrease of 4% on last year's 62.2p.
Statutory basic EPS was up 2% to 48.3p {2015: 47.2p) and statutory diluted
EPS was up 3% to 48.0p (2015: 48.8p).

Exchange rates

The most important foreign cumencies for the Group remain the euro and the
US dollar and the relevant average rates of axchangs for the consolidated
income staternent were:

2016 2015
Euro 1.22 1.38
US dokar 1.36 1.53

The movemant in average exchange rates between 2015 and 20185 resulted in
our raported 2016 revenue baing 11% highsr and segmantat operating profit
being 13% higher as the average auro and US dollar rates against sterfing
wore 12% and 11% stronger, respeciively.

If the exchange rates as at 6th February 2017 of US$1.25 and €1.16 were
projected for the full year and applied to our 2016 results, it is estimated that
reported revenue would have been 6% higher and sagmental operating profit
would have been approximately 7% higher.




Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Profit for the year

tems reciassified to profit and loss in the year

Foreign exchange loss reclassifiad to income statement on digposal of operations

ftems that may be reciassified to profit and loss

Change in fair value of effective net investrnent hadge derivatives

(2.8) (REY)]

Exchange differences on transiation of foreign oparations net of hedge setiiernents and funding revaluations 394 29

Fair valus loss on avalable for sale financial assets

- a.n

Relatad teax effect on items that may subsequently be reclassified 1o profit and ss

0.6 (1.8

37.2 (1.4)

Itema that will not subsequently be reclassified to profit and loss

Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans

8.2 278

Related taxation effect

15.3 5.8)

Taxation in relation to restructure of UK Pengion Fund

(2.5 1)

Effect of taxation rate change on previously racognised items

®5.4) 1786

Other comprehensive (sxpense)income for the year, net of taxation

28.2) 8.2

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of taxation

105.0

Attributable to:

Owners of the parent

102.6 135.8

Non-controling interests

24 2.4

Total comprehensive incoma for the year, net of taxation

105.0 138.2

Commentary on the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity

Movernents in sharsholders’ aquity

Shareholders® equity at the end of 2016 was £543m {2015: £546m). Movements

in shareholders' equity can be spiit into three categories:

« tha proft for the year atirixtable to the equity shareholders of £131m (2015:
£128m). This is discussad on the page opposite the income statement.

= gther comprehensive INCOMa movernents in the year daceased sharsholders’
equity by £28m (2015: £8m increase). Thase ane discussed below.

* movements teien directly 10 equity in the year reduced sharsholders' equity
by £106m (2015: £99m). These are discussad overleaf.

Other comprehansive income

When the Group makes unrealised gans or losses on assets and labiities,
instead of being necorded in the income statement, they are credited or
charged to reserves and recorded in the statement of comprehensive income,
In accordance with the amendment to IAS 1, these Harms are aliocated between
those itams that have been rediassified to the income statement, thosa that
may be reciassified to the income staternent and those itemns that will not
subsequently be reclassified to the income statement.

Any net invastmant hedge derivatives which have not settied by the year-and
are marked to market on the balance sheet at the year-end and the movemenis
ane recorcied in the hedging reserve. This movement ks also included in other
comprehansive income and in 2016, amounted 10 a loss of £2m (2015: £10m
loss) including the related taxstion effect.

The Group's foreign denominated net assets are transiated into sterfing using
axchange rates prevailing at the year-end. To the extert that thase differ from the
rates used at the previous yeer-end to transtate net assets at that dale and from
the average exchange rate used to transiate foreign denominated income during
the year, a difference on reservas anises, which is included in other comprehensive
income, along with the settiement of net investment hedge darivatives and
revaluations of foreign debt, which are ussd 1o protect the Group from this
exposure, Thase terns (including the related texation effect) anounted to a
gain of £38m in 2016 (2015: loss of ni).

Movernents in avaltable-for-sala assels, which ame principally used to fund defined
benefit cbiigations in the US, are also reconded in ather comprehensive income and
amountad 10 a gain of nil (2015: loss of £1m) including the related taxation effect.
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Consolidated statement of changes in eqmty
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Share Capital Total Non-
Shara preiln  redamption Hedging  Transtation Retained parant  controling Total
caphal account regarve reservg Tesarve eamings Uity Imerasts aquity
£m m fm fm B £m om m
As at 1 January 2015 a1z 108 174.4 10.7 (0.4} 232.1 5093 448 554.1
Proft for the year 127.6 1276 24 130.0
Other comprehensive income/{expensa) {10.1) 1.8 16.5 8.2 82
Total comprehensive incoma/{expensa) {10.1) 1.8 144.1 1358 24 138.2
Issue of share capital 0.1 1.0 ) 1.1 14
Dividends. paid 162.5) (102.5) - "[102.5)
Share-basad payments (net of tax) 0.1 0.1 0.1
Shares issuad by:
employea share scheme trust 2.3 23 23
Income eamed by partnership 4.4) (4.4)
As at 31 December 2015 81.8 118 1744 06 1.4 2761 546.1 428 588.9
Changes in aquity in 2018
Proftt for the yoar 130.8 130.8 2.4 133.2
Other comprehensive incoma/{expense) {2.2) 30.4 (65.4) {28.2) - {28.2)
Total comprehensive income/{expense) 2.2} 354 85.4 102.6 24 105.0
tasue of share capital - 0.3 0.3 0.3
Dividends paid {104.2} (104.2) {0.8) {105.0}
Share-based payments (net of tax) 5.8 5.8 5.8
Shares acquired for:
smployss share scheme trust {7.4) 7.4) (7.4)
Income eamed by partnership . . {4.4) 4.4)
As at 31 Decamber 2016 81.8 121 1744 (1.8) a0.8 236.7 543.2 40.0 583.2

Actuara movements in the Group's defined benefit pension obligations are also Tha cradit for share-based payments, which reverses the £6m (2015: £1m)
recorded in other comprehensive income. The Group compleled a bulk insurance  charged through the income statement in the year, thereby deferring the reduction
buy-in exarcise in relation 1o certain members of the UK Funds during the year in reserves untl such time Bs the options are exarcised, is also recognised here,
and the diffierenca batween the value of the fabiities Insured and the cost of the 1opether with the reversa of the associated nil tax credit {2015: £1m).

premium 1o insure them has bean recognisad in other comprehensive income.
Thase movements are explained in detail in Section 4.5 on page 114, Together The charge to reserves reiating 1o the purchase of shares by the employee trust fo

- . ) . satisfy share options, nat of amounts mceived from empioyees presenting the
with the taxation effect, the loss in the year was £63m (2015: £22m gain). price on for jons was £7m (2015 £2m credt), refer to
tams recognised directly in equity 4.6 for more infomnétion.

Maovemnents in reservas which reprasant transactions with the shareholders of
the Group are recognised dwectly in equity rather than in the income statement
or through other comprahensive iNcome.

0.1m (2015: 0.2m) shares wene issued during the veer, realising £0.3m 2015:
£1.0m) in the share capital and share premium account.

The 2015 final dividend of 24.5p per share and the 2016 interin dividend of 14.0p
per share wera paid during the year (2015: 2014 final dividend of 24.0p and 2015
interim dividend of 13.9p), which reduced squity by £104m (2015: £103m).
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Consolidated balance sheet
At 31 December 2016

2018 2015
Notes £m om
Assets
intangible assets 3.2 521.2 457.2
Property, plart and equipment 33 266.2 230.8
Employes benefit assals 45 57.8 887
Defarred lax assets 24.7 228 19.8
Other raceivables . 57 4.6
Total non-current assats 873.7 801.1
Inventories 314 255.2 233.3
Trade and other recelvables 3.1.2 400.5 3514
Other cusment financial assets 448 29 28
Current tax 71 10.4
investments 446 20.9 270
Cash and cash equivalents 41 79.7 114.2
Total current assets 775.3 730.1
Total assets 16480 15402
Liabilities
Bark overdraft 4.1 (12.2) 6.4)
interest-besring Inans and borowings 4.2 68 541
Provigions a6 (18.9} 25.1)
Current tax (62.8) {44.6)
Trade and othar payables 3.1.3 4078 (342.1)
Other current financial iabikies 4.4.6 {13.5) ®.9)
Total current liabilities XN IEE
Interest-bearing loans and bormowings 4.2 {343.3) (260.6)
Employes benefit cbigations 45 (137.6) 84.3
Provisions 36 (19.1} 17.5
Deferred 1ax liabikties 247 {32.0} (53.5)
Other payables (10.7} 24.2)
Total non-current labilities {(542.7} {470.1)
Total liabilities (10658} (851.9
Net assets 583.2 588.9
Equity
Share capital 46.1 81.8 818
Share premium 123 118
Other reserves 2138 176.4
Retained eamings 235.7 276.1
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 543.2 546.1
Non-controlling interests 48 40.0 428
583.2 588.9

Taota) equity

Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 February 2017 end signed on its behalf by:

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman
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Commentary on the consolidated balance sheet

Not debt

Net dabt at the year-end was £283m compared to £237m at the end of the
previous year, largely neflecting the impact of sterfing depreciation on the Group's
suro and US dollar denominated deti. The net debit is composed of a cash
balance of E80m {2015: £114m), a bank overdraft of £12m {2015: £6m} and
Interest-bearing loans and borowings of £350m (2015: £345m).

The year-end net debt 10 EBITDA ratic was 1.0 times (2015: 0.8 times) based on
continuing EBfTDA before axceptional items. Following the repayment of US$75m
during the year, at the end of 2016 the lcan notas totaled £343m (2015:; £341m),
with a weighted average maturity of 4.3 vears {2015: 4.6 years) and other loans
including bank overdrafts totelled £20m (2015: £10mm). Total committed bank loan
faciities available to the Group at the year-end wena £301m (2015: £294m),

of which £nil (2015; £nil) was drawn.

intangible asssis

The valus of the Group's intangible assets increased to £521m at 31 December
2016 (2015: £457m) This increase was due 10 exchange gains of £75m (2015:
£9m loss) and adkiitions 1o imanglble assets of £24m (2015: £20m), partialy ofiset
by the amortisation charge for the year of £29m (2015: £38m) and impaiment of
£6m (2015: £ni).

Property, plant and aqguipment (‘PPE")

The net book value of the Group's PPE at 31 December 2016 was £268m (2015:
£231m). Caphial expenditure on PPE amounted to £47m (2015: £51m), with
significant capital expenditure on expanding cur existing manufacturing faciliies
in Garmany and China within IMI Critical Engineering and a revamped factory
layout which promotes operational excellence in the Czech Repubilic in Precision
Engineering. Including capitafised intangible assets, total caplial expenditure was
£71m (2015 £71m) and wag 1.5 times (2015: 1.9 twnes) the depredciation and
amortissiion charge (excluding acquired intangible armortisation) for the year of
£46m (2015: £38m).

Working capital

The increase in the Group’s trace and other recsivables of £49m is due to foreign
axchange movermnents of £56m, partially offset by favourable cash movements
of E7m.

The Group's inventory increased by £22m during the year due 10 foreign
axchange movements of £40m, pertially offset by favoureble cash movemerts
of £18m.

The Group's trade and other payables increased by £52m due to foreign
exchange movements of £47m and favourabls cash movements of £6m.

The working capital cash movements during the year are discussed in mora
detail in the namative opposite the consolidated cash fiow statement.

Taxation

The current tax asset reduced to £7m (2015: £10m) as the Group recovered
tax prepayrments from prior years, The cument tax Sability increasad by £17mto
£E2m {2015: £45m) due 10 currency movemnents and limitations an LUK double
tax refief against overseas tax fabiiies. Deferred tax assets increased by £3m
10 £23m (2015: £20m) and defemsd tax kablites decreased by £22m during
the yaar to £32m (2015: £54m). The significant movemenits, net of the effect of
foreign exchange movements, relate 1o the deferred tax recognised in respect
of the pension funds, the effect of the amortisation of intangible assets and the
rechuction of the provision for the tax effact of unremitted earnings of overseas
subsidlarias. Moma analysis of the deferred tex movement in the year is shown
in Section 2.4.7.

Pensions

The Group has 63 (2015: 63) defined benefit obligations in existence as at
31 December 2016. The Group recognises there is a funding and investimant
risk inherent within defined benefit aangements and seaks to continue its
pregramme of closing overseas defined banefit plans where possible and
providing in their place appropriate defined contribution arangements.

The net deficit for defined benefit obligations at 31 December 2016 was £80m
{2015: £4m surplus). The UK funds surpius was £24m as at 31 December 2016
{2015; £89m) and canstituted 88% (2015: 88%) of thg total defined banefit
liabilities and 94% (2015: 95%) of the tota) defined bensfit assets. The reduction
in the UK suplus in 2016 principally aross from actuaria losses of £76m related
to movements in the discount rate and activities during the year to further de-risk
tha position.

The deficit in the overseas funds as at 31 December 2016 was £103m (2015
£84m). The ncrease in the overseas deficit is predominantly as a esult of adverse
exchange movements of £15m during the year.

Details of movemants in actuarial assumptions are discussed in Section 4.5,

Foreign exchange and interest rate risk

Further information on how the Group meanages its exposure to thase financial
risks Is shown in Section 4.4 of the financial statements on page 105. The most
important loreign cumencias for the Group remain the euro and the US dolar
and the relevant ciasing rates of exchange for the balance shoot wene:

As at 31 December

2018 2015
Euo 147 1.36
US doSar 1.23 1.47
Return on capiial smpioyed

Post tax return on capital employed (ROCE") from continuing cperations was
12.5% compared to 14.3% in 2015, Continued investrnent in the business
in the year and tha underlying performance in 2016 has impacied the ROCE
metric alongside an acversa impact from the weakening in stering.

Dividend .

The Board has recommended a finat dividend in respact of 2016 of 24.7p
(2015: 24.5p) per share, an increase of 1% over the 2015 final dividend.

This makes the total dividend for 2016 38.7p (2015: 38.4p). The cost of the
final dividend is expected to be £67m (2015: £86m), leading to a total dividend
cost of £105m (2015: £104m} in respect of the year anded 31 December 2016.
Dividend cover basad on reported eamnings for the continuing businesses is
1.5 times (2015: 1.8 times). As detallad in note C9 of the Company financial
statemanis on page 148, al of the retained eamings at both 31 Decembar 2018
and 31 December 2015 are considered 10 be distributable reserves.

Whilst the Group does not have a formal dividend policy or payout ratio, the
Group’s &im is 10 continue with progressive dividends, which typically increase
at a steady rate for both the interim and final dividend paymants, with an
aim that the dividend should, through the cycie, be covered by at east two
timas reported earmings. In making its dividend recommandations, the Board
considers the levels of cash and debt within the Group, forecasted operating
and capital cash fiow requirements and the availability of distributable reserves.
The Board also monitors the Group's dividend cover based on reported
eamings for the continuing business. For more details refer 1o Section 4.4.4.4,

Share price and shareholder return

Tha share price at 31 Decembar 2016 was £10.40 {2015: £8.62) and the
evarape for the year was £9.69 (2015: £11.34) rapresenting an increass of 21%
anct decreass of 15% respectively. Based on the 2016 average share price,
the proposed total dividend of 38.7p epresents a yield of 4.0%.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2016

08 2015
£m m
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating proft for the year from continuing Operations 1688.3 185.9
Operating profit for the year from discontinued operations - 0.9
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 68.3 70.4
impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assats 8.0 8.8
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries - 8.8
Gain on special pension avants {2.8) 9.1)
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment {1.6) 8.9}
Equity-sattied share-based payment expenss 58 1.1
Decrease/{increasa) in inventories 175 3.5)
Decrease in trade and other receivables 6.3 20.2
Increasef{decreass} in trade and othar payables 5.5 {7.3)
[Decreasa)/increase in provisions and employes bengfits (8.6) 5.6
Cash generated from the operations 285.2 282.0
Income taxes paid (31.7) {35.2}
Cash generated from the operations after tax 253.5 245.8
Addtional pension scheme funding - UK and overseas (1.9) 2.9
Net cash from operating activities 251.6 242.
Cash flows from investing activities
Interast received 4.5 3.2
Proceads from sale of property, plant and equiprment 6.8 120
Purchasa of investments ©.4) 0.8)
Settlerment of transactional derivatives (2.4) 5.0}
Settlament of currency derivatives hedging balance sheet {41.8) 28.0
Acquisitions of subsidiaries net of cash - {106.2)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and non-acquirad intangibles (70.8) {70.6
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries net of cash - 06
Net cash from Investing activities {104.2) (137.8)
Cash fiows from financing activities
interast paic 21.8) 21.6)
Payment to non-controliing interest {4.4) {4.4)
Shares (acquired foriissued by employee share schemea trust 7.4 2.3
Proceads from the issue of share capital for employee share schemes 0.3 11
Net {repaymertidrawdown of bormowings {54.8) 107.9
Dividends paid 1o equity shareholdars and non-controlling interest (105.0) (102.5)
Net cash from financing activities {182.8) (17.9)
Net {dacreass)increase in cash and cash equivalants (45.5) 87.9
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 107.8 208
Effect of exchange rate fiuctuations on cash heid 5.2 {0.9)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year* 67.5 107.8

* Net of bank overdrafis of £12.2m (2015: £6.4m).

Notes 1o the cash flow eppear in Section 4.1.
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Commentary on the consolidated cash flow statement

2016 2015
Movement in net debt £m Bm
EBITDA* from continuing operations 273.0 2751
Working capital movemenis 20.8 18.4
Capital and daveloprnent expendituna (70.9) {70.6)
Loss on disposal of subsiciaries -1 0.4
Provisions arkl employes benefit movemnents™ 2.2 {4.1)
Other 16.2 13.0
Operating cash flow (pre-exceptional items)™* 2459 232.2
Exceptional items** (25.2) (9.6)
Operating cash flow (post-exceptional items) 220.7 222.6
Tax paid (31.7) 28.2)
Interest and derivatives {61.5) 56
Cash generation 122.5 192.0
Addttional penaion scheme funding {1.9) {2.9)
Free cash flow before corporate activity 125.6 189.1
Acquisitions (before net cash acquired) - (109.2)
Dividends paid 10 equity shareholders and
non-controfing interest (105.0) (102.5)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries - 1.4
Paymant 10 non-controling intarest {4.49) {4.4)
Net {purchasa)/issus of own shares {7.1) 3.4
Nat cash flow (excluding debt movements) 2.1 {22.2)
Opaning net debl (236.9) {200.0)
Net cesh disposed - 0-8)
Net debt acquired - (5.6)
Foreign exchange translation {54.8) (8.3)
Closing nst debt @826)) (238.9)

* Reported sarmings before interest (£18.2m), tax {£43.7m), depreciation
{£37.8m), amortisation (£8.0m) and impairment (£3.0m).
** Movament in provisions and employss benefits as per the statement of
cash flows (£8.6m), adjusted for the decrease in exceptional restructuring
provisions {€3,1m) and the decroase in provisions relating to discontinued

operations (£3.3m).

“** Operating cash flow {pre-exceptional items) is the cash genarated from

the operations shown in the siatement of cash flows less cash spant

acquiring property, plant and equipment, non-acquired intangible essats
and investments; plus cash received from the sale of property, plant and
equipment and the sale of investmeants, after adjusting for the cash impact
of exceptional lems. This measwe best refiects the underlying operating

cash fiows of the Group.

+++ Cash impact of exceptional items, inciuding an owtflow mlating to

restructuring costs of £21.9m and a cash outilow of £3.3m in relation

to discontinued operations.

Reconcillstion of EBITDA to movement in net debt

The Group's consolidated statament of cash flows is shown on the opposite
page, which reconcies the operating profit for the year 1o the change in cash
and overdrafis in the balance sheet as required for financial reporting purposes.

However, becaues the Group's debt financing alse includes other interast-
bearing liablities, it is more inaghtful to consider the effect of the transactions
in tha year on the net debt in the balance sheet. Accordingly, a reconciiiation
between EBITDA (pre-axceptional items) and nat debt is shown in the table to
the left, upon which this saction provides commentary.
Operating cash flow

The operating cash fiow (pre-exceptional itemns) was £245m (2015: £232m).
After the £25m (2015: £10m) cash outfiow from exceptional items, the
operating cash flow {past-axceptions! itams) was £221m {2015: £223m).
‘This represents a corversion rate of 1otal Group segmental operating profit
after rastructuring costs into operating cash flow of 107% (2015: 106%).

Nat working capital balances decrsased by £30m (2015: £18m) during the year.
Inventory decreased by £16m (2015: £4m increase) due to decraases in inventory
within Critical Engineering and Pracision Engineering. The Group's receivables
decreased by E7m (2015 £20m) as a result of both a reduciion in revenue and
increased efforts across the Group to improve the collection of recelvables.
Payables increased by £6m {2015: £7m decraass) due 10 payment timing

and proactive suppher term management across each of the divisions,

Cash spent on property, plant and equipment and other non-acquined
Intangibles in the year was £71m (2015: £71m) which was equivalent to

1.5 times (2015: 1.9 times) depreciation and amortisation thereon. Continuing
resaarch &nd development spend including capitaised intanglivie development
costs of £8m (2015: £5m) totalied £57m (2015: £52m),

In 2016 the Group paid tax of £32m (2015: E36m) which was 73% (2015: 75%)
of the reported tax charge for the year. This reflects the timing of estimated tax
payments on account and is discussed in more detall In Section 2.4.

in 2016 there was a £62m cash outflow (2015: £6m inflow} from interest and
derivatives, including a £42m outflow {2015: £28m inflow] from the settlement
of currercy derivatives hedging the balance sheel.

After payment of interest and tax, thefraecashﬂowgemrmed from operations
was £128m (2015: £192m).

Free cash flow before corporate activity

As noted in Section 4.5, following the special pension svents in Switzerland,
£2m of additional pension contributions were made. Free cash flow before
corporale activity wag £126m (2015: £189m).

Net cash outfiow {excluding debt movements)

Dividends paid 1o sharehoiders totelled £104m (2015: £103m} and themns was
a cash outflow of £7m (2015 £3m inflow) for net share punchasas to satisfy
employes share options,

The total net cash inflow (axciuding debt movemenits) was £8m (2015: outfiow
of £22m).

Closing net debt
The cpening net debt was £237m (2015: £200m). There were exchange rate
losses of £55m (2015: £8m), principally on US dollar and suro denominated
bormowings. After the net cash inflow in the ysar of £9m (2015: £22m cutfiow),
closing net debt was £283m (2015: £237m).
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Section 1 - basis of preparation

1.1
Introduction

IMI pic (the ‘Company’) is & comparny domiciled in the United Kingdom.

The consobdated financial statements of the Company comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the ‘Group’). The Company financial
statements presant information about the Company as a separate entity and
not about the Group. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Internatronal Fnancial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the EU and applicable iaw ('IFRSs’). The Company has elacted to prepare its
Parent Company Financial Staternents in accordance with FRS 101 arvl these
are presented on pages 144 to 148. The financial statements were approved
by the Board of Directors on 23 February 2017.

1.2
Basis of accounting

The financial statements are presented in Pounds Stering (which is the
Compary's functional cumency), rounded to the naarest hundred thousand,
excepi revenues, which ane rounded 1o the nearest whole milion. They are
preparad on the historical cost basis except that the following assets and
liabifities are stated at their fair value: derivative financial instruments; avalable-
for-sale financlal assets; financial asssets and labilties identified as hedged
iterns; and assets and kabilities acquired through business combinations.
Non-current assets and kabilities held for sale are stated at the lower of
their carrying amounts and their fair values less costs to sell.
Tha policies described in this saction and in the accompanying sections have
been applad consistently throughott the Group for the purpeses of these
consolidated financial statements except as discussed below. Refer (0 Section
5.4 for the Group’s significant accounting policies.
i) New or amended EU Endorsad Accounting Standards adopted

by the Group during 2016
The following amended standards were adopted in thesa financial statements
during 2018, none of which had ary impact.
* |FRS § ‘Non Current Assets Held for Sala and Discontinued Operations’
» [FRS 7 ‘Fnancial Instruments: Disclosures’
* IFRS 10 ‘Consofidated Financial Statemnents’
» IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of interests in Other Entities’
« |IAS 1 ‘FPrasentation of Financial Statements’
« IAS 18 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’
« IAS 19 ‘Emplovee Benefits’
* |AS 34 ‘Interim Financial Reporting”
« |AS 38 ‘infangibie Assets’

H) Issued Accounting Standards which are not sflective for the year
ended 31 December 2016

Tha IASB and IFRIC have issued a number of new acoounting standards and
amendments with an effective date afler the dale of these financial staternents.

* FRS 9. ‘Fnancial instruments’ {2014)

A finakised version of IFRS 8 was issued in July 2014, incorporating
recuirements for classification and measurement, impairment, general hedge
accounting and ition. The Group has completed an initial impact
assessment of IFRS 9 and noted that several of the Group’s equity investments,
currently held at historic cost, will need 1o ba recognised at fair value under
IFRS 9. In addition, the Group Intends to reassess the effectivenéss of its

cash flow hedging. The standard will be adopted from 1 January 2018,

¢ IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers' (2015)

IFRS 15 provides a single, principles based five-step madel to be applied 1o

all contracts with customers. Guidance is provided on topics such as the point
at which revenue is recognised, accounting for variable consideration, costs of
fulfiling and obtaining a contract and various related matters. New disclosures
aboul revenue are also introduced. The Group has completed an assessment
of IFRS 15 and concluded that the adoption of this standard on 1 January 2018
will not have a significant impact on the financial statements. In the vast majority
of cases, the contracts within the Group do not meet the ¢nteria under IFRS 18
for recognising revenue over fime and therefore wa will continue 10 recognise
revenue at a point in tims when control passes o the customer. Currently there
are certain isolated contracts within IMI Critical Engineering which would meet
the cntena for recognising revenue over time under IFRS 15. However, the
financial impact of changing the revenue recognition for these contracts is

not expected to be signdicant.

+ IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ {2015)

IFRS 16 provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessess to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months
or less or the underlying assat has a low vaiue. The Group has complated an
initiat impact assessment of IFRS 16 and noted that a significant portion of
leases curently accounted for as operating leases {thersfore off balance sheet)
would be recognised as assets with a corresponding liability under IFRS 16.
The standard will b adopted from 1 January 2019,
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Section 2 - results for the year

What you will find in this section

This section focuses on the resuits and performance of the Group. On the following pages you will find disclosures
explaining the Group's results for the year, including segmental information, exceptional items, taxation and eamnings * -
per share. You will also find a summary of the Group's alternative performance measures, including the definition of

each and the rationale for their use.

2.1
Segmental information

anﬁcmgwmmopéramgproﬂmIhetwosm—tmmmmmmmethmemeNmmorme‘
Group ts managed and monitored by the Executive Committes. In this section tha key constituents of thesa two KPI's, being the Group's reportad revenuss
and segmental operating profits, are analysed by referance to the performance and activities of the Group's segments and their operating costs.

2.1.1
Segmental information

Segmental information is presented in the consclidated financial staternents for each of the Group's operating sagments. The operating segment reporting format
reflects the Group's management and intermal reporting structures and represents the information that was presentad to the chief operating decision-maker,
being the Executive Commitiee. As described on page 2, each of the Group's three divisions has a number of key brands across iis main markets and operational

locations. For the purposes of aportable segmental iformation, operating segments are aggregated Into the Group's thwee divisions, as the nature of the products,

production processes and types of cusiomer are similar within each division. Inter-segment revenus is insignificant.

IMI Critical Engineering

IMI Critical Engineering is 8 world-leading provider of critical flow control
solutions that enable vital energy and process industries 1o operate safely,
cleanly, reliably and more efficiently.

IM] Precision Engineering
M Precision Engineering speciaises in developing motion and fiuid control

techrologies for applications where precision, speed and reliablity are essential.

IMI Hydronic Engineering

IMI Hydronic Engineering designs and manufaciures technologies which detiver
optimal and energy efficient healing and cooling systems to the residential and
commarcial bulding sactors.

Performance is measured based on reported segmental operating profit which
is defined in the table opposite.

Businasses entar into forward curmency and matal contracts to provide economic
hadges agalnst the impact on profitablfty of swings in rates and values in
accordance with the Group's policy to minimise the risk of volatiity in revenues,
costs and margins. Segmental operating profits are therefore charged/credited
with the impact of thesa contracts, in accordance with IAS 38, these contracts do
not meet the requiements for hedge acoounting and gains and l0sses are reversed
out of reported revenua and operaling profit and are recorded in net financial
income and expansa for the purposes of the consolidated income statement.

Alternative Performance Measures

To faciitate a more meaningful review of performances, cartain alternative
performance measues ('APMS') have been included within this Annual Report.
Thase APMs are used by the Exacutive Committee to monitor and manage the
performance of the Group in order to ensure that decisions taken align with

its long-term interests. These APMs exclude exceptional and other items in
ofder 10 bast reflect the undertying performance of the Group. Movements in
reported revenue and segmental operating profit are given on an organic basis
{see definition opposite) so that performance Is not distorted by acquisitions,
disposails and movements in exchange rates. For sach aliemative performance
measurs, the table opposite details tha definition and a reference to where it
can be reconciled to the equivalent statutory measure.

Reconciliation to
APM Definition statutory measure
Reported’ These measunas all exclude See income
revenue exceptional itemns. statement on
76.
Reported profi page 76
before tax
Reported eamings
per shara
Reported These measures exclude Sea income
segmental aexceptional items, undertying statement on page
operating profit restructuring costs and underlying | 76 and segmenigl
and margin gains and losses on disposal of reporting note in
subsidiaries. Section 2.1.1.
Organic Movemeants are after adjusting for | Sea segmental
growth excaptional items and the impact | reporting nota in
of acquisitions, disposals and Saction 2.1.1.
movements in exchange rates.
Operating Qperating cash flow is cash See cash flow
cash fiow generated from the aperations as | commentary on
shown in the statement of cash page 83.

flows fess cash spent acquiring
property, plant and equipment,
non-acquired intangible assets
and investmsnts; plus cash
received from the sale of
property, plant and equipment
and the sale of investments,
after agiusting for the cash
impact of exceptional tems.
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(cont’d)
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The followng table dlustrates how the results for the segments reconcile to the overall results reported in the income statement.

Reverue Operating proft” Cperating margin
208 2015 2016 2015 ne 2015
£m £m m om % %
Continuing operations -

IMI Critical Engineering 651 | 631 818 3.1 12.6% 14.8%

IMI Precision Engineering 708 662 110.5 117.7 16.7% 17.8%

IM( Hydronic Enginearing 290 264 51.9 51.8 17.9% 19.6%
Corporate costs (24.5) 23.2)

Total reported revenus/segmental operating profit and mangin 1,649 1,557 227.7 2394 13.8% 15.4%
Restructuring costs {non-exceptional) {3.5) {2.1)
Loss on disposa) of subsidiaries {nor-exceptional) - {0.4)

Total reported revenue/operating profit and margin 1,649 1,557 224.2 236.9 13.6% 15.2%
Reversal of net economic hedge contract l0sses 8 10 5.6 7.6
Rastructuring costs {18.8) (27.1)
Gains on special pension evenis 2.8 9.1
impairment losses (5.0 -
Asquirad intangible amortisation {20.5) (32.2
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries - 8.4)
Statutory revenue/operating profit 1,657 1,667 188.3 1859
Net financial expanse (23.0) {23.2)
Statutory profit before tax from continuing operations 165.3 162.7

The following tab Bustrates how revenue and operating profit have been impacted by movements in foresign exchange, acquisitions and disposals.

Year ended 31 December 25 Year ended 31 December 2016
Movermont
As in foreign As Reported Organic
repoited  sxchangs  Disposals Organic reported Organic  growth (%) growth (%)
Reported revenue
IM! Critical Engineering 631 77 {8) 702 6§51 _es1 3% 7%
IMI Precision Engineering 662 72 {1} 733 708 708 % -3%
IMI Hydronic Engineering 264 30 204 280 280 10% 1%
Total 1,657 179 [[4] 1,729 1,649 1,649 8% -5%
Segmental operating profit
IMI Critical Engineering 93.1 14.4 0.1 107.6 81.8 818 -12% -24%
IMI Precision Engineating 117.7 126 11 1314 118.5 118.5 1% -10%
IMI Hydronic Engineering 518 5.6 574 51.9 51.9 0% -10%
Comorate costs {23.2) (23.2) (24.8) (24.5)
Total 230.4 326 12 273.2 2277 201.7 5% -17%

Segmental cperating profit margin (%} 15.4% 15.8% 13.89% 13.8%
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The following tabie Blustrates how the segmental asssts and liabifities reconcile 1o the overall total assets and higbilties reported in the balance sheet.

Assets Liahiities

2016 2015 2018 2015

fm £m £ £m

IMI Critical Engineering 7526 882.1 230.9 1969
iMI Precision Engineering 482.0 4192 103.2 907
IMI Hydronic Enginesring 204.1 165.6 €32 537
Total segmental assetsAiabliities 1,438.7 | 12869 3973 341.3
Corporate ftems 5 9.1 55.0 815
Employee benehts 57.8 88.7 137.6 843
investments 2090 270 - R
Net debt Reme 79.7 1142 362.9 3519
Net taxation and others A 343 112.8 113.1
Total assets and liabilities in Group balance sheet 1,6490 | 1.5402  1,065.8 9513

The following table includes other information 1o show how certain costs are allocated between the sagments of the Group.

Restructuring Capitel
2016 2015 2018 2015 ane 2015 206 2015
fm £m Em &m £m £m Bm £m
IM! Critical Engineesing 19.7 134 25.2 224 24.0 © 332 133 11.7
IME Precision Engineering 2.6 13.6 274 30.4 2.5 30 16.7 141
IMi Hydronic Engineering - 23 17.5 172 1.8 1.3 T2 6.3
223 28.2 70.1 70.0 28.1 37.6 37.2 321
Corporate costs - - 0.8 0.6 0.4 - 0.6 0.8
Total 223 20.2 70.9 70.8 28.5 37.5 378 32.9

* Restructuring costs Include both exceptional and non-exceptional.
** The amortisation figures above inciude the amortisation of acquired intangibles. £19.9m (2015: £30.8m) is included in respect of Critical Enginaering, £0.5m
(2015: £1.2m) is included in respect of Precision Enginesring and £0.1m (2015: £0.2m) is inciuded in respect of Hydronic Engineering.
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Section 2 - results for the year
(cont’d)

The following table shows a geographical analysis of how the Group's revenue is derived by destination.

2018 2015
m £m

UK . 75 20
Germany 240 219
Other Westemn Europe . 380 344
Western Europe : 830 563
USA ) a2y 311
Canada 17 23
North America 344 04
Emaerging Markets 520 505
Rest of World 80 65
Total reported revenue 1,649 1,557
Reversal of economic hedge contract losses 8 10
Total statutory revenue 1,857 1,567
feported revenue by deatination {2016) Reportad revenue by destination (2015}
Rest of the UK  Restofthe UK
World 5% World 6%
5% 4%
Emearging Wastern Ewrope  Emerging Western Europe
Markets 38%  Markats 36%
31% 32%
MNorth America North America
21% 2%
The following table shows a geographical analysis of the lecation of the Group's property, plant and equipment and intengible assets,

2016 2015

£m om

UK 7.7 775
Germany ) 251.5 2232
Rast of Ewope . 238.2 205.3
USA 1521 129.4
Asia Pacific 51.1 390
Restof World 16.8 13.6
Total 787.4 888.0
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Operating costs by function

The folowing table is inciuded 1o show how much of the operating costs
deducted from revenue to arrive at the Group's post-exceptional operating
profit, relate 1o cost of sales, seling and distribution costs, administrative
expenses and exceptional items.

‘The aggregale gains made by directors on the exercise of shere options was
£0.2m {2015: £2.9m). The remuneration, a5 defined in the Companles Act 2006
Schadule 5, for the executive direciors comprises fixed and annual variable
pay as set out in the table on page 62 of the Remuneretion Report. For details
of the non-executive directors’ rermumeration please refor 10 page 70 of the
Remuneration Report.

2.1.3.2 Operating lease chargas and operating leass commitments

The Group enters into leases for property, plant and equipment assets when

doing 50 represents a more cost-eflective or lower risk option than purchasing
2008 2086 them. This leads to an income statemnent charge for the year and future
m £m commitments for the Group in respect of these lsases.
Reported revenue 1,649.0 1,557.0
Cost of sales (923.8) (866.7) Continuing opersting costs include a charge of £14.7m (2015: £14.7m)
Segmental gross profit 725.2 | 850.3 relating to the lsase of properties end a charge of £7.6m (2015; E7.7m)

N —— relating to the lease of plant and machinery. The continuing commitments
Selling and distribution costs R26)  (1998) 0 nonconcellabie operating I6ases in place are shown in the
Adrministrative expenses 273.9)  251.0) folowing table by {ime period:

Loss on disposal - 0.4}

Restnucturing costs (a.5) 1) w015 2015

Reported operating profit 224.2 | 236.9 Land and Lond and

Exceptional tems* (3591| (51.04 bulldings Othern buidings Others

Statutory operating profit 188.3 185.9 £m m m om

. . . . Within one year 159 71 137 66
The exceptional costs &re analysed in detal in Section 2.2, in the second 1o fifth year 9.3 0.0 304 86

After five years 175 - 20.7 -
2.1.3 Fi7 174 73.8 5.2

.Specific elements of operating costs

Certain specific iterns of operating expenses are disclosed to provide the
reader of financial statements with more information regarding these coste.
This section provides this analysis.

2.1.3.1 Employee information
The average number of pecple employed by the Group during the year was:

2018 2015
IMI Critical Engineering - 3,836 4,238
MiPrecsionEngneeng _  ___ ____ 5284|  s5as2
MI Hydronic Engineering sl 1ge2
Comorate 118 131
Total Group 11,081 11,711

The aggregate employment cost charged 1o operating profit for the year was:

2.1.3.3 Research and development expenditure

The continuing cost of research and development expenditure charged diractly
10 the income statarment was £48.4m (2015: £46.7m). In addition, amortisation
of capitalised intangible devalopment costs amountad to £3.1m (2015: £2.5m)
and across the Group a further £8.1m (2015: £5.3m) was capitafised.

2.1.3.4 Exchange impact on operating activities net of
hedging arrangsments

The transactional foreign exchange losses in the Group were £1.5m
(2015: kusses of £1.3m).

2.1.3.5 Audit Foes

The Group engages its auditor, EY, to perform assignments in addition to their
statutory audit duties whers their expertisa, axperience and knowladge of the
Group should enable them to perform these assignments more efficiantly than
other similar service providers.

Tha Group's policy on such assignments Is set oul in the Audit Committee
Report on pags 56. Fees earmad by EY and its associates during the year
ars set out below: '

2016 2015
£m £m 2018 2015
£m m

Weges and salaries e .. 58| 4278 pouq pamed by the Company's audfor for the audit
Share based payments 58 1.1 ofteCompanysenmualaccounts = 02 = 02

Social securily costs _ 82.6 77.0  The auiit of the Compary's subsidiaries,

Pension costs* 123 2.2 pursuant 10 legisiation R s 24 _‘LE
Total 568.8 5082 Taxcomplancesardces . __01f 04
Qther assurance services 0.1 0.1
* In 2016, pension costs inciuds the £2.8m gains on spedial pension Total 28 9

averits which are disclosed as exceptional items, see Section 4.5.3.3.
The 2015 comparatives include a curtailment gain of £4.2m in relation
to our restructuring exercise in Switzerand and settiement gains of
£4.9m relating 1o other exercises in Switzerland and the US.
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Section 2 - results for the year

(cont'd)

22
Exceptional items

The Group uses the exceptional items category in the income staternent 1o
classify separately items of both income and expense which are sufficienty
iargs, volatile or one-off n nature 1o assisl the reader of the financial statements
to gain a better understanding of the underlying pevformance of the Group.

The following items are conskianad to be exceptional in these financial statements.

2.2.1
Reversal of net economic hedge contract
losses/gains

For segmental reporting purpases, changes in the fair value of economic
hedges which are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes, together
with the gains and losses on their settisment, are inciuded in the reported
revenwes and operating profit of the relevant business segment. The exceptional
items ot the operating level reverse this treatment, The financing exceptional
items reflect the change in value or settiemant of these contracts with the
financial nstitutions with whom they were transacted, The former comprised
a reversal of a loss of £5.6m (2015: reversal of a loss of £7.6m} and the latter
amounted to a loss of £8.8m (2015 loss of £5.0m).

222
Restructuring costs

The restructuning costs treated as exceptional in 2016 of £18.8m {2015: £27.1m)
are as a result of a number of significant restructuring projects across the Group,
predominantly in Critical Engineering. These inciude £7 .6m relating 1o the closure
of one our Critical Engineering sites in Germany, £1.7m from the closure of

one of cur Critical Engineenng sites in laly, £3.2m for the continuing European
restructuring exercise commenced in 2015 and £5.6m from the restructuring

of our Swedish busingss.

Exceptional restructuring costs in 2015 included £9.6m retating 1o a largs
European restructuning exercise across each of the divisions and £9.3m in relation
to the restructuring of our Switzerdand business. £3.6m was also incurrad in relation
to the closura of wo of our Petrochamical sites in Italy and Gamarny, £1.7m in
reiation to the closure of our Canadian Nuclear business and £1.1m as part of
Crttical Engineering’s locafisation plan in China.

Orther restructuring costs of £3.5m (2015: £2.1m) are not included in the measure
of segmental operating profit reported to the Executive Committee. These costs
have been charged below segmental operating profit and included in reported
operating profit as, based on thelr quantum, they do not meet our definition of
exceptional tems.

2.2.3
Gains on special pension events

Drring 2018, foliowing the conversion to a non-inflation linked pension for certain
mambers of ouw UK Funds, an exceptional net gain of £6.1m was realised. in
addition, following further restructuring exencises in Switzerland, a curtailment
gain of £1.4m was recognised. These exceptional gains were partially ofiset

by an exceptionat loss of £4.7m, netating to the distribution of pension assets
to members from our pravicusly overfunded Swiss schemes. Gains on special
pension events in the UK, US and Switzerand of £9.1m were racognisad in 2015,

2.2.4

Acquired intangible amortisation

and impairment losses

As reportad an page 98, following compiletion of the Group's annual impaiment
raview, an exceptional impaiment charge of £5m (2015: nil) was recorded
against 1he goodwill associated with the Stainless Steel Fastensrs {'SSF’) CGU
in the W Critical Engineering division. As described in 2.2.2, an impairment

charge of £2.2m (2015: £6.9m) was recognised against property, plant and
equipment directly resutting from a number of significant restructuring projects.

Acquired intangible amortisation decreased to £21m (2015: £32m) following
the full amortisation in 2015 of the order book acquired from Bopp & Rauther.
An analysis by segment of acquired intangible amortisation Is included in
Section 2.1.1.

225
Losses on disposal of subsidiaries

No subsidiaries wene disposed of during the year. Losses on the disposal of Scoft,
244 SA and parl of our NPSL businass in 2015 are discussad n Section 3.5. '

226
Taxation

The tax effects of the above items are includad in the exceptional cotumn
of the income statement.
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Earnings per ordinary share

Eamings per share ('EPS") Is the amount of post-tax profit attributable to each share (exciuding thoss heid in the Employee Benefit Trust or by the Company).
Basic EPS measwres are calculated as the Group profit for the year atirbutabie to equity shareholders divided by the weighted average number of shares in
issue during the year. Diluted EPS takes into account the dilutive effect of all outstanding share options priced below the market price, In ammiving at the number
of ghares usad in its calculation,

Both of these measures are also presented on & reporied basis, to remove the effects of exceptional #kems, being tems of both income and expanse which
are sufficiently large, voiatile or one-off in nature to assist the reader of the financial statements 1o get a better understanding of the underlying performance
of the Group. The note balow demonstrates how this calculation has bean parformed.

2016 2015
Kay million nilion
Woeighted average number of sharas for the purpose of basic earmnings per share A 270.8 270.6
Dilutive effect of employee share options 1.8 1.9
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose of diluted eamings per share . B 272.8 272.5
Key £m £m
Statutory profit for the year 133.2 130.0
Non-controllng interests (2.4) 24
Statutory prafit for the year attributable to owners of the parent C 130.8 1276
Statutory profit from discontinued operations, net of tax - 6.7
Continuing statutory profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent ) D 130.8 120.9
Total exceptional charges included in profil before tax 427 | 56.0
Total exceptional credits included in taxation {11.6) 8.7
Earnings for reported EPS E 161.8 168,2
Kay 206 2015
Statutory EPS measures
Statutory basic EPS C/A 48.3p 47.2p
Statutory diluted EPS B 48.0p 46.8p
Statutory basic continuing EPS O/A 48.3p 44.7p
Statutory diluted continuing EPS oB 48.0p 44.4p
Reported EPS measures
Reported basic EPS E/A 59.8p 62.2p
Reported dited EPS EB 59.4p 61.7p
Discontinued eamings per share

Stahtory basic discorinued earnings per share were nil (2015: 2.6p). Stetutory diluted discontinued earnings per share were nil {2015: 2.4p).
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(cont’d)

2.4
Taxation

IMI operates through subsidiary companies all around the world that pay many
different taxes such as corporate incoma taxes, VAT, peyrol withhokdings, social
security contributions, customs import and axcise duties. This note aggregates
only those corporate income taxes that ans or will be levied on the individual
profits of M) plc and its subsidiary companies for periods leading up to and
inchudling the balance sheet date. The profits of sach company are subjoct lo
certain adjustments as specified by applicable tax laws in each country to arive
at the tax liabiity that is expected 10 nasult on their tax restuns. Where these
adjustments have future tax impact then daefemed taxes may also be recorded.

241
Tax governance, risk and strategy

M| recognises its corporate responsibiity to ensure that all businesses within the
IMI Group follow responsible tax practices. Accordingly, the IMI Tax Policy sets the
core principles of comphance, fairnass, value and transparency for the management
of the Group's tex affairs.

This Policy has been approved by the Board, fully communicated to subsidiary ’

businesses and is reviewed 10 ensure responsible business practices across
the Group are maintained. A robust tax governance framework has also been
estabished under which the Executive Committee and the IMI Boand are appraised
on a regular basis of any material or significant tax matters, so that appropriate
action can be affected. Through the IMI Globel intranet the Group commuricates
policies, procedunas, guidance and best practices to improve the management of
taation across its subsidiary companies worldwide.

Compliance: M seeks 10 manage its fecation obligations wividwida in complance
with all applicable tax laws and reguletions, as wel as fully in fine with the Group's
Code of Conduct. Accordingly, tha tax cordribution by the indhvidual businesses
is monitored and standard processes installect such that all comorate tax retumns
should be accurately and timely filad with the tax avrthorities anound the workd and

Tax laws are often complex, which can lead 10 inconsistent interpretations by
different stakeholders. Where this ocours, IMI may reduca uncertainty and
authorities to oblain early resciution and securing edemal tex advice to ensure the
robust interpratation of tax laws and practioes.

Faimess: M seeks to racord its profits across the subsidiary cormnpianies anound

the world an an arm's length basis in accordance with internationally accepted

best practices, recognising the relative contributions of peoplo, assets, intellectusa)
property and risks borme by the various businesses. The resulting allocation of profts
is regulary tested for compliance with this standard. IM| is preparad to mest the
enhanced transfer pricing disclosures and documentation recommended by the
Base Erosion & Profit Shifting commonly refarred 1o as BEPS) intiative by the OECD.

Value: IMI manages the impact of taxation on its businesses in a responsible
manner by only adopling legiimate, commercial and genarglly acceptable positions.
In particuiar, IMI seeks to follow not only the lavw itself but the intention of the local
laws where this can reasonably be ascertained. As a UK Headquartered group,
IMI's profits are ultimately subject to UK taxation, although as the Group pays
significant taxes overseas, the overal effective tax rate for the Group is marginally
ebove the UK statutory tax rate.

Transparency: IMI aims to build positive working rolationships with tex authorities
by co-oparating In a constructive, open and timely manner. IM! seeks 1o disclose its
tax effars in its published accounts and taxation retums fully in accordance with the
appiicable standards and, where appropriata, will supplemant its tax disciosures with
further information to better inform, and to be transparent 10, its stakeholders.

M engages extarnal support 10 manage tax risks and achieve the strategic
objectives outiined above. Tax risks ere regularly assessed for all companies within
the Group, promptly addressed and reported so that they may be appropriately
provided and disciosed in the relevant accounts and tax returns, To the extent that
identifiad tax risks ane material they will be reported to the Executive Committee
through the Group's process for strategic risk management as described at page 40.

2.4.2
UK corporation tax

The average weighted rate of corporation tax in the UK for the 2016 calendar
year was 20% (2015: 20.25%). Changes to the rate of UK corporation tax
were substantively enacted in 2015 to reduce the rate 1o 19% from 1 April 2017
and to 18% from 1 April 2020. The budget of 18 March 2016 then proposed
to further reduce the rmte to 17% from 1 April 2020. This additional change was
substantively enacted on 5 September 2016. UK defemed tax assets and liabilties
have therafors predominantly been celculated using & rate of 179 (2015: 18%).

243
Tax payments

During the year, tha Group made payments of corporate income tax of £31.7m
(2015: £36.2m), principally arising as follows:

Jurisdiction of companises making corporate income tax payments:

UKEL1m

Switzerland £4.7m

Japan £0.4m
faly £3.7m

There is normally an element of volatility in the annual payments of corporate
income taxes due to the timing of assessments, acquisition and disposals,
axceptional tems and payments on account in the many countries in which the
Group operates, Changes in the jurisdictions in which profits are samed can
also have an impact which may take time to be reflacted in the tax cashfiow,
‘Tha level of payments made during 2016 reduced from 2015 as the Group
recovered certain tax prepaymerts, principally in the LS.

Thne Group makes substantial other tax payments relating to employment,
consumption, procurernent and investment to local authorities around the world.
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2.4.4 The income tax charge is apportioned between continuing and discontinuad
. . . operations in the income staternent as folows:
Recognised in the income statement
This section sels out the curmant and defernad tax charges, which together 2018 2015
comprise the total tax charge in the income statement. £m £m
‘ Current tax charge .
2018 2015  Contiruing operations 48.0 33
o Em  Discontinued opesations - (1.4)
Current tax charge 48.0 37.9
Current tax charge 425 346  Deferred tax charge
Adjustments in respect of prior years 5.5 3.3 Continuing operations “5-'!, 0.1
8.0 379 (15.9) 01
Deferred taxation
Origination and reversa! of temporary differances {15.9) 0.1 2018 2015
Total income tax charge 321 38.0 £m fm
Total incomas tax charge
Continuing operations 321 30.4
Discontinued operations - {1.4)
32.1 38.0

2.4.5
Recongciliation of effective tax rate

As IMI's head office and parent company is domiciled in the UK, the Group referances its effsctive tax rate to the UK corporation tax rate, despite only a small proportion
of the Group's business being in the UK. Therefore, the following tax reconciliation applies the UK corporation tax rate for the year to profit before tax, both before and
after exceptional iterms, This resulting tax charge is reconciied to the actual tax charge for the Group, by taking account of specific tax adiustments as folows:

2016 2015
Exceptional Encoptions
Reported Hems Statutory Reported ltmens Stattory
Saction £m fm fm tm &m m
Profit before tax from continuing operations 208.0 42.7 165.3 2187 (56.0) 162.7
Profit before tax from discontinued operations 25 - - 5.3 53
Profit before tax 208.0 {42.7} 185.3 218.7 {(50.7) 168.0
Incoma tax using tha Compary's domestic rate of tax of 20% (2015: 20.25%) a8 8.5 331 443 {10.3) 340
Effects of;
Nan-deductible tems 3.2 0.6 3.8 2.7 1.5 42
Non-taxabis loss on dsposal of businesses - - 0.1 05 06
Felease of deferred tax asset . - 1.0 1.6 28
Utilisation of kxases on which no deferred tax had been recognised {1.0) (1.0} (2.6) - 2.6)
Current year lossas for which no deferred tax esset has been recognised 35 3.5 3.2 - 32
Change in futue tex rate on UK deferred tax (3.0} (3.0 (5.5) - (5.5)
Differing lax retes [2.8) 3.7) . (6.5) 0.1 {3.5) 3.4)
Under provided in prior years 2.2 2.2 4.8 0.1 49
Total tax in income statement 24 43.7 (11.6) 321 48.1 {10.1 38.0
Income tax expanse reported in the consolidated income statement 43.7 (11.8) 32.1 48.1 8.7) 394
Effective rate of tax - corttinuing operations: 21.0% 19.4% 22.0% 24.2%
Incoms tax attributable to discontinued operations 25 - - {1.4) (1.4)
Effeciive rate of tax - discontinuad operations: -26.4%
Total tax in income statement 2.4 43.7 {11.8) 321 48.1 {10.1) 38.0
Effective rate of tax - total Group: 21.0% 19.4% 22.0% 22.6%
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Recognised outside of the income statement

in addition {0 amounts charged 1o the income statement, some cument tax and defernad tax is credited)/charged directly to equity or through other comprehensive
income, which can be analysed as follows:

2016 2016
m £m
Deferred tax:
On equity-settied transactions - 08
On change in value of effective net investment hedge derivatives - 0.9)
On gvailable for sale financial assets - 08
On re-measwement gains and on defined benefit plans {12.8) 10.7
(12.8) 10.1
Current tax:
On pension restructuring - ©0.5)
On foraign currancy transiation differences - 341
On change in vaiue of effective net investment hedge derivatives {0.8) -
On equity-settied transactions - 0.1
{13.4) 12.8
Of which the following amounts are (credited)y/charged:
to the statement of comprehensive income {13.4) 118
ta the statement of changes in equity - 1.0
{13.4) 12.8
2.4.7

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred taxas record the tax consequencas of tamporary differences between the accounting and taxation recognition of cartaln tems, as explained below:

Assats Unbiities Net
2mé 2015 ameée 2015 2018 205

om m m om £m m

Non-curent asséls 11 1.9 {46.9) {48,1) (45.8) (46.2)
inventories 4.2 3 [X]] @1 Y] 1.0
On revaluation of dervatives 0.8 [X] 20 22) 1.2 ]
Employes benefits and provisions 421 300 (3.9) (158) 36.2 141
Cither tax assets 05 0.8 - - 0.5 0.9
48,7 36.6 (57.9) (70.3) ®.2) 33.7)

Offsetting within tax jurisdictions 25.9)] 16.8) 259 168 - -
Total deferred tax assets and liabiiities 228 | 19.8 132.0) 53.5) [CE) @37




Annual Report and Accounts 2018

The movement in the net defarred 1ax balances has been recognised in the financial statements as analysed below:

Rocognised Recognised
Inthe outside the
Balance at income Income Acquisitions  Balance at
1Jan16  statement  statememt  Exchange /disposals 31 Dec 18
m £m &m £m m om
Non-current assets {46.2) 7.9 - {@.5) - {45.8)
Inventories {1.0) 0.7 . {0.6) - (0.8)
On revaksation of derivatives {1.5) 0.3 - - - 1.2)
Empiloyes benefits and provisions 14.1 7.4 128 3.9 - 38.2
Other tax assets 09 0.4) - - - 0.5
Net deferred tax liabifity (33.7) 159 128 (4.2) - (9.2}
Recognised  Recognisad
nthe outsidathe
Balance st Incorme income Bealanoe at
1Jan 1 statament staternant Exchange Cisposats 31 Dec 15
£m £m fm £m fm £m
Non-current assets (37.1 8.3 - 20 (19.4) {46.2)
Inventories {0.6) 0.2) - {0.2) - {1.0]
On revaluation of derivatives (0.5) {1.8) 0.9 0.1 - {1.5)
Employee benefits and prowvisions 208 (5.1) {11.0) 0.3 0.1 14.1
Other tax assets 25 1.3) - {0.3) - 0.9
Net deferred tax labllity (5.9) 0.1) (10.1) 1.7 (19.3) {33.7)

All sxchanga movernents anre taken through the translation reserve.

248
Unrecognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Defarred tax assets of £56.2m (2015: £48.9m) have not been recognised in respect of tax losses of £47.9m (20115: £32 .8m), interest of £61.3m (2015: £59.0m)

and capital losses of £119.1m (2015: £123.2m). The maijority of the tex losses have no expiry date. No deferred tax asset has been recognisad for these temporary

differences due to uncertainty over their offset against fulure taxable profits and therefore their recoverability, In some Instances, these balances are also yet to be
accepted by the tax authorities and so could be chalienged in the event of an audit.

It is likely that the majority of unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries would qualify for the UK dividend exemption. However £48.9m (2015: £74.3m) of those
eamings may still result in & tax liabilty principally as a result of withholding taxes levied by the overseas jurisdictions in which those subskfiaries cperate. These
1ax liablities ane not expected to exceed £2.6m (2015: £5.3m), of which £2.7m (2015: £4.7m) has been provided on the basis thet the Group expacls to remit
these amounts, The balance has not been provided as the Group is able to cortra! the timing of dividends and does not expect to pay up thess amounts in the
foresesable future.

25
Discontinued operations

When the Group has assets and kabllities that have been soid in the year or are likely 1o be sold rather than being held for continuing use and when accounting
standards require, these assets and liabllities are included in current assets and liabiities snd denoted *held for sale’ rather than in their usual categories.

If they represent a significant enough proportion of the Group, they are also treated as discontinued operations. This means that their trading performance, l.e.
their revenues, costs and other itemns of income and expense, ane no longer reported within the headline figures in the incomne statement and are instead reported
In & separate line, net of tax, called 'discontinued operations’. Theseammntsnolongerforrnpanofoormnmgmhgspetsrwe Comparative figures are
restated to be shown on the same basis.

This enables the income statemeant for the curment and prior year to be presented on a consistent basis and 1o corwey a more forward-locking version of the
results for the year.

Thene has been no profit or loss from discontinued oparations in 2016.

The prior year comparative includes a pre-tax and post-tax gain of £4.4m as a result of the finaksation of a number of matters relating to the disposal of the Retall Dispense
businesses as well as a pre-tax gain of £0.9m and post-tax gain of £2.3m relating to other discontinued operations.
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Section 3 - operating assets and liabilities

What you will find in this section

This section shows the assets used to generate the Group's trading performance and the liabilities incurred as a result.
Liabilities relating to the Group's financing activities are addressed in Section 4. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

are shown in Section 2.4.7. On the following pages there are sections covering working capital, non-current assets,
acquisitions, other payables due after more than one year, provisions and pensions.

3.1 3.1.2

Working capital Trade and other receivables
Warking caprtal rapresents the assets and kabirties the Group generates a8 215
through its trading activities. The Group therefore defines working capital Em om
as trade and other receivables, inventory and trade and other pavables. Current
Woﬁdngcap‘ialismanagedveryear-efulytoemthaumermpom Trade receivabies 3370 2013
maeet its trading and financing obligations within its ordinary operating cycle. Other rrabh 26 98
To provide the Executive Committes with insight into the management Prepayments and accrued income 20.9 20.3
of working capital, an importan measure monitorad is cash convarsion. 400.5 351.4
Cash conversion ks defined as the operating cash flow {as defined in the
commentary on the cash flow statement) divided by the segmental operating Receivables are stated aftor:
profit which therefore represents the proportion of segmental operating profit Allowance for imparment ns 89

genarated during the year that has been converted into cash.
Tha increase in the Group's trade and other naceivables of £49.1m Is due to
foreign exchange movemenits of £55.8m, partially offset by favourable cash

3.1 | B movemenis of £6.8m.
Inventories The Group's exposure 1o credit and market rigks retated to trade and other
receivables is disclosed in Saction 4.4,
208 2015
o ;313
Raw materials and consumables 77.0 78.8
Workin progress 135 5> Irade and other payables
Finished goods 64.3 548
255.2 2333 e ans
om om
In 2018 the cost of inventaries recognised as an expense (being segmental Current
cost of sales) amountad to £923.8m (2015: £866.7m). The Group's inventory Trade payables 4.2 171.2
increased by £21.9m due to foreign exchange movements of £38.4m. Social security and other taxation 23 211
These increesas were partially offset by a £17.5m decrsase due to Cther payables 23.0 5.9
favourable cash movements. Accruals and deferred Incoms 148.4 143.9
In 2016 the write-dlown of inveniories 1o net realisable vaiue amounted 16 £9.1m 079] 3421
(2015: £5.8m). The reversal of write-downs amouniad 10 £1.8m (2015: £2.5m).  Non.current
Write-downs and reversals in both years relate to on-going assessments of Other payables 10.7 4.2
invertory obsolescence. excess inventory holding and inventory resale 418.6 366.3

values across all of the Group's businesses.

The Group's trade and other payabiles increased by £52.3m due to forsign
exchange movements of £46.8m and favourable cash moverments of £5.5em.
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3.2
Intangible assets

The folowing section shows the non-physical assets used by the Group to generate revenues and profits. These assets include goodwill, customer relationships,
order books, patenis, development costs and software development costs. The cost of these assets is the amount that the Group has paid for them or, when they
have arisen due to a business combination, the falr value of the specific intangible assets that could be sokd separately or which arise from legal rights.

In the case of goodwil, fts cost is the amount the Group has pald in acquiring a business over and above the fair value of the individual assets net of the labilties
acquined. The value of the goodwill can arise from a number of sources, but in relation to our more necent acquisitions, it has been represented by post-acquisition
synergies and the skills and knowledge of the worldonce. The value of the Group's intangible assets, with the exception of goodwil, reduces over the number of
years over which the Group expacts 10 use the asset, the useful ife, via an annual amortisation charge to tha income statement.

The Group spiits its intangible assets betwsen thosa arising on acquisitions and thosa which do not, because the amortisation of acquired intangibles meets the
definition of an excaptional ftem as described in Section 2.2,

Where there are incications that the vaiue of intangible asssts is no longer representative of their value to the Group, for example where there is B customer
relationship recognised but ravenues from that customer are reducing. or where goodwill was recognisad on an acquisition but the performance of the business
acquired is below expectations, the directors review the value of the assets o ensune they have not fallen below their emortised valuee. If this has happened,

& one-off impaiment charge ks recognised. This section explains the overall camying values of the intangible assets within the Group and the specific judgements
and estimates made by the directons in aniving at thase values.

3.2.1
Analysis of intangible assets
. Nan-aoguined
Acouired Other Totd  Othernon-  intanglbies
customer accuived acquired ecquired undar
GoodwF relgtionships  inlangiles  intanglles  intangbles  consucion Yolal
[+ ] fm £ tm m m on
Cost
As at 1 January 2015 320.7 131.2 B2.1 534.0 528 10.7 597.3
Exchange adiustments 4.5 @7 (1.8 {(14.0) 0.2 0.1) a9
Acquisitions 52.5 439 20.7 1171 10 - 118.1
Disposals of subsidiaries 24 . (1.0 (15.0) {18.4) - - (18.4)
Additions - - - - 59 141 20.0
Transfers from assats in the course of construction - - - - 6.0 8.0 -
Disposals - - - - {0.9) - 0.8)
As at 31 December 2015 366.3 186.4 868.0 618.7 84.8 18.7 7022
Exchnngo adjustments 60.6 270 13.9 101.5 10.8 2.7 115.0
Additions - - - - 1.2 127 239
Transfers from assets in tha course of construction - - - - 9.9 9.9) -
Disposals - - - - (0.8) ©.1) (0.9}
As at 31 December 2016 426.9 193.4 99.9 720.2 95.9 24.1 540.2
Amortisaticn -
As at 1 January 2015 27.8 92.9 75.6 196.3 23.3 - 229.8
Exchange adjustments {1.3) 2.9) (0.8 {4.5) 03) - 5.1
Disposals of subsidiaries (0.8) [0.7) {14. {18.1) - - (16.1
Disposals - - - - (0.9) - (0.9}
Amortisation for year - 16.7 12.5 32.2 53 - 37.5
As at 31 December 2015 256 108.0 73.0 207.6 374 - 245.0
Exchange adjustments 4.1 181 123 34.5 58 - 404
Disposals - - - - 0.7 - 0.7
Impairment 5.0 - - 5.0 0.8 - 5.8
Amortisation for year - 18.0 25 20.5 8.0 - 28.5
As at 31 December 2018 34.7 145.1 87.8 267.6 514 - 310.0
Nat book vaiue at 31 Decernber 2015 340.7 &7.4 13.0 411.1 27.4 18.7 457.2

Net bock value at 31 December 2018 392.2 48.3 121 452.6 445 4.1 521.2
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Section 3 - operating assets and liabilities

(cont’d)

3.2.2
Goodwilt impairment testing

Goodwill is not subject 1o an annual amortisation charge. Insiead, its carying value is assessed annually by comparison to the future cash flows of the business
to which it relates (the cash generating unit, or 'CGLY). These cash Rows ane discounted 10 reflect the time vakue of money and this discount rate, together with
the growth rates assumed in the cash flow forecasts, are the key assumptions in this impalrment testing process.

Goodwill is allocated 1o cash generating units (CGUs’) based on the synergies
expectad to be derdved from the acquisition upon which the goodwill amose. The
Group has 20 {2015: 20} cash genarating units to which goodwill is allocated.
The composition of CGUSs reflects both the way in which cash inflows are
generated and the intemal reporting structure. Where our bueinesses operate
closely with pach other we will continue to review whether they should be
treated as a single or combined CGL.

Goadwill is tested annually for impairment as part of the overall assessment of
assets against their recoveratie amounts. The recoverable amount of a CGU is
the higher of its fair value less costs to sall and its value in use. Valus inuse is
determined using cash flow projections from financial budgets, forecasts and
plans approved by the Board covering a five-year period and include a terminal
value multiple. The projected cash fiows reflect the latest expectation

of dernand for products and services.

The key assumplions in these calculations are the long-ierm growth rates and
the discount retes appled to forecast cash flows in addition to the achievement
of the forecasts themselves. Long-temn growth rates are based on long-term
economic forecasts for growth in the manufacturing sactor in the geographical
regions in which the cash generating unit operates. Pre-tax discount rates
specific to each cash generating unit are calculated by adjusting the Group
post-tax weightad average cost of capital (‘WACC') of 8% (2015: 8%) for the
tax rate relevant to the jurisdiction before adding risk premia for the size of the
unit, the charactenistics of the segment in which it resides, and the geagraphical

This exercise resutted in the usa of the following ranges of values for the
key assumptions:

2016 2015
% %

Pre-tax discount rate 9.0-149] 99-162

Long-tenm growth rate 09-21| 1.0-21

Following our impaimment review, the goodwill associated with the Stainless
Steel Fasteners ("SSF') CGU, within the IMI Critical Engineering division, was
considerad to be impaked. This impairment hag arisen due to a continued
deterioration in the end markets that SSF sall into. A value in use calkculation
was used to determine the £2.0m recoverable amount of the SSF CGU,
which used a discount rate of 11.5%. As a result, tha Group has recognised
an exceptional impairment loss of £5.0m.

For the purpose of assassing the significance of CGUs, the Group uses a
threshold of 2096 of the totel goodwil balance. Goodwi of £85.1m {2015:
£78.4m) associated with the Control Vaives CGU in Critical Engineering

is considered to be significant. The recoverable amount of the CGU Is
determined from a value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the
value In use veduation are the discount rate, gnowth rate and operating
cashflows. These estimates are determined using the methodology discussed
above. The discount rate applied for Contro! Valves Is 10.9% (2015: 12.5%)
and a growth rate of 2.1% (2015: 1.6%) is applied into perpetusty.

No other CGls have goodwill that is considered significart in the context
of the Group’'s total goodwill balance, nor do any CGUs use the same key
assumptions for the purposes of impaiment testing in either this year or
the last.

The aggregate amourt of goodwill arising from acquisitions prior t© 1 January
2004 which had been deducted fom the profit and loss reserves and
incorporated into the IFRS transitional balance shest as at 1 January 2004,
amounted to £364m. The cumulative impairmant recognised in retation to
goodwit is £39m (2015: £34m).
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3.3
Property, plant and equipment

The following section concerns the physical assets used by the Group 10 generate revenues and profits. These assets include manufacturing, distribution and
office sites, as well as equipment used in the manufaciure of the Group’s products. The cost of these assets represents the amount initially paid for them.

With the exception of the Group's land and assets under construction which have not yet been brought into use, a depreciation expense is charged to 1he
income statement to reflect the annual wear and tear and the reduction in the value of the asset over time. Depreciation is calculated by reference to the assets’
useful ives, by estimating the number of years over which the Group expects the asset to be used. As we do for our intangible assets (see Section 3.2), i there
has been a technological change or declinge in business performance the directors review the value of the assets 1o ensure they have not fallen below their
depreciated value. If an asset's value falls below its depreciated value, a one-off impaiment charge is made against profit.

Assets in the
tand & Plart & omrse of
bulkings  equipment  construction Tolal
£m £m £m £m

Cost
As at 1 January 2015 . 163.4 533.8 20.0 717.2
Exchange adjustments 3.0) 9.4) 0.1 {12.3)
Acquisitions 0.4 38 - 42
Disposals of subsidiaries {0.4) (3.0) - 3.4
Ackditions 18 229 259 50.6
Transfers from assels in the course of construction 53 19.0 (24.3) -
Disposals 8.0) {42.5) - {50.5)
As at 31 Decambar 2015 159.5 5248 21.7 705.8
Exchange adjustments 27.1 81.7 2.0 1108
Additions 1.8 208 24.3 47.0
Transters from assets in the course of construction 2.3 22.4 (24.7) -
Disposals . (8.3) 24.2 0.4 (32.9)
As at 31 December 2016 1824 825.4 22.9 830.7
Depreciation
As at 1 January 2015 77 413.0 - 490.7
Exchange adjusiments {1.4} {7.0) - {8.4)
Disposals of subsidiaries - 1.0 - {.n
Disposals 3.4) 42.0} - (45.4)
Impairmeant charge 51 18 - 89
Depreciation 3.3 206 - 329
As at 31 December 2015 81.3 303.7 - 4750
Exchange adjustments 14.5 62.9 - 774
Disposals (5.3) (22.5) - (27.9)
Impalrment charge 1.4 0.8 - 2.2
Depreciation 39 33.9 - 37.8
As at 31 Dacamber 2016 85.8 468.7 - 564.5
NBV at 31 December 2015 78.2 130.9 N7 230.8
NBYV at 31 December 2016 88.8 158.7 229 266.2

A nat impairment charge of £2.2m relating to continuing operations occurrad during the yaar (2015: £6.9m) as describad in Section 2.2. The recoverable amount
of these assets has been determinad using their fair value less costs to sell, estimated by both internal and extemal valuation speciatists.

Group contracts in respect of future capital expenditure which had been placed at the batance sheet date relating to the continuing business amounted to
£7.4m (2015: £6.0m).

Included in the total net book value of plant and equipment is £0.6m (2015: £0.7m) in respect of assets acquined under finance leases. Depreciation for the year
on these assets was £0.2m (2015: £0.3m).
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Section 3 - operating assets and liabilities
(cont’d)

3.4
Acquisitions

The following section discusses businesses acquired by the Group, which have given rise to the additions to the acquired intangible assets (including goodwil)
reparted in Section 3.2 and which contributed 10 the Groups profits, working capital and other bafance sheet asset and liabiiities.

3.41
Acquisitions in the current year

Thare were no acquisitions during 2016.

3.4.2

Acquisitions in the prior year

On 2 January 2015, the Group acquired the entire share capital of B&R Hoiding GmbH {'Bopp & Reuther’) for a cash consideration of £108.2m (€140.8m),
racognising identifiable net assets of £56.7m and goodwill of E52.5m.

Bopp & Reuther is a leading manufacturer of safety, control and shut-off valve technology for process industries as well as conventional fossll and nuclear power
plants worldwide. Its head office and manufacturing plant is located in Mannheim, Germarry and it has service centres in Germarny, Austria, Romania and China.
Bopp & Reuther joined the IMI Critical Engineering division and is now effectively integrated into its controt vaive business ('CCIY).

305
Disposals

3.5.1
Disposals in the current year

There were no disposals of subsidiaries during 2018.

3.6.2
Disposals in the prior year

Asterm SAS (‘Astermt)
The Group disposed of Asterm SAS on 21 January 2015 for proceeds of £0.4m resulting in a post-tax loss on disposal of £0.4m.

IMI Scott Limited {(*Scott”)
The Group disposed of IMI Soott Limited on 30 October 2015 for proceeds of £1.2m resulting in a post-tax loss on disposal of £2.1 million, after disposing of
£2.7m of net assets and incurming £0.6m of assoclated costs.

Zimmermann & Jansen South Africa (Pty.) Lid (‘Z&J SA)

‘The Group disposed of Zimmemann & Jansen South Africa (Pty) Ltd on 13 Novembar 2015 for proceeds of £0.2m resulting in a post-1ax loss on disposal of
£4.4m. Net assets disposed of equalled £2.2m, with associated costs incumed of £0.4 and a foreign exchange loss of £2.0m

Nano Porous Solutions Limited 'NPSL')

The Group disposed of non-com elements of Nano Porows Solutions Limited on 16 December 2015 for proceeds of £0.7m resulting in a post-tax loss of £1.9m.
The remainder of the NPSL business was transfemed 1o Norgren UK,




Annual Report and Accounts 2018

101

3.6
Provisions

A provision is recorded instead of a payable (see Section 3.1.3) when there is less certainty over how much cash will be paid and when the payment might be made.
Whan the Group has an obligation relating to previous evenris and when it is probable that cash will be paid 1o sattle it, & provision rether than a payable is recorded.

In this situation, an estimate is required.

The prircipal estimates made in respect of the Group's provisions concem the timing and amount of payments recuined to:
* cover the costs of known restructuning projects;

* reimburse customers for potential product warranty claims;

* gnsure that curent and former manufacturing sites meet relevant envircnmental standards;

« reflact the estimated outcome of ongoing legal disputes; and

* provide against indemnities folowing the disposal of subsidiaries.

Analysis of the Group's provisions:
Ervdronmental,
Trade logal &
Rastructiring warrantios indemrity Totel
om £m fm fm
Current 12,5 9.3 33 '25.1
Non-current 09 6.2 104 17.5
Al 1 January 2016 134 15.5 13.7 426
Arising during the year 19.3 5.2 0.5) 24.0
Utllised during the year (22.4) {5.1) 3.7) (31.2)
Exchange adjustment 1.8 1.8 . 2.6
At 31 Dacember 2016 121 174 8.5 39.0
Gurrent 11.1 8.0 0.8 19.9
Non-current 1.0 9.4 8.7 19.1
121 174 9.5 39.0

The restructuring provision reflects residual amounts committed but not spent in relation to a number of specific projects and the mgjority is expected to be utiised

within the naxt 12 months.

Trade warranties are given in the normal course of business and cover a range of periods, typically one 10 two years, with the expected amounts fatling due in less
than and greater than one year saparately analysed above. Amounts set aside represent the directors’ best astimate reganding the amount of the setements and

the timing of resoiution with customers.

Erwironmental and legal provisions recognise the Group's obligation 10 remediate contarninated land at & murmber of cument snd former sites, together with curment legal
cases for which a settierment is considersd probable. Because of the long-term nature of the [abilities, the timescales are uncertsin and the provisions reprasent the

diractors’ best estimates of these costs,

Provisions for indemnities included in the egreed terms of disposals of subsidianes are provided for based on the expected probabilty of indemrnified losses that

may be suffered by the purchaser.
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[ R e PR e R ]
What you will find in this section

This section outlines how the Group manages its capital and refated financing costs. The directors determine the
appropriate capital structure for the Group, specifically, how much cash is raised from sharehokiers (equity} and how
much is borrowed from financial institutions (debt) in order to finance the Group’s activities both now and in the future.
The directors consider the Group's capital structure and dividend policy at least twice a year ahead of announcing
resuits in the context of its ability to continue as a going concermn and deliver its business plan.

The Board is mindful that equity capital cannot be easily flexed and in particular raising new equity would normally be
likely only in the context of an acquisition. Debt can be issued and repurchased more easily but frequent adjustments
lead to high transaction costs and debt holders are under no obligation to accept repurchase offers.

4.1
Net debt

Nat debt is the Group's key measure used 10 evaluate total outstanding debit, net of the current cash resources. Some of the Group's borrowings (and cash)
ara held in foreign currencies. Movements in foreign exchange rates affect the sterling value of the net debt.

a} Reconciliation of cash and cash equivatents

2016 2015

tm £m
Caéhandcashequhralanlshwrrentasssts 70.7 114.2
Bank overdrafl in cumrent liabifties (12.2) {6.49)
Cash and cash aquivalents 67.5 107.8
b} Reconciliation of net cash to movemant in net borrowings
2018 - 2015
£m fm
Nat (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents excluding forsign exchange and net cash disposed/acquired {45.5) 85.7
Net repayment/{drawdown) of borrowings 54.8 (107.9)
Decrease/{increase) in net debt befare acquisitions, disposals and foreign exchange 9.1 (22.2)
Net cash disposed - {0.8)
Net debt acquired - {5.6)
Currency translation differences 54.8) 83
Movement in net borrowings in the year {45.7) {36.9)
Net bomowings at the start of the year [236.8) {200.0)

Net borrowings at the end of the year [282.6) {236.9)
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c) Analysis of net debt

Bomowings and
fnance leases dus

Cash and cash within  afer more Totel

equivalants cng year than one year net gebt

£m ©m m £m

At 1 January 2016 107 8 (54.1) {290.6) (236.9)

Cash fow exciuding settliement of curmency dervatives hadging balance sheet and net cash dispased ol/acquired 3.7 5§3.1 1.5 50.9
Settlement of currency derivatives hedging balance sheet {41.8) (41.8)
Currency tranglation differences 5.2 {5.8) (54.2) (54.8}
At 31 December 2016 87.5 (6.8} (343.3) (282.8)

4.2
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

The Group barows money from financial institutions in the form of bonds and other financiel instruments. These generally have fixed interest rates and are for

a fixed term or are drawn from commitiedt borrowing facilties that generally have floating interest rates.

This section provides information about the terma of the Group's Interest-baaring leans and borrowings. For more information about the Group's exposure 10

interest rate and foreign curmency risk, see Section 4.4.3.

2018 2015
fm £m
Current llabilities

Unsecured loan notes and other loans 6.3 53.6
Finance lease labilities 0.5 0.5
6.8 54.1

Non-custent liabllities
Unsacured loan notes and other loans 342.8 200.2
Finance lease llabilites 0.5 0.4
343.3 290.6
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4.3
Net financing costs

This section details the income generated on the Group's financial assets and the expenze incumed on bomowings and other financial assets and fabifities.
The fnance income and expense takan into account in arriving at adjusted eamings only inchudes the income and expense arising on cash balances,
borrowings and retirement benefit obligations. The finance incoma or expense on mark-to-markst movements on interest and foreign exchange derivatives

Recognised in the income statement

2016 M5
Financlal Financial
Interest  instruments Total Intarest  Instrumants Total
&m fm £m &m £m £m
interast income on bank deposits 4.5 45 3.2 3.2
Financial instrumants at fair value through profit or loss:
Other economic hadges
- currant year trading 5.6 56 145 14.5
- future year transactions 7.0 7.0 84 8.4
Financial income 45 126 174 3.2 209 24,1
Intarast expense on Interest-bearing loans and bonmowings (21.8) {21.8) {21.8) {21.6)
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss:
Other economic hedges _
- cument year irading {7.5) {7.5) {16.8) (16.8)
- future year transactions {11.9) {11.9) 9.1) ©.1)
Financial expense (21.8) (19.4) (41.2) (21.6) {25.8) {47.5)
Net financial income relating to defined benefit pension schemes 1.1 1.1 0.2 0.2
Net financial expense {16.2) {6.8) {23.0) {18.2) 5.0) (23.2)

Included in financial instruments are current year trading gains and losses on economically effective transactions which for management reporting purposes are
included in reported revenue and operating profit (see Section 2.1). For statutory purposes these we required 10 be shown within net financial income and expense
above. Gains or lossas for futwre year transactions are In respect of financial instruments heid by the Group to provide stability of future trading cash flows.

Recognised in other comprehensive income

206 2015
£m m
Change i fair valua of affective portion of nat nvestment hedges {2.8) {11.0)
Foreign currency transiation differences 384 29
Change in fair value of other fnancial assets - 0.0
Income tax on iterns recognisad in other comprehensive income 0.6 {1.6)
Total Hems recognised in other comprehensive income (net of tax) ar.2 {11.4)
Recognised in:
Hedging reserve 2.2 (10.1)
___Translation reserve 394 {0.2)
Rstained eamings . - 1.1
372 (11.4)
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4.4
Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: interest rate,
foreign exchange and base metal price movements in ackiition to funding and
liquidity risks. The financial instruments used 1o manage the undarlying risks
themselves introduce axposure to credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.

This section prasents information about the Group's exposura 10 each of
these risks; the Group's objectives, policies and processes for measuring
end managing risks, including each of the abowve risks; and the Group's
management of capital.

4.4.1
Overview

The Board has overall responsibiity for the establshment and oversight of

the Group's risk management framework. As described in the Comporate -
Govarnance Report on page 44 the Executive Committes monitors risk and
Internal controls and the Audit Committee monitors financial risk, while the other
Board committees siso play a part in contributing to the ovarsight of risk.

The Audit Committee overseas how manegement monitors compliance with
the Group's financial risk management policies and procedures and reviews the
adequacy of the risgk management framework in relation to the financial risks
faced by the Group. The Group Assurance department undertakes both regular
and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procecdures, the resuits
of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

The following sections discuss the managament of specific financial risk
factors in detail, including credit risk, foreign exchange rigk, interest rate risk,
commodity risk and liquidity risk.

442
Credit risk

Cradit risk Is the risk of financiat 10ss 1o the Group If & customer or
counterparty to a financial instrument fails 1o meet its contractual cbligations,
and arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers, cash
and cash equivalents held by the Group's banks and other financial assets.
At the end of 2016 these totalled £437.9m (2015: £417.8m).

4,421
Managing credit risk arising
from customers

The Group's exposure to credil risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Group's customer
base, including the dafault risk of the industry and country in which customers
operate, have less of an infuence on credit risk. Qur largest single customer
accounted for 2% of our 2016 revenues (2015: 2%).

Geographically them is no urusual concentration of credit risk. The Group's
confract approval procedure ensures thet large contracts are signed off at
executive director level at which time the risk profie of the contract, iIncluding
potential credit and foreign exchange risks, is reviewed. Credit risk is minimised
through dus diligence on potential customers, appropriate cracit imits, cash
flow management and the use of documentary credits where appropriate.

4422
Exposure to credit risk in respect
of financial assets

The maximum exposure to credit risk for knancial assets is represented by their
carrying value and is analysed beiow:. ~

Camying amount
08 2015
fm £m
Cash and cash equivalents 79.7 107.8
Investments 2.2 18.7
Forward exchange confracts® - 0.1
100.9 126.6

* Forward exchange contracts include the net amount receivable by each
entity in the Group, from each financial institution, reflecting the Group's
maximum credit exposure sinca individual entities within the Group have
tha right but not the obligation to settie these nat.

4423
Exposure to credit risk in respect
of trade receivables

Carrying amount
2018 05
Bm £m
UK 17.3 18.4
Germany 206 259
Pest of Europe 106.0 77.0
USA 49.6 436
Asia Paciic 83.6 74.1
Rest of World 50.8 523
337.0 201.3

The maximum axposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting
date by segment was as foliows:

Canying amount

018 2015

£m om

IMI Critical Engineering 1680.6 156.8
tMi Precision Engineering 100.5 95.6
IMI Hydronic Engineering 46.9 389
337.0 2913
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4424
Impairment provisions for trade receivables

The ageing of irade mceivablas at the neporting date was:

2018 2018
Gross  impairment Groas  Impaiment
£m £m £m £m
iNot past due 287.6 {0.5}) 247.9 0.3)
Past due 1-30 days 20.2 (0.5)] 229 0.5)
Past due 31-90 days 1.9 05 14.4 ©.n
Past due over 80 days 207 19.9)] 15.0 7.4
Total 348.4 {11.4)] 300.2 6.9)
The net movemomlnmeallowa:mluimpmrmarﬂhmspecloftmde
receivables during the year was as folows:
2016 05
ftm m
Net balance st 1 January 8.9 7.1
Utiksed during the year (1.1) (1.0
Charged to the income statement 38 35
Releasad (1.8)4 ©.4)
BExchange 1.4 0.3)
Net balance at 31 December 11.4 8.9

The net impairment charge recognisad of £2.2m (2015: charge of £3.1m}
relates to the movement in the Group's assessment of the gk of non-recovery
from a range of customers across aft of its businesses.

4.4.25
Managing credit risk arising
from counterparties

A group of relationship banks provides the bulk of the banking services,
with pre-approved cradit Emits set for each institution. Financial derivativas
are entered into with these core banks and the underlying credit exposure
10 thess instruments is included when considaring the credit exposurs to
the counterparties. At the end of 2016 credit exposure including cash
deposited did not exceed £14.0m with any single instituticn (2015: £23.2m).

443
Market risk

Market risk Is the risk that changas in market pricas, such as foneign
exchanga rates, interest rates and commodity prices will affect the Group's
income and cash flows or the vatue of its financial instrurments. The objective
of market risk managament is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters.

Under tha management of the cantral treasury function, the Group enters
into derivatives in the ordinary course of busingss and also manages financial
kabilities in order to mitigate market risks. Al such transactions are carried
out within the guidelines set by the Board and are undertaken only if they
retate 10 underlying exposures,

4.4.3.1
Foreign exchange risk

The Group publishes consolidated accounts in sterling but conducts

much of its global business in other currencies. As a result it is subject to
the risks associated with foreign exchange movements affecting transaction
costs {‘ransactional risk’), translation of foreign profits {'profit translation
risk’) and transiation of the underlying net assets of foreign operations
{‘esset translation rigik’),

a) Management of transactional risk

The Group's wide geographical spread both In terms of cost base and customer
locations helps to reduce the impact on profitability of swings in exchange
rates as weft as creating opportunities for cantral netting of exposures. lis the
Group's poficy to minimise rigk 10 exchenge rate movements affecting sales
and purchases by economically hedging or netting curency exposures at the
time of commitment, or when thers is a high probability of futura commitment,
using curmency instruments (primarily forward exchange contracts). A proportion
of forecast exposures are hadged depending on the level of confidence and
hedging is paricdically adjusted following reguler reviews. On this basis over
50% of the Group’s annual exposures 1o transactional risk are likety to be
hadged at any pont in tima and the Group's net transactional exposure to
different currencies varies from time to time.

b) Managemant of profit translation risk

The Group Is exposed to the translation of profits denominated in foreign
currencies into the sterfing-basad income statement. The inerest cost related

10 the cumency kebilies hedging the asset base provides a partial hedge to this
axposure. Short-term curmency option contracis may be used to provide limited
protection against sterling strength on an opportunistic basis. The translation
of US dollar and euro-based profits represent the most significant transtation
exposures for the Group.

c) Management of asset transiation risk

The Group hedges it net investments in its major overseas operations by way
of external currency loans and forward currency contracts. The intention Is 10
manage the Group's exposume to gains and ksses in Group equity resuiting
from retranstation of curmency net assets at balance sheet dates.

To the extent that an instrument used to hedge a net invesiment in a foreign
operation is detarmined to be an effective hedge, the gain or loss arising

is racognisad directly in reserves. Arty ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the income statement.
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d} Currency profiie of assets and Rabilities

Assets

subject
Exchange o interest Other Total Total
Cash* Debt contracts reteriok  notassets  net assots ret esaets
2016 2016 2016 018 2016 2018 2015
fm £m £m &m £m &m £m
Staring 25 - 387 42 25 437 412
QS doflar 5 (215) 61 [149) 164 15 -
Euro 4 (128) (286) 411 422 11 80
Other 3 [1/] (162) {136} 256 120 "7
Total 68 (351) - (283 866 _ 583 580

* Cash is stated net of overdeafis.

Exchange contracts and non-sterling debt are financial instruments used as cumency hedges of overseas net assets.

4,432
Interest rate risk

The Group Is exposed 10 a number of global interest rates through assets and Babilities denominated in jurisdictions 1o which these rates are applied,
mast notably LS, Eurozons and UK rates. The Group is exposed to these becairse market movements in these rales will increase or decrease the interest
charge recogrised in the Group income statement.

a) Managaement of interest rate risk
The Group adopts a policy of maintaining a portion of its kabiiities at fixed intenest rates and reviewing the balance of the floating rate exposure 1o ensure that ¥ interest
retes rise globally the effect on the Group's income statement is manageable.

Interest rates are managed using fixed and foating rate debt and financial instruments including interest rate swaps. Floating rate labilities comprise short-lerm detrt
which bears interest at short-term bank rates and the liabilty side of exchange contracts where the iterest element is based primarily on thvee month inter-bank rates.

All cash surpluses are investad for short periods and are treated as fioating rate investments. .
Non-interest bearing financial assats and kabiities including short-termn trade receivables and payables have been exciuded from the following analysis,
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b) Interest rate risk profile

The following table shows how much of our cash, interest-bearing iabities and exchange contracts atiract both fixed and floating rate intevest charges,
and how this is analysed between cumencies:

Assets Weighted
Debtand  Cashand subject Weighted sverage
axchange  exchange  tointemest Floating Fed average pesiod
contracts  conracts rate Hek rate rate fied  for which
2016 ms 2016 2018 2016 interest mate  rwia s ficed
&m fm £fm fm % yoRrs
Sterling - 412 412 412
US doller 15 85 (150} 65 215 8.7 2.0
Ewo @ie 4 410) (282) {128) 14 8.3
Other {168) o {135) (135)
Total {788} 515 (283) 60 (343}
Assots Waighted
Debt and Cash and subject Waighted avernge
axchange exchange to interest Foating Fowad average period
contracts  contracts rate risk s rate fxed  forwhich
2015 2015 2015 2018 2015 rate  rato Is bied
£m om £m £m om % years
Sterling - 335 335 335 -
US dollar {231) 90 141 90 (231) 68 2.4
Euro (320) 3 (317) 207 {(110) 14 8.3
Other 149) 35 114) (114) -
Total (700} 463 [237) 104 (341)
4.433 Funding for the Group is co-ordinated centrally by the treasury function and
. . comprises committed bilateral facilities with a core group of banks, and & series
Commodity risk of US loan note issues, The level of fecilities is maintained such thet faciities

and term loans exceed the forecast peak gross debt of the Group over a roling
12 month view by an approgriate amount taking into account market conditions

The commadity inpuls fo the Group's produttion process typically consist :

of base metals. Commodity risk for the Group is the risk that tha prices of uuwmmnmmmw.mmn_mwm

these inputs could rise, thus reducing Group profits. buybacks. n « we undertaka reguiar covenarit compliance reviews to
ensurg that we rernain fully within those covenant imits. At the end of 2018 the
Group had undrawn committed facilities totaling £301m {2015; £294m) and

The Group's operating companies purchass metal and metal components washomlgcashandmmumbntsafmmtzqwmﬂm).ﬂmmno

and are thevefore exposed to changes in commodity prices. foi?m“!:aénmmwmmmwcapﬂdnmhmmms

roup.

Management of commodity risk

The Group manages this exposure through & canralised process hedging 4.4.4
copper, zinG and aluminium using a combination of financial contracts and local :
supply agreements designad to minimise the volatility of short-term margins. C&pltﬂ' management

4.4.3.4 Caphal management concerns the dacision as to how the Group's ectivities
N . are financed and specifically, how much of the Group capital is provided by
Liquidity risk barrowings for debt) and how much of it is financed with equity raised from
) 1he issue of share capital.
Liquidity risk is tha risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial The Board's policy is 1o maintain a balance shaet with a broad capital
oblgations as they fall due. base and the strength to sustain the future development of the business

inciuding acquisitions. This section discusses how the Board views the
capital base of the Group and the impact on leverage, distribution pokicy
a) Management of liquidity risk and investment policy.
The Group's approach to managing kquidity is 1o ensune, as far as possible,
that it will always have adequate resources to meet its liabilities when they
fall due, with sufficient headroom 1o cope with abnormal market conditions.
This position is reviewsd on a quartarly basis.
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4.4.4.1
Overview

The Board monitors the geographical spread of its shareholders and
employees are encouraged 10 hold shares in the Comparty. The underlying
capital base of the Group InCludes total equity and reserves and net debt.
Employee benefit obligations net of deferred tax form pant of the axtended
capital base. Management of this slement of the capitel base is discussed
frther in Section 4.5 of the financial statements. Undrawn committed funding
taclities are maintained as described in Section 4.4.5.1 to provide additional
capital for growth {including acquisitions and organic investments) and liquidity
requirernents as discussed above.

4,442
Capital base

2016 2015

£ i fm

Total equity 583 569
Gross debt including overdrafis 363 351
Grogs cash (80} (114)
Caphal base 886 826
Employee benefits and deferred tax assets 57 (24)
Extended capital base 923 802
Undrawn funding faclities D 284
Available capital base 1,224 1,096

Part of the capital basa is held in cumancies to broadly match the cumency base
of the assete being funded as describad in the asset fransiation nigk section.

4443
Debt or equity

The balancae between debt and equity in the capital base of the Group is
considered regularly by the Boerd in ight of market conditions, business
forecasts, growth opportunities and the ratic of net debt to continuing EBITDA
before exceptional itemns. Funding covenants currently limit net debt toa
maximum of 3.0 times EBITDA. The nel debt to EBITDA ratio at the and of
2016 was 1.0 times 2015: 0.9 times). Through the ke of our five year plan,
the Boand would consider appropriate acquisitions that could 1ake net debt up
to 2.5 timeas EBITDA on acquisition, provided that a clear plan exists to reduce
this ratio back to under 2.0 times. It is expected that al thase levels our debt
would conlinue 1o be perceived as investment grade. The potential benefits to
aquity sharsholders of greater laverege are offsat by higher risk and the cost
and avaitabiity of funding. The Board will consider raising additional equsity in
the event that it is required to support the capital base of the Group.

4444
Dividend policy and share buy-backs

As part of the capital management process, the Group ensures that adequate
reserves ang available in IMI plc in order 10 meet proposed shareholder
dividends, the purchase of shares for employee share scheme incentives
and any on-market share buyback programme.

Whilst the Group does not have a formal dividend policy or payout ratio,

the Group's aim is 1o continue with progressive dividends, which typically
Increase at 2 steadly rate for both the interim and final dividend payments,
with an aim that the dividand shouid, through the cycle, be covered by at
least two times reported earnings. In the event that the Board cannot identify
sufiicient investment opportunities through capital expenditure, organic growth
initiatives and acquisitions, the retum of funds 10 shaneholders through share
buybacks or spacial dividends will be considered. it should be noted thet

& number of shares are reguiarty bought in the market by an emplioyee
benefit trust in order to hedge the exposure under certain management
incentive plans. Details of these purchases are shown in Saction 4.6.2

to the financial statements.

4.4.4.5

Weighted average cost of capital

The Group cisrently uses a post-tax weighted average cost of capital (‘WACC)
of 8% (2015: B%) as a benchmark for imvestment returns. This is reviewed
reguiary in tha light of changes in markat rates. Tha Board tracks the Group's

return on invested capital and seeks 1o ensure that it consistently delivers
returns in excess of the WACC.

4.4.5
Debt and credit facilities

This section provides details ragarding the specific bomowings that the Group
has in place 1o satisfy the debt elements of the capital managemeant policy
discussed above.

4.4.5.1
Undrawn committed facilities
‘Fhe Group has various undrawn commitied borrowing facilities. The facilities

avaiable at 31 December in respect of which all conditions pracedent had
been met were as follows:

208 2015
£m £m
Expiring within one year 50.0 22.1
Expiring between one and two years 50.6 750
Expiring after more than two years 200.0 197.1
300.8 2042

The weighted averapge ¥fe of these faciities is 2.7 years (2015: 3.2 years).
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4.45.2
Terms and debt repayment schedule

The terms and conditions of cash and cash equivalents and culstanding loans were as follows:

Effective Camying  Confractual Oto 1t0 2to o 4to 5yews
nerest rate vaum  cashfows <1 yoor <2 yoars <3 years <4 yagrs <5 years and over
9% £n £m £m £m £m om fm fm
20186
Cash and cash equivalents Floating 797 9.7 79.7
US loan notes 2018 5.88% (121.8) {120.9) (7.3 {122.6)
US loan notes 2019 7.61% (81.0) (86.9) (6.2) {6.2) (84.5)
US loan notes 2022 717% (12.2 {17.5) (0.9) {0.9) {0.9) {0.9) {0.9) {13.0)
US loan notes 2025 1.39% (128.0) {142.8} (1.8} (1.8} {1.8) [1.8) {1.8) {133.8)
r_-‘lnance leases ' Various (1.0) (1.0} {0.5) {0.2) {0.1) [0.3) 0.1)
Bank overdrafts Floating {12.2 (12.2) {12.2)
Unsecured bank loans Floating (6.3) (8.6} {6.5) (0.1}
Total {282.8) 327.2) 44,3 {131.8) {87.9) (2.8) {2.8) {146.8)
2015
Cash and cash equivalents Floating 114.2 114.2 1142
US loan notes 2018 7.26% {50.9) 53.0) {53.0)
US lcan notas 2018 5.98% {101.7) (114.8) 6.1) B.1) {102.6}
US loan notes 2019 7.81% 67.8) 86.4) 5.2) 5.2) 5.2) Wﬂ
US Ilcan notes 2022 747% (10.2) (15.1) 0.7) 0.7) 0.7 {0.7) 0N {11.6)
US lean notes 2025 1.39% {110.4] (124.5) {1.5) 1.5) (1.5 (1 5) {1.5) {117.0)
Finance leases Verious (1.0} 1.0) 0.5 ©0.3) 0.1) 0.1)
Bank overdrafts Foating (6.4 (5.4) 6.4)
Unsecurad bank loans FRoating (2.7) {2.9) 2.n {0.1) 0.1}
Total {236.9) {289.9) 38.1 (13.9) {110.2) (73.1) {2.2) {128.6)

Contractual cash flows incdlude undiscounted committed interast cash flows and, where the amount payabla is not fixed, the amount disclosad is detenmined
by referance to the conditions existing at the reporting date.
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4,46
Fair value

Financial instruments included in the financial statements are measured at edther fair value or amortised cost. The measuremant of this fair value can in some
cases be subjective, and can depend on the inpids usad »n the calculations. The Grotup generally calculates its own far values using comparabie observed
market prices and a valuation model using the respective and ralevant market data for the instrument being valued.

4461
Total financial assets and liabilities

The table below sets out the Group’s accounting classification of each class of financial aseets and liablkties, and their fair values at 31 December 2016
and 31 Decernber 2015, Under IAS 39, af derivative financial instruments not in a hedge relationship are classified as derivatives at fair value through the
income statermant. TheGroupdoesnotusedeﬂvatwesfuspwumnewmosesmdvansactsandamweswmwhabbnmmgradewﬂm
All transactions in derivative financial instruments are undertaken to manage the risks arising from underlying business aclivities.

Fair vatve
Cther  Avallable for Al Toal
Designeted  derivetives 888 gss6ts amortised carmying Fair value
atfarveiug  atfervalus &t forr value cost vae  ¥different
£m em £m m om £m
28
Cash and cash equivalents 79.7 70.7
Bank overdrafts {12.2} (12.2)
Borrowings due within one year {8.8) (6.8)
Borrowings due after one yoar (343.4) (343.4) (360.7)
Trage and other payables* . {402.3) (402.3)
Trade receivables 337.0 337.0
Investrments n2 8.7 20.9
Other currert financial assets/(labiitias) -
Derivative assets** 29 2.9
Derivative liabifitias™™ 5.7) 7.8 (13.5)
Total (5.7 {4.9) 100.9 419.0,  (328.7)
2015
Cash and cash squivalents 114.2 114.2
Bank overdrafts 6.4) 6.4)
Bomowings due within one year {54.1} (54.1) {55.6)
Bomowings due after one year (290.6) (290.6) {308.9)
Trade and cther payables* (352.6) (352.6)
Trade receivables 201.3 2013
Investments 18.7 8.3 270
Derivative assets* 28 28
Derivative liabilities** 2.9) .0 B89
Totad {2.9) {3.2) 132.9 {404.1) 277.3)

*Trade and other payables axclude corporation tax and other tax kabilies and include liabifities of £10.7m {2015: £10.5m)} falling due after more than one year.
*ncludes nil {2015: £0.2) faling dus &fter more than one year,

** Darivative Babiiities include labiities of £0.7m (2015: £0.3m) faking due after more than one year: £0.7m in 1-2 years and nif In 2-3 years (2015: £0.3m in
1-2 yrs and nil in 2-3 yrs). Derivative Labilities designated at fair value represant the fair valua of net investment hadge derivatives. The increase in value
of nat investment hedge derivative liabiities in the vear of £2.8m is shown in the consolidatad statement of comprehensive income (net of t1ax).

There are no other financial liabikties included within payables disciosed above and finance leases disclosed in Section 4.4.5.2,
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(cont'd)

The ioliowing table shows the Group's financial instruments hald at fair value.

Quoted pricas in
active markets Significant
for identical other

assats and chsarvable Unobsenvable

Level 1 Level 2 Leval 3 Total
fm £m fm [+ 4]
Az at 31 December 2016
Financial assets measured at fair value
Equity instruments® 21.2 1.2
Cash and cash equivalents 79.7 70.7
Foraign cumency forward contracts 2.9 29
100.9 29 - 103.8
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Foreign currency forward contracts [13.5) (13.5}
- (13.5) - {13.5)
As at 31 December 2015
Financial assets measurad at fair value
Equity instruments* 18.7 18.7
Cash and cash equivalents 114.2 114.2
Forelgn currency forward contracts i 28 28
132.9 2.8 - 135.7
Financial {iabilities measured at falr value _
Foraign currency forward contracts . 8.9} 8.9
- 8.9} - B9)

* Equity instrumenis refate o invastments in funds in order to satisfy long-term benefit arrangamenis.

Valuation techniques for level 2 inputa

Derivative assets and liabiities of £2.9m and £13.5m respectively ara valued by levet 2 techniques. The valuations are derived from discounted contractual cash
flows using observabie, and directly relevant. market interest rates and foreign exchange rates from market data providers.

Valuation techniques for level 3 inputs
The Group has no financial assets or financial abifities maasured at fair value using significant unobservable flevel 3} inputs.

4.46.2
Valuation methodology

Cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafis, trade payabies and trade receivablas are camied at their book valuas as this approximates 1o their fair value due to the
short-term nature of the instruments.

Long-term and short-term bomowings, apart from any which are subject to hedging arrangements, are carried at amortised cost as it is the intention that they will not
be repaid prior 10 maturity, where this option exdsts. The fair values are evaluated by the Group basaed on parameters such as interest rates and relevant credit spreads.

Long-term borrowings which are subject to hedging arangements are valuad using approprate discount rates to value the relevant hedged cash flows,

Derivative sssets and labifities, including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rete swaps and metal hadges, are valued using comparabls cbserved market -
prices and a valuation madel using foreign exchange spot and forward rates, interest rate curves and forward rete curves for the underlying commodities.

Investrments are primarily in publically-quoted pooled funds held 1o fund overseas pension liabilities. The fair value is determined by the unagiusted price quotation
at the reporting date.
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4.486.3
Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the Tollowing hierarchy for determining and disciosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technicue:

Level ¥: quoted {unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indinectly,
Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the reconded fair value that are not based on observable market data,

44.7
Market risk sensitivity analysis on financial instruments

This section shows how the falr value of financial instruments presented can change for a given change in market rates.

The values shown in the table below are estimates of the impact on financial instruments only. The underlying risks that these financial instruments have been
acquired to hadge will move in an opposite direction. ’

4.4.7.1

Overview

In estimating the sensitivity of the financial instruments all other variables are held constant to delermine the impact on profit bafore tax and equity. The analysis
is for iMustrative purposes only, as in practice market rates rarely change in isolation.

Actual rasults in the futune may differ materially from these estimates due 1o the movements in the underlying transactions, actions taken to mitigate any potential
fosses, the interaction of more than one sensitivity occurring, and further developments in giobal financial markets, As such this table should not be considered
as a projection of Bkely future gains and losses in these financial instruments.

4.4,7.2
Financial derivatives sensitivity table

The outputs from the sensitivity analysis are estimates of the impact of market risk assuming that the specified chanpes occur only to the financial derivatives
and do not reflect the opposite movement fom the impact of the specific change on the underlying business that they are designed to hedge.

% 1% 10% 10%
decrease increase 10% 10% dacreasein  increass in
In inarest ininterest  weakening strongthening  basematel  base metal
retes rates In sterding I sterfing oty oSty
£m £m m £ £m m

At 31 Decamber 2016
impact on income staternent: {loss)/gain - - {24 24 {0.3} 0.3
Impact on aquity: flossygain - - {67.4 67.4 - -

At 31 December 2015

Impact on income slatement; (lossygain - - {0.7) Q.7 {0.3) [{K]

Impact on equity: (Iosi)lgam - - 55.3) 55.3 - -
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(cont’d)

45
Retirement Benefits

IMloﬂersammberofdefnedbeneﬁtarrangemmtoarnpbyeeslhaiwlllnmbepaﬂuﬂllmmhnayearaﬂerthepemdnmmeymeumd for
exampile pension benefits, jubllee pians, post-empioyment and other long-term empicyee benefit arangements,

There is a signiicant degree of estimation involved in predicting the ultimate benefits payable under these defined benefit arrangaments in respect of which
the Group holds net liabllities on its balance sheet, This section explains how the value of these benefits payabla and any assets funding the amangements arg
accounted for in the Group financial statements and gives details of the key assumptions upon which the estimations are based.

Assets and Rabilities for defined contribution arangements are minimal as they relate solely to short-term timing differences between the period during which
benefits have accrued and when contributions are paid into schemes.

Defined contribution {'DC’): Arrangements where the employer pays fixed contributions into an external fund on behalf of the employee {(who is responsible for
making the investment decision arx therefore assumes the risks and rewards of fund performance). Contributions 1o these arrangsments are recognised in the
income statement as incurred.

Defined benefit (DB"): A defined benefit pension plan is a pension arrangement in which the employer promises a specified annesal benefit on retirement that

is predatarmined by a formula based on the employee's eamings history, tenure of service and age, rather than depending directly on indiviclual investment
returns. In some cases, this benefit is paid as a ump sum on leaving the Company or while in the service of the Company rather than as a pension. The Group
underwrites one or mora risks in maeting these abligations and therefore any net liabffity or surplus in these errangements is shown on the Group balance shest.

4.5.1
Summary information

Net pansion deficit: £79.8m {2015: surplus of £4.4m)

The net pansion deficit or ‘net Kabifity for dafined benefit obligations’ ('DBO") at 31 December 2016 was £79.8m {2015: surplus of £4.4m). The assets and liabities
of the schemes are aggregated, racognised in the consolidated balance sheet and shown within non-curment abilities or in non-current assets if 8 scheme is in
surplus andd it is recoverable,

Number of defined benefit arrangements: 83 (2015: 63)

The number of defined benefit arrangements remained constant following the recognition of an additional scheme in Germany, offset by the wind-up of a scheme
in Haly.

The following table shows a summary of the geographical profie of the Group’s DBOs:

Surplus/
CQuantity Quantty Asgets DBO (defich)
2016 2015 tm £m £m
Australia 2 2 - {0.4) (0.4}
Ausiria 6 8 - (3.2) 3.2
France 3 3 0.1 1.3} (1.2
Germany 28 27 6.0 (56.5) {50.5)
Incha 6 8 - {0.6) (D.6)
Haly 5 8 - 2.9) [2.9)
Spain 2 2 - {0.1 {0.1)
Switzerland 5 S 80.2 {103.2) (23.0)
us* 3 3 - (21.5) (21.5)
UK 3 3 1,4232.9 (1,400.3) 23.6
63 63  1,5102  (3,500.0) (79.8)

* The US deficit above excludes £21.2m of assets relating 1o unqualified pians classified as investments (ses Section 4.4.6).
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The Group provides pension benefits through a mixture of funded and unhunded
dafined benefit and defined contribution ('DC') arangemerts, although its
strategy i to move away from defined benefit arrangements towards defined

contribution arrangements wherever pcsaible 1o minimise the kabiity of the Group.

Assessments of the obligations of the defined benefit plans ane carriad out by
independent actuaries, based on the projacted unit credit method. An historical
eplit of the types of defined benefit schemes in operation is as folows:

% %
of total of total
Qty Assats assets DBO Rabifties
Type of schame No. m % £m %
2016
Final salary” 21 14240 4% 11,4506 "%
Cash balance™ 10 80.2 5% 106.1 7%
Jubiles™ 1 . 0% 2.8 0%
Other 6 6.0 % 2.5 %
Total 83 15102 100%  1,500.0 100%
2015
Final salary” 21 12734 %% 1,2330 82%
Cash balance™ ik 58.3 5% 86.4 7%
Jutiles™ 3 - 0% 2.0 0%
Other 16 50 0% 169 1%
Toul 63 13467 00% 13413 100%
Asset Calling 02
13465

Revised assats

* Final salary scheme: The pension available 1o a member in a final salary
amangement wil be a proporstion of the member's salary at or around thelr
retirarnent date. This proportion wit be determined by the member's length
of persionable servicg, their actrual mte and any particutar circumstances
under which the mamber retires {for example eerly il-heatth retirerent).

** Cash balanoce: A cash balance scheme Is a form of defined benefit pension
under which the mambar has the right to & defined lump sum on retirermaent
rather than a defined amount of pension recelvable. For example a cash balance
plan mey have rainimum or guaranteed rates of retum on pension contributions.
The amount of pension to which that kimp sum may be corwvertad |s determined
by the annuity rates prevaiing at the tima of conversion.

*+ Jubilee: Jubiee plans provide for cash award payments which are based
on completed lengths of senvice. These payments are often made on cessation
of service with the Company, subject to a minkmum period of service,

Asset profile of schemes

The folowing table sets out the profile of the overall assets of the schemes

{to give an indication of their risk profile), the comparative amounts of the funded
and unfunded DBO and a spht of the balance sheet impact between schemes
with a net persion surplus and a net pension deficit,

2018 2015

£m £m

Quoted equities 34.4 778
Quoted bonds 688.3 661.8
Total quoted assets 7227 730.6
Private equities 1144 923
Insurance policies” 5254 273.9
M1 Scottigh Limited Partnership 18.0 17.4
Hedge funds 14,1 142.7
Property 20.8 a0.1
Other** 858 50.3
Total unguoted assets 787.5 606.7
Fair value of assets 15102 13483
Restriction dua to assst cailing - 0.2)
DBOs for funded schemes (15125 (1,277.1)
DBOs for unfunded schemes [775)] {648
Net surplus/ (deficit} for DEOs (79.8)} 4.4
Schemes in net pension deficit (137.6) 84.3)
Schemes in net pension sumplus 57.8 88.7

*The fair values assigned to the insurance policies are established by

an Independent third party actuary having regard to the Kabiities insured
and in particular the 1AS 19 discount rate, the expected pension ncreases
and the assumead life expectancy of the members covered.

**'Other’ assets includae the market value of interest, nflation, equity and
cumancy swaps relating to UK scheme assets and ligbiities.

The overseas assets of £86.3m {2015: £73.2m) comprise equities of
£34.4m (2015: £12.5m), bonds of £25.2m (2015: £22.2m), insurance of
£7.6m (2015; £28.8m), property of £15.1m (2015: £6.5m} and other asseis
of £4.0m (2015 £3.2m).

Funded: The majority of the Group defined benefit and other post-employment
benefit arrangements are funded, which means they are finked to specific plan
assets that have been segragated in a trust or foundation.

Unfundaed: Plans that are not funded are those that are nat backad by sagregated
assets. Thesa include some pension plans but also a number of other long-tarm
arrangements for the benefit of our employees, with benefits payable whie they
are employed by the Group but more than 12 months after the related service

is renderad, Actuarial gaing and lossas on other long-term arrangements ane
recognised in the income statement in the perod in which they arise.

Averaege duration by geography
mefdbwmgmblesmwsthemngmadavamgemmberofm(orduramn}
over which pension benefits are expected to be paid:

Locakion Yoars
UK 15.9
Switzerland 19.4
USA 9.2

16.5
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs

(cont’d)

4.56.2
The UK and overseas pension funds

4521
The UK Funds

The United Ki constitutes 88% (2015: 83%) of total defined benefit
liabilities and 94% (2015: 95%) of tolal defined benefit assets. Historically the
IMI Pension Fund offered final salary benefits to UK employees untll it closed to
new ertrants in 2005 and to future accrual on 31 December 2010. in Decamber
2014 winding-up procedures commenced and those members who were not
eligibla or did not take up the offer of a single cash lump sum transferred to
one of two new Funds (M1 2014 Paensioner Fund or the iMi 2014 Dafermed
Fund - ‘the UK Funds'). Ongoing pension benefits in the UK are provided

via the Trustee's defined contribution plan - The IMI Retirement Savings Plan.
All UK pension assets ane run on behalf of the Trustee by the Board of the

IMI Common investment Fund.

The Trustee has determined an investment objective to achieve, over time,
a position of seif-sufficiency, defined using a discount rate of gits + 0.25% and
at tha March 2016 valuation the UK Funds were 81.8% fundad on this level.

Assat aflocation

The Trustee has, over meent valuations, continued to reduce asset volatiity
and senslivity to UK Interest rates, inflation and forelgn currencies. This work
cortirned in 2016 with the purchasa of a further £308.5m of insurance policies.
On 31 January 2017 approximately £430m of labilities covered by insurance
policies were pemanently transfermed to the underlying insurance companias
through a formal buy-out transaction. This resulted in the pension asset and
corresponding DBO being removed from the balence sheet. This impact has
not been reflactad in the 2016 financials but will be in the 2017 interim results.

Liabllity meansgement

The Trustee has continued to undertake, where practicable iabdity management
programs. In December 2014 over 2,500 membars (£25.2m of paymaents)
accepiad either minimal commutation payments or winding-up kimp sums as
full settiement of their pension. in summer 2015 a further trivial commutation
axgrcise was carried out with a further £10.1m of settlaments. in June 2016,

a Pension Increasa Exchange exercise was carried out which aliowed
pensionears 10 incraase thair current monthly INcome in retum for removing
part or all of their annual inflationary increases. This exercise resulted in a
pross settlornent gain of £7.6m {see Section 2.2.3).

Contributions

The recovery ptan fom the 2011 valuation agreed annual contributions of
£16.8m until 2016, The Trustes agreed, as part of the 2015 valuation, the
payments for 2015 and 2016 wene not 10 be paid and instead a contingent
contribution plan was agread for the Mt 2014 Pensioner Fund. The amount
of contributions due,  any, wik depend on asset performanca over the next
three triennial valuations with contributions payable where asset returns are
less than 1.5% over gilts. The maximum amounts payable, where asset returns
are lass than or equal to 0.7% over gilts would be:

E13m due 30 June 2019

£12m due 30 June 2022

£12m due 30 June 2025

4522
Overseas pension funds

Following the 2015 Swiss scheme mergers, two of our Swiss schemes were
overfunded. As & result, assets were distributed to members in excess of
their current DBO, resulting in an exceptional loss of £4.7m. Following the
continuation of & restructuring exercise in Switzerland, a curtaiment gain
of £1.5m was reaksed.

Foliowing the deduction of associated fees of £0.1m, these events lad
10 the special pension avents which are classified as exceptional items
(see Saction 2.2.3).

453
Specific effect on financial statements

The comesponding entries for increases and decreases In the net pension
deficit reported in the balance sheet are reflected as follows:

» Cash flow statement: Whan the Group makes cash contributions to fund
the deficit they are reflected in the cash flow statement and reduce the net
deficit/increase the net surpius.

* Income statement: Movements in the overall net pension deficit are
recognised in the income statement when they relate to changes in the
overall pension promise, due 1o either an additional period of service
fknown as 'current service cost’), changes te pansion terms in the scheme
rules (known as ‘past service cost’), or closure.of afl or part of 8 scheme
(known as settiements and curtailments). The interest charge/income on
the net daficit/surplus position is also recognised in the income statement.

+ Other comprehensive income (*OC1"}: Movements in the overall net
pension defick are recognised through OCI when they relate to changes in
actuarial assumptions or the ddference (‘experience gain or loss’) between
previous assumptions and actual resutts.

The table betow reconciles the movement in the UK and overseas defined
benefit surplus/obligation) between 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016.

[V Ovorseas Tota
£m o tm
Net defined benefit surplus/{obligation)
at 1 January 2016 88.7 (84.3) 44
Movement recognised in:
Income statement 0.9 (12.4) (1.5}
[=+] (76.1) (16.8} (83.0)
Cash flow statement 0.1 10.2 103
Net defined benefit surplus/obligation}
at 31 December 2016 236 {103.4) (79.8)




Annual Report and Accounts 2016

"7

4.5.3.1
Cash flow impacts
2016 2015

uK Overseas Totn UK Ovirsans Total

Em £m £m Em £m £m
Amounts frorm employees - 2.5 2.5 - 28 28
Amounts from employers 0.1 4.9 5.0 - 52 52
Banelils and settlements paid directly by the Group - 5.3 5.3 45 45
Total 0.1 2.7 128 - 125 125

The expacted contributions (o the defined benefit arrangernents in 2017 are £3.0m of nomal employer condributions and £2.4m of normal employee contributions,

both in relation to overseas pension funds.

4.5.3.2
Other comprehensive income

Movements in pension assets and liabifities that arise during the year from changes in actuarial assumptions, or because actual experience is different from the
underlying actuarial assumptions, are recognised in equity via other comprehensive income. These movemenis are analysed baiow:

2016 " 2015
Oversaas Oventess Cverseas Oversoas
post non-post

post nON-post
UK employment amployment

Total UK  employment  employment Total
£m £m £m €m m [ £m fm
Change in ciscount rate {203.2) (8.6) - @120) 282 28 - 310
Change In inflation (43.0} 2.4 - {40.6) - 04 - 0.4
Change in other assumptions {4.3} 0.0 - {3.4) 8.0} 08 - {7.1)
Actuarial experiance 6.5 1.2 - 7.7 318 2.6} - 290
Asset experience 167.9 2.0 - 160.9 @5.8) 05 - {25.4)
Actuarial gains/{losses} in the year {76.1) {2.3) - (78.4) 269 2.0 - 27.9
Change in the asset coling - 0.2 - 0.2 - {0.1) - 0.1}
Exchange gains/flosses} - (13.0) {1.8) {14.8) - 0.1 {0.1) -
Gains/(losses) recognised through equity {78.1) {15.1) {1.8) {93.0) 259 2.0 {0.1) 27.8
IMI takes advice from indepencient actuaries regarding the appropriateness of the assumptions used to determine the present vaiue of the defined benefit
obiigations. Thesa assumptions include the discount rate applied to the assats and liabillties, the life expectancy of the mambaers, their expected salary and
pension increases and inflation. The assumptions used for this purpose in these financial statements are summarised below:
Waoighted! Averages
3 Dec 2016 31 Dac 2015 31 Dec 2014
UK Ovarseas [7.34 Owversess UK COwerseas
% pa % pa % pa % pa % pa % pa
Inflation - RPI 3.4 n/a 3.1 na 3.1 n/a
Infiation - CPI 2.4 1.2 2.1 1.5 2.1 1.7
Discourt rate 2.8 1.4 3.7 1.7 38 2.1
Expectad salary increasss 2.2 1.4 25 1.7 n/a 22
Rate of pansion increases 34 0.4 3.1 0.4 3.1 0.3
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(cont’d)

206 2015 2014
Years Yoars Years
Lite expectancy at age 65 [UK Funds only)
Currant male pensioners N2 214 ne
Cumrent female pensicners 24.1 240 240
Future male pensioners 233 23.2 23.0
Future female pensioners 26.4 26.3 260

The mortality assumptions used for the UK Funds above reflect its scheme specific experience, together with an allowance for improvements owver time. The experience
was reviewed as part of the formal triennial actuarial valuation carried out as at 31 March 2014, and the assumptions used as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 reflect

the results of this review.

The table below #lustrates how the UK Funds® net pension surplus would decrease
{exciuding the impact of inflation rats and irenest rate hedging), as at 31 December

20186, in the evertt of the following neascnable changes in the key assirmnptions above.

The table below shows how the net pansion deficit for IMi's non-UK plans
would increase, in the event of the following reasonable changes in the key
assumptions above.

UK Non-UK

Discount rate 0.1% pa lower £17.0m Discount rate 0.1% pa lower £3.1m
Inflation-linked pension incrsases 0.1% pa higher* £10.5m Salary increasas 0.1% higher £0.5m
Increase of one year in Iife expectancy from age 65 £32.9m Increase of one year in ife expactancy al age 65 £3.2m
10% fall in non-bornd-iike assets*” £21.4m

. In gach case all other assumptions are tunchanged.
* This is an in-payment pension increase sensitivity.
** Fund assets excluding cash, bonds, insurance policies and the Funds' intenest

in the M| Scottish Limited Partnership.

4.5.3.3
Income statement
In accordance with IAS 19, penslon costs reconded throuph the income statement primariy represent the increase in the defined benefit obligation based on

emplkoyee service during the year and the interest an the net liabiity or surplus for defined benefit obligations in respect of employee service in previous years.
The table below shows the total cost reported in the income statement in respect of pension obfigations and therefora also includes the cost of DG schemes.

2018 2015

Cverssas Overseas Oversoas Overssas

post  non-post post non-post
UK empioyment employment Total UK employment  employment Towal
Om m om £m m £m £m £m
Curment service cost - 5.1 1.5 6.6 - 5.0 0.9 5.9
Past service cost/{credit) (7.8} 4.7 - .9} - - - -
Sattlement/curtaiiment - {1.5) - (1.5) 0.2) {0.7) 0.1 2.8
Recognition of losses/Agains} - - 0.4 04 - - (1.5} {1.5)
DC smployer contributions - - - - 3.5 4.1 - 76
Pension (Income)/expense - operating costs {7.6) 8.3 1.8 2.6 33 {0.6) 0.5) 22
Interest on OBO 42.7 _21 0.4 458 43.8 4.1 0.4 48.3
Inderest on assels (46.0) (0.9) - (46.9) {46.9) 2.2 - (48.5)
Interast {ncome)expense - financing costs © (3.9) 1.8 0.4 1.1) {2.5 19 0.4 0.2)

During the year a Pension Increase Exchange exercise was carried out which allowed UK pensioners to increase their cument monthly income in retum for remoning
pan or al of their annual inflationary increases. This resulted in a gross sattiement gain of £7.6m. Following the 2015 Swiss scheme mergers, two of our Swiss
schemes were overfunded. As a result, assets were disiributed to membaers in excess of their current DBO, resutting in an exceptional ioss of £4.7m., Following the
continuation of a restruciuring exercise in Switzerland, a curtalimant gain of £1.5m was also realised. Fees of £1.6m were incurmed as part of these evants, resulting
in & net gain from special pension evants of £2.8m in the income statement.
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454
Overall reconciliation of changes in the net surplus/(liability) for defined benefit obligations

2018 2015
Net defined Nat defined
Datinad bensfit Dafinad benefi
beneft Assat anset/ benefit Asset essot/
obiigation Assets caling (abiiny) |  oblgation Assets celing ety
£m £m m fm £m £m o om
Brought forward at start of year (1,341.7}  1,346.3 0.2) 44 | (1,5104) 1,475.8 0.1) {34.7)
Current senice cost 6.8) - - (6.6} {5.9) - - (5.9
Past ssrvice cost 2.9 - - 29 - - - -
Settlernent/curtatimert 5.0 {3.5) - 1.5 108.2 {58.4) - 2.8
Net interest (cast)income on net defined banefit
fiabdity)/asset (45.8) 46.9 - 1.1 {48.3) 48.5 0.2
Immediate recognition of gains/llosses) {0.4) - - {0.4) 1.5 - - 1.6
Total credied/ichamged) to income statement (44.9) 43.4 - 0.5) 55.5 {49.9) - 58
Actuarial gain due 10 axperience 7.7 - - 7.7 200 - - 20.0
Actuarnial (loss}/gain due 10 financial assumgption changes {252.8) - - (252.6) 237 - - 23.7
Actuarial loss)/gain due to demographic
assumption changes {3.4) - - (3.4) 0.6 - - 0.6
Retumn on plan assets* greater/iower} than discount rate - 169.9 - 160.9 - (25.4) - 25.4)
Change in effact of asset celling . - - 0.2 0.2 - - 0.1) ©.1}
Total remeasurements recognised In other
comprehansive incoms {248.3) 169.9 0.2 {78.2) 53.3 (25.4) {0.1) 27.8
Emplayer contributions - 5.0 - 5.0 - 52 - 5.2
Employes cordributions {2.5) 25 - - 2.8 2.8 - -
Benefits and settiemants paid dinectly by the Group 5.3 - - 53 4.5 - - 4.5
Benefits paid from plan asseis 703 {70.3) - - 68.0 68.0) - ;
Net cash outfiow/(inflow) 73.1 {62.8) - 10.3 69.7 {60.0) - 0.7
Acquisitions - - - - {4.0) - - {4.0)
Changes in exchange rates (28.2) 13.4 - (14.8) 6.8 5.8 - -
Total othar movements (28.2) 13.4 - (14.8) {9.8) 5.8 - (4.0}
Carried forward at end of year {1,590.0) 1,510.2 - {79.8) | (1,341.7} 1,346.3 0.2) 4.4

* Net of asset management costs




120 IMI plc

Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(cont’d)

4.6
Share capital

The ordinary shareholders of the Group own the Compary. This saction shows how the total number of ordlinary shares in issue has changed during the
year and how many of these ordinary shares are held as treasury shares or in Employee Senefit Trusts, to be used to satisfy share options and awards to
directors and employees ot the Company. as part of empioyes shara ownership programmas. This $ection aiso sels out the dvidends pald or proposed
to be pakd to shareholders.

461
Number and value of shares
206 2015
Ouilmry Ordinary
Shares Shares
28 4/Tp per 28 4/7p per
share share

Number im)  Value (Em)| Number{m)  Value (Em)

In Issue at the start of the year 286.2 81.8 286.0 81.7
Issued 10 satisly employee share schemes - - 0.2 0.1
In issue at the end of the year 288.2 81.8 286.2 81.8

All issued share capital at 31 December 2018 is fully paki and corways the same rights.
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46.2
Share movements in the year

Movements in shares due 1o share issues and purchases during the year were as follows:

MNumber of arciinary shares of 28 &/7p each imilion)

Employee
Bensiit Trust Treasury Other Total
In issua at 31 Dacember 2015 0.2 14.3 271.0 286.2
New issues to salisfy employee share scheme awards . - - -
Market purchases 08 - {0.8) -
Shares aliocated under employee share schemas {0.8) - 0.8 -
At 31 December 2016 0.8 143 271.0 286.2

During the vear n {2015: 0.2m) shares were issued under empioyee share schemeas realising £nil (2015: £0.9m).

Employee Benefit Trust

The Employee Benefit Trust made market purchases of a total of 0.8m {2015: nf) shares with an aggregate market value of £8.0m (2015: £nil) and a nominal
value of £0.2m (2015: £nil). Associated transaction costs amounted to £nil (2015: €.

Share options exercised in 2016 were settiad using the shares in the Group's Employee Benefit Trust. in 2016 0.8m (2015: 0.8m) shares were issued
for cash of £0.6m (2015: £2.3m).

Of the 15.2m (2015: 15.2m) shares held within retgined earnings, 0.9m (2015: 0.9m) shares with an aggregale market vaiue of £9.4m (2015; £8.0m}
are held in trust 1o satisfy ampioyes share schema vesting.

46.3
Dividends

After the balance shest date the fallowing dividends were proposed by the directors. The dividends have not been provided for and there are no income
tax consequenceas,

2018 2015

£m £m

Cusrent year final dividend - 24.7p per qualifylng ordinary share (2015: 24.5p) 87.0 66.4
The following dividends were declared and paid by the Group during the year:

2016 2015

£m fm

Prior year final dividend paid - 24.5p per qualifying ordinary share (2014 final year dividend: 24.0p) 65.3 64.9

Current year intarim dividend paid - 14.0p per qualifying ordinary share {2015: 13.9p} 379 376

104.2 102.5
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(cont’d)

4.7
Share-based payments

The Group uses share option schemes 1o reward and retain its employees. The estimated cost of ewarding these share options is charged 1o the income
statement gver the period that the Group benefits lom the employees’ services. This cost is then added back to retained eamings, to reflect that there is
no overall impact on the Group's balance sheet unti the shares ane issuad 10 the empioyeas when the options are exercised.

The individual share option schemas, the number of options outstanding under each of them, the estimated cost of these options recognised in the income
statement and the assumptions used in amiving at this estimated cost are described in this section.

4,71
Qutstanding share options

At 31 December 2018, options to purchase ordinary shares had bean granted to, but not yet exarcised by, participants of IM! share option schemes as follows:

Oate of Number

granl  of hares Price Detes from which exarcitabla
iM| Sharesave Scheme 06.04.11 363 849.02p 01.08.16
10.04.12 25163 890.01p 01.08.17
05.04.13 32.000 1106.50p 01.08.16 or 01.08.18
06.05.14 25109 1384.02p 01.08.17 or 01.08.19
05.06.15 84,554 1075.32p 01.08.18 or 01.08.20
280418 212213 845.10p 01.08.19 or 01.08.21
_ _ 380,302
Global Employee Shars Purchase Plans 19.12.11 1,312 848.02p 01.08.18
10.04.12 672  890.01p 01.08.17
01.08.15 57,110 911.52p 01.09.17
15.08.18 35833  948.60p 15.08.18
04,727
IMI Incentive Plan 07.05.15 714216 - 07.05.17 or 07.05.18
09.03.18 1,174,352 - 09.03.18 or 09.03,19
1,888,568
IMI Share Dption Plan 03.09.08 2,989  440.93p 03.00.12
22.03.10 22000 645.00p 220313
230311 235840 971.83p 23.03.14
04.05.12 426400 080.57p 04.05.15
27.41.12 14,400 1007.33p 27.11.15
120313 426,450 1322.70p 12.03.16
10.06.13 10,000 1204.33p 10.05.18
2210.13 74000 1518.33p 22.10.18
11.03.14 411,323 1467.00p 11.03.17
1,623,402
IMI 2005 Lnng_-term Incentive Plan (also known as Performance Share Plan) 05.04.07 2,146 - 20.03.10
04.04.08 4,500 - 04.04.11
221013 3418 - 22.10.16
110314 146688 - 11.08.17
156,752
Share Matching Plan 07.05.10 3,001 - 22.03.13
28.03.11 3,154 N 28.03.14
10.05.12 53,164 - 10.05.15
09.04.13 35,374 - 09.04.16
01.04.14 322394 - 01.04.17
N7ATT

Total 4,561,018
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4.7.2
Schemes under which options
are outstanding

The options in the above table relate 10 the following share-based
payment schemes:

M1 Sharesave Schame ('SAYE')

This scheme is open 10 the majority of the Group’s UK employees, including
1he executive directors, and allows the grant of options 1o all participants at a
discount of up to 20% below the market prica. Such schemes am not subject
1o performance conditions and offer tax incentives 10 encourage empioyess to
usa their own maney 10 purchase IMI shares. SAYE Qptions may ba exercisad
within six months of the cate they first become exercisable.

Global Employee Share Purchase Plans (‘GESPP')}

These plans were introduced in 2011 for the US and Germanw. The Garman
and US GESPP's ofier the opportunity 1o buy shares in IMI at a fixed price at

a futwee date. The German GESPP mimors the UK Sharesave scheme, with a
minimum/macdmum savings limit per month and contract duration of three to
five years. The US GESPP also operates in a similar way t¢ the UK Sharesave
Scheme, with a minimum/maxirnum savings imit per month, but the contract
duration is for a fixed period of two years and different taxation conditions apply
for the exarcise period. No further awards are intended to be granted under the
Gaman GESPP.

M| Share Option Plan {SOP")

Share option ewards were macle from 2009 10 selected senior managers
and certain other employees under the SOP. These awards ane not subject
to perormance conditions, but are subject to a thres year vesting period.
The purposa of the SOP is to give selacted IMI employees (who are not
exacutive directors of the Company) the opportunity to share in the benefits
of share price growth and to increase their IMI shareholding.

1M1 2005 Long-term incentive Plan {also known as Performance
Shave Plan (‘PSP

Awards have bean granted to the Company's executive diectors and selected
senior managers within the Group. Awands have been granted subject to
stretching performance targets, the nature of which differs depending upon
the year in which the award was granted. No further awards can be grantad
under the PSP,

4.7.3
Other share-based payment arrangements

The Group aiso operates the following employee shars plans:

Share Matching Plan (‘SMP")

The delivery of the executive directors’ and selectad senior managers” annual
bonuses is governed by the individual's achievernent of a Share Ownership
Guideline {'SOG"). The SOG is a reguirement to hold a percentage of salary as IMI
shares and, if achieved, any bonus is paid in cash. The SMP has been operated
on the basis that if the SOG Is not achieved a proportion of any annual bonus
wil be mandatorily deferred for three years and delivered in IMI shares under the
SMP: This mandated Investment { the SOG is not achieved) has been maiched
from 75% up to a maximum of 200%. These matching shares can be sarned if
performance conditions over the three year vesting period are met.

Qualifying emplovees have also been able 10 slect voluntarily to defer all or part
of the remaindar of their bonus, and invest personal funds, up to a maximum
of 100% of their annual bonus opportunity. Additional shanes, in the form of

a maiching award, may be eamed fup to a madmum of 200% of the 'gross
equivalent' number of ghares investad in the SMP) if performance conditions
over the three yaar vesting period are met.

The performance measunas for SMP matching ewards differ depending upon
the yaar in which the award was granted. No further awards can be granted
under the SMP.

Share ncentive Plan {"SIP*}

The SIP is open to the majority of tha Group's 1K employeas, including
the executive diractors. This scheme covers two separate oppartunities for
employess to share in IMI's success as follows:

» Partnership shares — allow employees 1o invest up 1o the statutory maximum
from pré-tax pay, which is used to buy IMI shares.

* Free shares — alows & grant of shares to empioyees each year, up to the
statutory maximum.

Shares acquired or awarded uncier the SIP ara not subject to performance

conditions and offer tax incentives to encourage employees 10 build up their

sharsholdings with the Company.

The IMI Incentive Plan (IIP")

In fight of the expiry in 2015 of both the PSP and SMP, the IIP was introduced
to act as the Company's sole senior executive long-ism incentive plan, The
IIP acts as an umbretia pian which allows the Company to grant diffarent types
of award to different employee groups in an efficient way. The lIP is to be used
annuelly to grant 'Performance Share Awards’ in respect of ordinary shares
1o the executive directors and other members of senior management subject
1o performance conditions. The [IP will also be usad annually to grant 'Bonus
Share Awards’ below board level. The IIP also gives the Company the ablity
to grant 'Restricted Stock Unit Awards' and "Share Options'. It is currantly
interded that Restricted Stock Unit Awards and share options will only be
granted in responss to specific business requirements.
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(cont’d) '

4.7.4
Options granted during the year

options average Norrmal
granted option  exercisable
{thousand} price date
SAYE
2015 227 1075p 2018-2020
2016 227 845p 2019-2021
GESPP
2015 66 912p 2017
2016 36 949p 2018
P
2015 783 - 200172018
2016 1,238 - 2018-2018
475
Movement in outstanding options in the year
Opticns
granted at
Ogtiorns not granted &t nil costM nd cost® Totat
Nurnber of Waighted Numberof  Number of
options Ranga of averago options options
fthousand)  option prices _ option price thousand)  thousand)
Quitstanding at 1 January 2015 2,702 201-1518p 1157p 2,857 5.550
Exarcisable at 1 January 2015 368 201-972p 862p 508 876
Granted ; 203 912-1075p  1038p 783 1,076
Exarcised 382 201-1384p 858p 487 [
Lapsed 305 201-1467p 1239p 561 866
Qutstanding at 31 December 2015 2,308 441-1518p 1180p 2,582 4,900
Exercisable at 31 December 2015 814 441-1007p 981p 653 1,457
Granted 283 845-949p 858p 1,238 1,80%
Exercised 100 511-1187p 8889p 841 750
Lapsed 383 845-1467p 1177p 727 1,080
Outstanding at 31 December 2016 2,080  441-1518p 1156p 2,462 4,561
Exercigable at 31 December 2016 1,236 441-1518p 1128p 106 1.4

MQOptions not granted at ¥ cost include options granted under the following schemes: IMl Sharesave Schema, Global Employes Share Purchase Plans
and IMI Share Option Plan. ’
A0ptions granted at ni cost are those granted under the Performance Share Plan, Share Matching Plan and IM! incentive Plan.
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4.7.6
Share-based payment charge for the year

The total expense recognised for the year arising from share-based payments
was £5 8 (2015 £1.1m) which comprises a chamge of £13.5m (2015: £12.9m)
for the year offset by a credit of £7.7m (2015: £11.8m) in respect of lapses.

£3.9m (2015: £3.5m) of the total charge and £2.4m (2015: £4.2m) of the total
crecit is in respect of options granted 1o direclors.

4.7.7
Share-based payment valuation methodology

The fair value of services recaived in return for share options granted are
measured by reference to the fair vale of share options granted, based on
a Black-Scholes option pricing model, The assumptions used for grants in
2016 included a dividend yield of 4.7% (2015: 3.4%), expected share price
volatifity of 239% {2015: 22%), a weighted average expectad We of 3.4 years
{2015: 3.5 years) and a weighted average interest rate of 0.5% (2015: 0.6%).
The expected volatility is wholly basad on the historical volatilty (calcutated
based on the weighted averaga reméining ife of the share options), adjustad for
any expected changes to futura volatiity due 1o pubiicly avallable information.

4.7.8
Other share-based payment disclosures

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options
outstanding as at 31 December 2016 is 6.84 years (2015: 6.87 years)
and the weighted average tal value of share options granted in the year
at their grant date was £7.75 (2015: £9.15).

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of share
options exarcised during the year was £9.34 (2015: £11.90}.

4.8
Non-controlling interests

Non-controliing interests are recorded as reductions from the income and
equity recorded in the Group's financial statements. In accordance with IFRS,
these arise because if the Group controls en operation, it accounts for that
operation as if the Group were the only party holding an interest in i, bulin
spite of this control, when other parties have an infarest in the oparation,
that interest should be reflected.

The deducthion from income and equity therefore reflects the reduction in
the Group’s interest resulting from the third party's inferast.

Shanghal

CCt SLP Total

m £m on
Non-confrolling interests as at
1 January 2018 21 40.7 428
Profit for the year attributable to
non-controlling interests {0.4) 28 2.4
Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests {0.8) - [0.8)
Income eamed by partnership - (4.4) [4.4)
2016 movement in non-controliing
interest 1.3 (1.6} {2.8}
Non controlling interest as at
31 Decamber 2018 0.9 39.1 40.0

The non-controlling interest denoted Shanghai CCl in the abowve table represents
the 30% ownership interest in the ondinary shares of Shanghei CCI Power Corrol
Equipment Co Limited held by Shanghai Power Station Auxitary Equipment
Works Co Limited.

The non-controliing interast denoted SLP relates to an interest in the IMI
Scottish Limited Partnership which is hald jointly by the Funds and provides

the Funds with a conditional entitiement to recelve income of £4.4m per annum
unless the Group has not paid a dividend in the prior year or the Funds ane

fully funded.
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Section 5 - other notes

5.1
Contingent liabllities

A contingent Babiity is a Eablity that is not sufficiently certain to qualify for
recognition as a provision because significant subjectivity exists regarding
its outcome.

Group contingent liabilties relating to guarantees in the normal course of
business end ather items amounted to £208m (2015: E161m).

5.2
Related party transactions

Ralated parties are solely the key management persannel. The Board s
considered to be the key managemesnt personnel of the Group.

2018 2015

m m

Short-tarm employea benefits” 4.7 46
Share-based paymenis™ 1.6 {0.7)
Tota) 8.3 39

* Short-term employee benefits comprise salary, ncluding employers’ social
contributions, benefits eamed during the year and bonuses awarded for the year.

** For details of the shared based payment (creditcharge for key management
personnel, see Section 4.7.6.

There ara no other retated party transactions.

5'3
Subsequent events

Events that occur in the period between 31 December and the date of
approvaf of the Annual Report can be categorised as adjusting or non-adjusting
depending on whether the condition exdsted at 31 December. if the event is an
adjusting event, then an adjustrnant to the results is made. If a non-adjusting
event afier the year end is material, non-disclosure could influence decisions
that readers of the financial statements make. Accordingly, for each material
non-aciusting event after the reporting period we disclosa the nature of the
event and an estimate of its financial effect, or & statement that such an
estimate cannot be made.

Thane were no adjusting subsequent evenis giter the balance sheet date of 31
December 2016. As noted in Section 4.5.2.1, on 31 January 2017 appraximately
£430m of liabiiities covered by insurance policies werg permanently transferred
10 the undartying insurance companies through a formal buy-cut transaction.

This resulted in the pansion asset and cormesponding DBO baing removed from -

the balance sheet. This Impact has not been reflected in the 2016 financials but
will be in the 2017 interim resuits.

54
Significant accounting policies

A. Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

The Group financial statements consofidate the financial staterments of IMIplc
and the entitles it controls {its subsidiaries) for the year to 31 Decamber.
The Group has no significant interests which are accounted for as associates
or joint ventures as at 31 December 2016.

Subsidiaries are consolictated from the date of their acquisidion, being the dats on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated unti the date
that such control ceases. Control comprises the power to govern the finandial and
operating poficies of the investee 5o as to obtain benefit from #ts activities and is
achieved through direct or indirect ownership of voling rights; currently exercisable
or convertible potential voting rights; ar by way of contractual agreament. The
financial statements of subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consofidated
financial statements are prepared for the same reparting year as the parent
company and are based ¢n consistent accounting policies. Al inragroup balances
and transactions, including unrealised profits ansing from them, are efiminated n full.

A ¢hange in the ownersﬁip interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control,

is accounted for as an equity transaction. if the Group loses control aver a

subsidiary, it:

* deracognises the assets (including any goodwill relating to the subsidiary)
and liabilities of the subsidiary;

* derecognises the camying amount of any non-controfing interest;

*» derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;

» recognises the fair value of the considaration received;

» racognises the tair value of any investment retalned;

* racognises any suplus or defickt in profit or loss; anct

» reciaasifies the parent's share of comporents previously rcognised in other
comprehensive income to profit or loss or retained eamings, as appropriate.

Taxation on the above accounting entries would also be recognised
where applicable,

Non-controlling inlerests inchude the equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly
or indirectly, to the parent company and the UK Funds’ interest in the IM| Scottish
Limited Partnership {‘the Parinership’). Non-controliing interests are presentad
within equity in the consolidated balanca shest, seperately fom equity attributable
to owners of the panent. Losses within a subsidiary are proportionally attributed to
the non-controling interest even if that results in a deficit balanca.

B. Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make
judgemants, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accouniing pokicies and the reported amounts of assats, kabilittes,
incorme and expansas, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

i. Judgements, estimates and assumptions

The key judgements and assumptions concarning the future and other ey
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant
risk of causing a material acustment o the camying emounts of assets and
liabilities within the next inanciel year ans described below. The Group bases
s assumptions and estimates on information available when the consolidated
financial staterments are prepared. Market changes or circumstances arising
beyond the control of the Group are reflected in the assumptions when they
ocour. Revisions 1o accounting estimates are recognised in the pecod in which
the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

Impairmant of non-financisl anssts

impaiment axists when the carrying value of an asset or cash genarating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fts fair value kess costs
1o sell anv its value in use. The value in use is based on a discounted cash flow
model. Cash flows are derived from the Group's kng-term forecasts for the next
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threa o five years. The principal assumptions in these calcutations are the
long-tarm growth rates and the discount rate applie! to forecast cash flows in
addition to the achievement of the forecasts themselves. Further information
on this process and the assets affected is included in Section 3.2

Acquired businesses

The Groug has over the years acquired 8 number of businesses. IFRS 3
‘Business Combinations’ recuires the acquired assets to be recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition date. The valuation of these acquired assets inwvolves
the use of estimates and assumptions, in particutar with respect 10 the valuation
of acquired ntangibles for which there are significant ungbservable inputs,

Disposed businesses

The Group has over the years disposed of a number of businesses. The sale
agreements contained various warmanties and indemnities. In Some cases,

the agreements also include the potential for adiusiment to the purchase price,
sometimes contingent on future events. At the time of disposal, the accounts
reflact the bast estimate of the likely future impact of these agresments.

These eslimates are then regularty reviewed and provisions are recognised
whera necessary,

Share-based paymenis

The Group measures the cost of equity-settied transactions with empiayees

by reference to the fair valug of the equity instruments al the date at which they
are grarted. Estimating fair valus for share-based payment transactions requires
datermination of the most appropriate valuation modesl, which is dependent on
the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination
of the most approgriate inputs 1o the valuation madel including the expectad
life of the share option, volatility and dividend yisld and related assumptions.
These assumptions and the models used for estimating fair value for share-
based payment transactions are disclosad in Section 4.7,

Taxes

Uncertaintias exist with respect to the interpretation of gomplex tax reguiations,
changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of futre taxable income  Ghen
the wide range of international business relationships and the long-term nature
and complaxdty of endsting contractual agreements, diffierences arising between the
actual results and the assumptions made, or fulura changes 1o such assumptions,
could necessitate fiture adjustments to the tax income and expense already
recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for
possile consequences of audits by the tex authorities of the respective countries
in which it operates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors,
such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpratations of tax
reguiations by the taxabla entlty and the responsible tax authority. Such differences
of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions
prevaiing in the respective domicie of the Group companies.

Deferrod tax assets ane recognised for unused tax lossss 10 the axtant that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be racognised, basad upon the likely timing and
the level of future taxable profits.

Trading provisions

The Group sells 8 wide range of highly technical products ari whilst its products
are designed and engineered 1o & high degree of precision and 1o customer
specifications, thers will always be a risk of products requiring moedification, which
can lead to warranty claims as wel as excess or obsolete inventory, collection risk
regarding receivables and other trading provisions. Provisions are held against
these risiks, which are estimated based on past experience of claims and by
maasuring the likaly use of inventory in the kuture against past usage. The degres
of dependance on future events makas these estimates inherently subjactive.

Employee benefits

The present value of the Group's defined benefit pension plans and other post-
employment benefits are determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial
valuation irwolves meking various assumptions that may differ from actual

cavalopments in the future. These inciude the determination of the discourt rate,
inflation, future salary increases, mortality rates and futus pension increases.
These assumptions, accompanied by sensitivity analyels thereon, are included
In Section 4.5. Due to the complexdty of the valuation and its long-term natuve,

a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.

in particutar, although only constituting a minor proportion of the assets,

the valuation of the UK Funds' imanasts in the Scottish Limited Partnership

is a highly subjective area becausa their valuation depends on an actuarial
assessment of the amount a third party might be willing to pay for tha asset,
taking into eccount the risk that the associated income stream coudd either
cease in the event that the two UK Pension Funds both became fully funded or
becoms deferred in any year in which no dividend was paid lo the shareholders.

Consolidation of the Scottish Limited Partnership ('SLP') and inclusion
of the UK Pansion Funds' interests in this special purpose entity as a
non-controlling interest

InJune 2010, ihe Group made a special contribution to the IMI Pension Fund of
£48.6m which tha Trustee agreed to invest in the IM| Scottish Lirrited Partnership
{*SLP’), an entity controlled by the Group, which conferred upon the Fund
conditional rights to receive income of £4.4m a yaear for twenty years, or unti the
Fund becomes fully funded. Onea of the judgements involved In this issue was
whether this entity qualified as a Spetial Pupose Entity and whether the entity
shauld ba consofidated. It was determined that the entity meets the definition of a
Specid) Purpose Entity under iFRS 10 and furthermors, upon consideration of the
criteria in this interpretation, it was determined that consofidation was appropriate.
The Partnership Agreement includes a clause under which the payments in

the year are deferred in the event that the Group has not paid a dividend in the
pracading year and therefore, because the Group has the abifity to defer these
payments indefinitaly and is in control of the circumstances under which the
arrangemsnt can be terminated, the payments envisaged by the agreesment are
discretionary and therefore do not constitute a liability under IAS 32. As such

tha Pension Funds' interests in this SLP have been recorded as non-controling
interasts, as a componard of equity. During the prior year the IMI Pansion Fund
commenced winding up procedures and the relavant liabiities were transferred
to one of two new funds, M 2014 Deferred Fund and IMI 2014 Pensioner Fund
{together ‘The Funds'). The interest in the SLP is now held jointly by the Funds.

Development costs

Development costs are capiialised in accordance with the cnteria set out in IAS
38: intangible Assets. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on management’s
judgement regarding the technological and commercial feasibiity of the asset,
and only when a product development project has reached a point where
such deterrninations can be made. In 1esting these assets for impairment,
management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash
genaration of the project, discount rates to be applied and the expected
period of benefits. Further detail is provided in Section 3.2

C. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recogrised 10 the extent that it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and that the revenue can be rsliably measured.

The nature of the equipment, valve and other coniracts into which the Group

enters means that:

 the contracts usually contain discrete alements, each of which transfers risks
and rewards to the customer. Where such discrete slements ame present,
ravenue is recognised on sach element in accordances with the policy on
the sale of goods.

+ the service elament of the contract is usually insignificant in relation to the
total contract value and is often provided on a short-term or one-off basis.
Whaera this is the case, revenue is necognisad when the service is complste.

As a result of the above, the significant majority of the Group's revenue is
recognised on a sake of goods basis,
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Section 5 - other notes
(cont’d)

The spacific methods used to recognise the different forms of revenue
earned by the Group are set out below:

i. Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised in the income statement nat
of returns, tracle discounts and volume rebates when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have besn transterred {o the buyer and reliable
maasurement is possible. No revenue is recognised whene recovery of the
consideration is not probabie or there are significant uncertainties regarding
associated costs, or the possible return of goods.

Transters of risks and rewards vary depending on the nature of the products sold
and the individual terms of the contract of sale. Sales made undar internationally
accepted trade terms, Incoterms 2010, are recognised as revenue when the
Group has completed the primary duties required 1o transfer risks as defined by
the Intemational Chamber of Commerce Official Rules for the intarpretation of
Trade Terms. Sales made outsiie Incoterms 2010 are generally recognised on
delivery 10 the cusiomer. In limited instances, a customer may request that the
Group ratains physical possession of an asset for a period after the significant
risk and rewards of ownership have transferred to the customer. In these
circumsiances, the Group provicies this siorage as a service 10 the customer
and therefora revenue is recognised prior to delivery of the asset.

li. Rendering of services

As noted above, bacause revenue from the rendering of services is usually
Insignificant in refation 10 the total conract value and is generally providsd
on a short-tarm or one-off basis, revenus is usually ecognisad when tha
service is complete.

Whaere this is not the case, reverue from servicas rendered is recognised in
poportion to the stage of compistion of the service at the balance sheet date.
The staga of completion is assessed by raferance to the contractual agreement
with each separate customer and the costs incumed on the contract to date

in comparison to the total forecast costs of the contract. Revenus racognition
commences only when the outcome of the contract can be relably measured.
Instakation fees are simdarly recognised by reference to the stage of completion
on the installation unless they are incidental 1o 1he sale of the goods, in which
case they are recognisad when the goods are sold,

When a transaction combines a supply of goods with the provision of a
significant service, reverue from the provigion of the service is recognised
separately from the revenue from the sale of goods by reference to the stage
of completion of the service uniess the sarvice is essential to the functionality
of the goods supplied, in which case the whole transaction is treated as a
construction contract. Revenue from a service that is incidental to the supply of
goods Is recognised at the same time as the revenus from the supply of goods.

fii. Construction contracts

As noted above, customer contracts usually comaln discrete elements
saparately transfeming risks and rewards to the customer. However, where
such discrete elements are not in place, revenue from significant contracts is
recognised in proportion to the stage of complation of the contract by reference
to the specific contract terms and the costs incurred on the contract 1o date in
comparison to the fotal forecast costs of the contract,

Vanations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included in
revenus from construction contracts whan certain criteria are met. Variations
are included when the customer has agreed to the variation or acknowledged
lkability for the variation in principle. Claims are includad when negotiations
with the customer have reached an advanced stage such that the customer is
certain to accept the claim. Incentive payments are included when a confract
is sufficisntly advanced that it is probable that the performance standards
triggering the incentive wil be achleved.

Profit atiriutable to contract activity is recognised if the final outcome of such
contracts can be refiably assessed. On all contracts, full provision is macde for
any lossas in tha year in which they are first foreseen.

D. Exceptionai items

Exceptional kems are disciosed separately on the face of the income staternent and
excluded in anMng at reported results, whers the quantun, the one-off nature or
volatifty of these items would otherwise distort the underlying trading performnance.

The following ilems of incoms and expense ara considered to be exceptional

in these financial statermeants;

* Gains and losses {including fair value adjustments) on derivative financial
instruments;

* Restructuring costs, which comprise significant costs associated with the
closure of activities or factories and the cost of significant reductions in
workdorce due to excess capacity or the reorganisation of faciities. Non-
significant restructuring costs are not disclosed as exceptional items;

» Special pension events, which comprises setilement gains or losses relating
to the Group’s defined benefit schemes;

* Impairment losses recordad against goocdwill, intangible assets and other
opearating assets;

+ The amortisation of acquined intangible fixed assets;

» Gains or losses on disposals of subsidiaries;

= Costs associated with acquisitions and disposals, which principally reprasent:
- Costs payable to the legal and financial advisors assisting with the

ongination and completion of the transactions; and

- Cantingent consicleration payments, which because they might be forfeited
in sorne of the instances in which the vendors' post-acquisition employment
confracts may be terminated, ane required by IFRS 3 {revised} to be treated
as ramunenation.

The tax impact of the above ftems is also shown within exceptional items.

E. Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.

The cost of an acquisition is measuned as the aggregate of the consideration
transferrad, measured at acquisition date fak value and the amount of any
non-controfling interest in the acquiree. The choice of measurement of non-
controlling interest, either at falr value or at the proportionate ghare of the
acquires's identifiable net assets is determined on a transaction by transaction
basls. Acquisition-related coste incumed are expensed and inciuded in
administrative sxpenses unless their quantum, nature or volatility meets

the definition of an exceptional kem as set out in accounting policy D.

When the Group acquires a business, It assesses the financial assets and
liabikties assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance
with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions
as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded darivatives
in contracts held by the acquiree.

Arnw contingent consideration to be tranaferred by the acquirer will be
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair valua of the contingent consideration which is deamed to be a Eablity will
be recognised in accordance with LAS 38 either in profit or Ioss or in other
comprehengive income. If the contingent consideration is classifiad as equity.
it is not remeasured untll i is finally settled within equity.

Goodwil is inttially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of the consideration transfermed and the amount
recognised for the non-controling interest (and where the business combination
is achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree) over the net identifiable amounts of the
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed in transactions separats 10 the
business combinations, such as the settiernent of pre-existing retationships
or post-acquisition remuneration arrangaments are accounted for separately
from the business combination in accordance with their nature and applicable
IFRSs. ldentifable intangible assets are recognised separalely from goodwil,
Caontingent Eabilities representing a present obligation are ecognised if the
atquisition-date fair value can be rellably measured.
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If the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of the consideration trensfeved
and the amount recognised for the non-controliing interest {and whare the business
combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition-date (air vaiue of the acquirer’s
prenviously held aquity intenast in the acquinee} is lower than the fair value of the
assets, llabilties and contingent labilities and the fair value of any pre-existing
interest hald in the business acquired, the difference is recognised in profit and loss.

After inftial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost lass any accumulated
impaiment ksses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated 1o aach of
the Group's cash-generating uniis (or groups of cash generating units) that are
expecied to benefit from the combination, imespective of whether other assets
or liahifties of the acquiree are assigned to those units. Each unit or group of
units to which goodwill is allocated shall represent the lowest leval within the
entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes
and shall not be larger than an operating ssgmant before aggregation.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation
within that unit is disposet of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed
of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

F. Financial income and expense

Financial income comprises interest receivable on funds invested, incoma

from investmsnts and gains on hedging instnuments that are recognised in the
incoma statement. interest income Is recognised in tha income statement as it
accrues, taking into account the effective yield on the asset. Dividend income

is recognised in the income statement on the date that the dividend is declared,

Financial expense comprisss interest payabla on borrowings calculated using
the effective interest rate method, tha intenest related element of derivatives
and losses on finandial instruments that are recognised in the income statement.
The interest expense component of finance lease payments |s recognised In
the income statement using the effective interest rate method

Net finance expense relating to defined benefit pension schemes represents the
assumed interest on the difierence between employee benefit plan tiabilities and
the employee benefit plan assets.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that necessanly takes a substantial period of time to
gat ready for ns intended use or sale are capitalsed as part of the cost of the
respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the pericd they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

G. Income tax

Current tax payable/receivable reprasents the expected tax payable/receivabla
on the texable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date and taking into account any adiustmerts
in respect of prior years.

Defermed tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and ablities for financial
maporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is
not recognisad for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of
goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or kabifties in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit,
and difierences relating to irvastments in subsidiaries 1o the extent that the
timing of the reversal of the differences can be controlad and it is probable
that the differences will not reversa in the foreseeable futurg. Delerrad tax is
measured at the tax rates that are expectad to apply when the temporary
difierances reverse, based on the tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

A dafermed tax asset Is recognisad to the extent that if is probabie that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary difference can ba utilised.

H. Non-cutrent assets held for sale and discontinued opersations
Where appiicable, on initial clagsification as ‘heid for sale’, non-current disposal
groups ane recogrised at the lowsr of carrying amount and fair value less costs
to seil. Impaimment iosses on the inifial classiication of assets as held for sale
are included in profit or loss, even for assets measured at fair value, as are
impairment losses on subsequent rermeasurement and any reversal thereof.
Once classified as held for sale, assets are no longer depreciated or amortised.

A discontinued operation is a componant of the Group's business that represents
a separate major ine of business that has been dispossd of, is held for sala or
is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view 10 re-sale.

I. Foreign cusrencies

i. Forign curmancy transactions

Monetary assets and liabiities denorinated in foreign cumancies have been
translated into steriing at the rates of mxchange nJing et the batance sheet
cate. Foreign exchange differences arlsing on transiating transactions at

the axchange rate ruling on the transaction date are reflected in the income
staternent. Non-monetary assets and liabifties that are measured at historical
cost in a foreign currancy are transiated using the exchange rate at the date
of the transaction. Nor-monetary assets and Babiities danominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are transiated into sterling at foreign
exchange rates ruiing at the balance sheet date.

ii. Foreign operations

The income statements of overseas subsidiary undertakings are transiated at
the appropriate average rate of exchange for the year and the adjustment 1o
year end rates is taken directly to raserves.

The essets and Rabilities of forelgn operations, including goodwill and fair value
adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated at foraign exchanga rates
ruling at the balance sheet dats.

Forsign exchange differences arising on retransiation are recognised directly
as a separate component of equity. Since 1 January 2004, the Group's date
of transition 1o IFRSs, such differences have been fecognised in the transiation
reserve. Whaen a foreign operation is disposed of, in part or in full, the relevant
amount in the transkation reserve is transferrad to profit or loss.

J. Financial instruments and fair value hedging

Financial instruments are initially recorded at fair value plus directly attributable

transaction costs untess the instrument is a derivative not designated as &

hedge (see below). Subseguent measurement dapends on the designation

of the instrument, which follows the categories in IAS 39:

* Fixed deposits, principally comprising funds hetd with banks and other
financial institutions are classified as ‘avallable for sale assets' under LAS 39,
and held at fair value. Short term bomowings and overdrafts are classified
as financial kabiities at amortised cost.

+ Derivatives, comprising interest rete swaps, foreign exchange contracts and
as “fair value through profit or loss’ under IAS 39, unless designated as hedges.
Derivatives not designated as hedges are mitially recognisad at fair value;
attrinable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.
Subsequen to initiad recognition, changes in fair value of such derivatives
and gains or losses on thelr settlement are recognised in net financial income
OF expense.

» Long-term loans and other interest bearing bomowings are generally held at
amortised cost using the effective interast rate method. Where the long-term
loan is hedged, generally by an Interest rate swap, and the hedge is regarded
as effective, the camying value of the long-term loan is edjusted for changes
in falr value of the hedge.

» Trade receivables are stated at cost as reduced by appropriate impairment
allowances for estimated irecoverabie amounts.

* Trade payables ang stated at cost,
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Section 5 - other notes
(cont’d)

* Financial assets and liabifities ara racognised on the balance sheet only when
the Group baecomas a party to the contractual provisions of the instrumant.

= Available for sale financial assets are carried at fair value with gains and losses
being recognised in equity, except for impairment losses which are recognised
in the income statement.

K. Other hodging

i. Hedge of monetary assets and Rabilities, financial commitments or
forecast transactions

Where a derivative financial instrument Is used as an economic hedge of the

foreign exchange or metals commodity price exposure of a recognised monetary

assat or kability, financial commitment or forecast transaction, but does not meet

the criteria to qualify for hedge accounting under IAS 38 no hedge accounting is

applied and any gain or loss rasulting from changes in fair value of the hadging

instrument is necognised in net financial income or epense.

Where such a derivative is a formaly designated hedge of a forecast transaction
for accounting purposes, movements in the value of the derivative are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income to the extert the hedge is effective. The
Company assesses the efiactiveness of the hedge basad on the expected fair
value of the amount 10 be received and the moverment in the fair value of the
derivative designated &s tha hedge.

For sagmantal neportng purposes, changes in the fair value of aconomic hedges
that are not designated hedges, which relate to current vear trading, togather with
the gains ard josses on their sattierment, am allocated 10 the segmental revenues
and operating profit of the relevant business segment.

li. Hedge of net investment in foreign operation

Whare a foralgh currency liablity or derivative financial instrument is a formally
designated hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation, foreign exchanga
differances arising on transiation of the foreign currency kability or changes in
the fair value of the financial instrument ane recognised directly in aquity via
other comprehansive income 10 the axtent the hedge is effactive. The Group
assesses the effectiveness of its nat investmeant hedges based on fair value
changes of its net assets, including relevant goodwill designated as foreign
currency assets, and the fair value changes of both the debt designated as

a hedge and tha relevant financial instrument,

L. intangible assets

Intangible assets are further sub-divided in the notes to thase accounts between
acequired intangible assets and non-acqguired intangible assets. Amortisation
of acquired intangible assets is treated as an exceptional itern as described in
accounting policy D of thase accounting policies, because of its inherent volatiity,
The accounting policy for goodwil is described in accounting policy E.

i. Research and deveiopment

Expenciiture on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining
new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding, is recognised in
the income statement as an expense as incumed.

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research findings are applied to
& plan or design for the production of new or substantially improved products
and processes, is capitalised provided benefits are probable, cost can be
refiabty measured and if, and only if, the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and intention
to complgte development. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of
maitsrials, direct labour and directly attributable overneads. Other development
expenditure is recognised in the income staternent as an expense as incured.
Capitalised development expenciture is stated at cost less accumutated
amortisation (see below) and impairment losses {see accounting policy
‘Impalrmant’) and is included in the other acquired or other non-acquired
category of intangible assets depending on its origin.

ii. Softwara development costs

Software applications and systems thal ane not an integral part of their host
computer equipment are capitaised on initial recognition as intangible assets
at cost. Cost comprises the purchase price plus directly attibutable costs
incurred on development of the asset to bring it into use. Following initial
recognition, software development costs are carried at cost less any accumulated
amaortisation {see below) and accumulated impalrment losses (see accounting
policy Impaiment’) and are inciuded in the other acquired or other non-
acquired category of intangible assets depending on their origin.

iii. Customer relationships and other acquired intangible assets

Customer relationships and other intangible assats that are acquired by the
Group as part of 8 business combination are stated et their fair value calculated
by reference 10 the net presant value of future benefits accruing to the Group
from utiisabion ¢f the assat, discounted at an appropriate discount rate.
Expenditure on other infemnally generated intangible assats is recognised

in the income statement as an expense as incurred,

iv. Amortigation of intangible assets other than goodwill

Amartisation is charged 16 the income statement on a straight-line basis
{other than for customer relationships and order book, which are charged on
a sum of digits basis) over the estimated ussful lives of the intangible assets.
for use. The estimated usefid fves for:

+ Capitaized development costs are the lite of the intangible asset

{usually a maximum of 10 ysars)
+ Software development costs are the fife of tha intangible asset (up to 10 years)
+ Customer relationships are the Me of the intangible asset up 10 10 years)

= Other intangible assets (including order bocks, brands and software)
are the life of the intangible asset (U to 10 years)

M. Property, plant and squipment
Freshold land and assels in the course of construction are not depreciated.

hems of property, plant and eguipment are stated at cost less accumnulated
depreciation (see below) and impairment losses (ses accounting policy
'Impaimment).

Where an itern of property, plant and ecuipment comprises mejor components
having different useful ives, they are accounted for as separate items of
property, plant and equipment. Costs in respect of tooling owned by the Group
for clearly identifiable new products are capitalised net of any contribution
received frorn customers and are includad in plant and equipment.

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-ling basis
{urdess such a basis is not aligned with the anticipated benafit) so as to write
down the cost of assets (o residual values over the period of their estimated
useful ives within the following ranges:

+ Freahold buildings - 25 to 50 years
+ Plani and equipment - 3 to 20 years

N. Loased assets

Leases whare the Group assumas substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases.

Plant and equipment acquired by way of finance lease is stated at an amount
equal to the lower of its fair value and the presant value of the minimum lease
paymeants &t inception of the lease, less accurmdated depraciation (see above)
and impairment losses (see accounting policy “Impairment’).

Payments made undar operating leases are recognised in the income statement
on & straight-line basis over the term of the leasa.

Lease incentives received are recognised in the income staternent over the
period of the lsase unless a different systematic method is more appropriate
undar the terms of the lease. The majority of leasing transactions entered into
by the Group are operating leases.
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O. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisabie value. Due to
the varying nature of the Group’s operations, both first in, first out (‘FIFD')
and weighted average methodologies are employed. In respact of work in
progress and finished goods, cost includes all direct costs of procuction
and the appropriate proportion of production overhearss.

P. Cash snd cash squivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits.
Bank ovardeafis that are repayable on demand and form an integeal part
of the Group's cash managemant are included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Q. impairment

The carrying values of the Group's non-financlal assets other than inventories
{see accounting policy ‘rwentories') and defermed tax assets (see accounting
policy 'Income tax’}, are reviewed &t each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any inckcation of impainment.

if any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset or al assets
within its cash generating unit is estimated. An impainment loss is recognised
whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognisad in the income statement.

For goodwill and assets that are not yet available for use, the recoverable
amount is evaluated at each balance sheet date.

i. Cakulation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of the Group's receivables other than financlal assets
held at fair value is calculated as the presant value of expected future cash
flows, discounted at the original effectve interest rate inherent in the asset.
Receivables with a short duration of less than one year are not discounted.

‘The recaverable amount of other assets is the greater of their fair value

lgss costs 10 sall and value in use. In assessing value in use an individual
assessment is made of the estimated future cash flows generated for each
cash generating unit (based upon the latest Group forecast and extrapolated
using an appropriate long-term growth rate for each cash generating unit in
perpetuity consistent with an estimate of the refevant geographic long-term
GDP growth). These are discounted to their present valug using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Management beligve that this
approach, inciuding the use of the indefinte cash flow projection, is appropriate
based upon both historical experience and because i Is one of the bases
management utilise to evaluate the fair value of investment apportunities.
For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows,

the recoverable amount 1s determined for the smallest cash generating

unit to which the asset belongs.

ii. Reversals of impairment

As required by IAS 36 Tmpaimnent of Assets’, any impairment of goodwil or
available for sale financial asssts is non-reversible. In respect of other assets,
an impaiment loss is revarsed if at the balance sheet date there are indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer axists following a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

Animpairment loss is reversed only to tha extent that the asset’s camying amount
does not excead the canying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impainment loss had bean recognised.

R. Dividervds

Final dividends payable are recognised as a liability at the date at which they are
approved by the Company's shareholders or by the subsidiary’s shareholders in
respect of dividends to non-controliing interasts. Interim dividends payable are
recognised on the date they are declared.

§. Employee benafits
i. Defined contribution pension plans

Contributions to defined contribution pension plans ané recognised as an
expense in the income statement as incurred.

ii. Defined bensafit pension plans

The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benelil pension plans is
calculaled separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employess have eamed in retumn for their sarvice in the current and prior periods;
thal benefil Is discounted 1o determine its present value, and the fair value of any
plan asssts are deducled. Past service costs are recognised m profit or loss on
the earlier of the date of the plan emendment or curtailment, and the date that
the Group recognises restructuring-related costs. The discount rate is the yreld
at the balance sheet date on high quality corporaie bongds of the appropnate
currency that have durations approximating those of the Group's obligations.
The calculation is perfarmed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit

cradit mathod. When tha calculation results in @ net asset to the Group, the
recognisad asset is limited to the net total of any unrecognisad past service
costs and the present value of any future relunds from the plan or reductions

in future contribtutions to the plan and restricted by any mlevant asset ceiling.
Any deducdtion made by the tax authorities in the event of a refund of a sumpius
would be regarded by the Group as an income tax.

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the expense is recognised immediately
In the income statemant. Re-measursment gains and Iosses are recognised
immediately in equity and disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income.

iii. Long-term service and other post-employment benefits

The Group's net obligation in respect of long-term service and other post-
employment benafits, other than pension plans, 1s the amount of future benefit
that employeas have earned in return for thelr service in tha current and prior
periods. Tha obligation is calmulated using the projacted unit crediit mathod
and is discounted 1o its present value and the fair value of any related assets
is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the balance sheet date on high
qualty bonds of the appropriate cumency that have durations approximating
those of the Group's obligations.

iv. Equity and equity-related compensation benefits

The Group operates a number of aquity and equity-related compensation benefits
as set out in Section 4.7. The falr value of the employee services received in
exchangs for the grant of the oplions is recognised as an expense each year,
The total amount ‘o be expensed over the vasting period is determined by
reference 10 the feir value of the options granted, exciuding the impact of any
Non-market vesting conditions ams inchuded in assumptions about the number of
options that are expecied 1o become eercisable. The fair value of the options is
determined besed on the Black-Scholes option-pricing modet.

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that ane expected 10 vest. It recognisas the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the income statament.

For ney issued shares, the proceeds received net of any directly attibutable
trensaction costs are craditad to share capital (nominal value) and share premium
T. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a resull of past events; it is probable that an outfiow of resources
will be required 10 sattie the obligation; and the amount can be reliably

estimated. Provisions are valued at managerment’s best estimate of the
amourit required 1o settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date.

A prowvision for restructuring is recognsed when the Group has approved
a detalled and formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring has either
commeanced or has been announced publicly.
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their report, together with the audited financial statements, for the year ended 31 December 2016.
The Strategic Report is on pages 4 to 43, sections of which are incorporated into the Directors' Report as set out below.

Results and dividend

The Group consolidated incoms statement is shown on page 76. Segmental
operating profit amounted 1o £227.7m (2015: £239m) and statutory profit before
taxation and discontinued operations amounted to £165.3m {2015: £162.7m).

The directors recommend a final dividend of 24 7p per share (2015: 24.5p per shang)
on tha ordinary share capital payebie, subject to shareholder approval at the Annual

General Meeting to be held on 4 May 2017, on 19 May 2017 10 shansholders on the
register at the ciose of businass on 7 Aprl 2017, Together with the interimn dividend
of 14p per share paid on 16 Saplember 2016, this final dividend will bring the total
distribution for the year 1o 38.7p per share (2015: 38.4p per share).

Resasarch and devslopment
See Section 2.1.3.3 to the financial stetements on page 89.

Shareholders’ funds
Shargholders' funds decreased from £546m at the end of 2015 to £543.2m
at 31 December 2016.

Share capital

As at 31 Dacember 2016, the Company's share capitat comprised a single class
of share capital which was divided into ondinary shares of 28 4/7p each. Details
of the share capital of the Company are s&t out in Section 4.6 10 the financial
statements on page 120. The Company’s ordinary shares are listed on the
London Stock Exchanga.

The Company has a Level 1 Amencan Depositary Receipt ('ADR') programme
for which Citibank, N.A. acts as dapositary. See page 155 for further details.

As at 31 December 2018, 900,304 shamss were held in an employee trust for use
in relation to cerlain exscutive incentive plans representing 0.3% of the issuad
share capital {excluding treasury shares) at that time. The independent trustes
of the trust has the sama rights as ary other shargholder. Participants in option
schemeas do not hold any volting rights on the shares until the date of exercise.

Ouwring 2016, 39,475 new ordinary shares were issuad under employes shane
schemes: 39,475 under save 85 you eam plans and nil under exscutive share
plans. Shares acquired through Compary share schemes and plans rank
equaly with the shares in issue and have no special rights.

The rights and obligations attaching to the Compeny's ordinary sharas are set
out in the Company’s articles of association, copies of which can be obtained
from Companies House in the UK, from the Company's website or by writing
10 the Compary Secratary. Changss to the articles of association must be
approved by a special resolution of the shareholders (75% majority required)
in accordance with the legisiation in foroe at the time. Subject to applicable
statutes, shares may be issued with such rights and restrictions as the
Company may by ordinary resolution decide or (€ there is no such resciution
or so far as it does not make specific provision) as the Board may decide.

Hoiders of ordinary shares are entitled 10 receive the Company’s report and
accounts, 1o attend, speak and vote at general meetings of tha Company,

and to appoint proxies to exercise ther rights. Holders of ordinary shares may
receive a divdand and on & liquidation, may share in the assets of the Company.

Subject to meeting certain thresholds, holders of ondinary shares may requisition
& general meeting of the Company or proposa resolutions at Annus! Ganeral
Maetings. Voting rights for ordinary shares heid in treasury are suspended and
the treasury shares camy no rights 1o recelve dividends or other distrbutions

of assets.

There are no restrictions on the transfer of ondinary shares in the Company
other than:

* cartain restrictions as rmay from time to time be imposed by laws and
regulations (for example insider trading laws); and

» pursuant to the Company's share dealing code whereby the directors
andt certain empioyees of the Company require approval to dea! In the
Company's shares.

The Company ie not awara of any amangaments between shaereholders that
may result in restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares or on voting rights.
None of the ordinary shares carry any special rights with regard to control of
the Company. The only restrictions on voling rights are those that apply to the
ordinary shares held in treasury. Electronic and paper proxy appointments and
voling instructions must be received by the Company’s registrars not later than
48 hours (excluding any non-working days) before a general meeting, or {subject
to tha Company's articles of agsociation} any adjournment thereof.

Own shares acquired by the Company

The Company was granted authority at the Annuat General Meeting hakd on
5 May 2016 to purchasa up to 40,790,321 of its ordinary shares of 28 4/7p
each, This authority will @xpire at the ¢onclusion of the next Annual General

Maeating to be held on 4 May 2017, where sharehokiers will be asked o give
a simitar axthority, details of which are given in the separate Notice of Annual
Genseral Meeting. In 2018, the Company did not make market purchases of
its own ordinary shares.

As &t 31 December 2016, 14,248,836 ordinary shares {nominal value
£4,071,006) were held in treasury reprasenting 5.2% of the issued share capital
{exchuding treasury shares) at that time. The maximurn number of shares held in
treasury during the year snded 31 December 2016 was 14,248,836,

Substantial shareholdings

information provided to the Company pursuant 1o the Disclosure Guidance and
Trangparency Rules is published on a regulatory information service and on the
Company's website. As at 31 December 2018, the following voting interests

in the ordinary share capital of the Company. disclosabie under the Disclosure

Guidance and Transparency Rules, had been notified to the Cornparw:

% Held"

MFS Investment Management 10.17%
Ameriprise Financial Inc 5.03%
Blackrock Inc 501%
Lsgal & General Group pic 3.03%

1 As of the date in the notification to the Company.

Subsequent to 31 Dacember 2016 and up 1o the date of this Report, no changes
in the voting interests have been notified to the Company in accondance with the
Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules.

As far as the Company is aware, there are ne persons with substantial holdings
in tha Company other than those noted ebove,

Statement on corporate governance

The required disclosures ana contained in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 49 to 54 and are incomorated into this Directors’ Report by reference.
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Employment sngagement and diversity

Every effort is made to ensurs that applications for employment from disabled
ampioyees ame fully and fairty considerad and that disalied employees have
aqual opporiunity in training, succession plinning and promaotion. Further
disclosures relating (o employee diversity, employee engagament and policies
are set out on pages 29 to 33.

Details of employes share schemes are set out in the Remuneration Report on
pages 59 1o 71 and in Section 4.7 of the financial statements on pages 122 10 125.

Health, safety and the environment

It is Group policy to confinuously improve healthy and safe working conditions
and 1o aways operate in an gnvironmentally responsible manner.

Our carbon reporting statistics show that our recent performance in goss
tonnes of CO2e has cortinued 1o improve: 2014 - 62,500, 2015 - 61,250,

2016 - 60,000. As such, wa achigved our target to keap ermissions at or below
2015 lavels for 2016. Of the 2016 total, our direct (Scope 1) emissions of CO2e,
essantially gas, diesel and fue! ol consumect, amounted to 17,500 tonnas. Our
indirect (Scope 2) emissions of CO2e, essentially the emissions generated on our
behalf to provide our electricity, amounted to 42,500 tonnes.

In addition to gross tonnes of CO2e, we report CO2e intensity relative to
Emiion sales; Ouwr result for 2016 is 36.3 which is en improvement relative 1o
2015's reported figure of 39.5 but a slight deterioration when 2015 is restated
on & constant cumency basis (35.2). Using 2015 as our hew baseline, we plan
10 continuously improve our emissions perfomance going forward, including
building on the resulis from the European Energy Directive audits undertaken
in 2015 and cascading these lessons throughout our non-European facilities,

Our CO2e accounting methodology follows DEFRA guidelines and includes
all material emissions across IM. See page 38 for further CO2e and enargy
efficiency delais.

Political donations
No poitical donations wene made during the year.

Directors

The membership of the Boand and biographical datalls of the directors are
given on pages 48 and 47 and are incorporated into this report by reference.

The rules for the appointmant and replacemant of directors are set out in the
Cornpany's arficies of association. The Company's articias of association require
each director to stand for re-election at sach Annual General Maeting.

Qualifying indemnity pravisions and lishility insurance

The Company maintaing directors’ and officers’ liabdity insurance and all
directors of the Company benefil frorm qualilying third party indermnity provisions
which wene in place during the financial vear. At the date of this Annual Report
there are such indemnity arangements with each director in respect of the
costs of delending ciil, criminal and regulatory proceedings broughit against
them, &s a diracior or empioyes, subjlect siways 10 the limitations set by the
Companias Act 2006.

The Group oparates pension schemes in the UK which provide retirement and
death benefits for employeas and former employees of the Group. The corporate
trustee of the pension schemes Is IMI Pensions Trust Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company. Qualifying pension scheme indemnity provisions, as definad in
Section 235 of the Companies Act 2006, were in force ko the financia! year
ended 31 December 2016 and remain in force for the banefit of each of the
directors of the corporate tnustes of the pansion schemes. These indemnity
provisions cover, 1o the extent permitted by law, certain losses or fabilities
incumed as a director or officer of the corporate trustoe of the pension schermes,
The Group also has in place third party qualifying indemnity provisions, as
defined in Saction 234 of the Companies Act 2008, in favour of certain
ampioyess who discharge responsiilties for various wholly-owned subsiciary
companias and thass indemnities are given on a simiar basis to the above.

Role of the Board

The rofe of the Board is:

+ {0 promote the success of the Company;

* be guarckans of stakeholders' interests;

= t0 set/monitor leadership behaviour and culture;

= {0 select and appoint the Executive Committee;

s 10 prowida supportive challange to the Executive Commities;
« to approve business plans and strategy:

* 10 oversee governancs, risk and the control emvironment; and

-& 10 morvior and overses the businesses and management,

The Board provides leadarship, dinction and governanca for the Company and
oversees business and management perfonmance. The Board has adopted a
comorate govemance framewark which defines Board roles and includes the st
of matters reserved to it and written delegations of authority for its commitiees
and the Executive Commitee. Board resarved matters include strategy and
key areas of policy, major operational and strategic nks, significant investment
decisions and material changes in the organisation of the Group.

Inthe M| Comporate Governance Framework, the Board has clearly defined

in writing those matters which ane reserved 10 it and the nespective delegeted
authorities of its committess and it has also set written limits of authority for

the Chief Executive. The Group has a clear organisational structure and well-
establishad reporting and control disciplines. Managers of operating units
assume responsibiiity for and exercisa a high degrea of autonomy in running day-
to-day trading activities. They do this within a framework of clear ndes, policias
and delegated authorities regarding business conduct, approval of proposals for
investment and material changes in operations and &re subject 1o ragular senior
management reviews of performance.

Divislon of responsibilities amongst directors

Chairman:

* building & well-balanced Board

« chairing meetings, setting the agenda and ensuring the best uss of time

* ensuring effactivaness of tha Board including the quality of dabate
and decisions

» promoting the right environment and relations for effactive engagement
and challenge arourxd the boardroom table

* satting the tone and high standards of governance practice

* getting the right executive leadership and succesgion plans in place

There is a clear division of responsibiity between the Chairman and Chief
Executive, which is reflected in the IMi Corporate Governance Framework
approved by the Board. In summary, the Chairman s responsible for the
leadership and effectiveness of the Board but does not have any exacutive
powers or responsibilities. The Chief Executive lsads the Exacutive Committes
In unring the businesses and implemeniing opersational and strategic plans
under authority gelegated by the Board.

The Chaman is responsible for ensuring thet the Board meetings operate to
an appropriate egenda, and that adequate information is provided sufficiently
in advance of meetings to allow proper consideration. He is supporied by the
Compary Secretary, who also assists in ensuring that the Board operates in
accordance with good comporate governance under the Code and relevant
ragulatory requirernents. The Company Secretery acts as secretary to all of
the standing commitiees of the Boand. The Board has a recognised procedure
for any director 1o obtain independent professional advice at the Company's
expenss and ol dimctors have access to the Company Secretary who is

a solicitor.
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(cont’d)

Chief Executive:

+ leadership of the Executive Commitiee

= formudating strategy, business plans and budgeis

* ensuring the highest compliance and internal contrgl standands are maintainec
* developing organisation structure

* resourcing, telent development and succession plans

Directors’ powars

The powers of the directors are detsrmined by UK legislation and the articles
of association of the Company in force from time 10 time. The directors wene
authorised to aflot and lssue ordinary shares and to maks market purchases
of the Company's ordinary shares by resolutions of the Company passed

at ks Annual General Meeting held on 5 May 2016. The curment authorities
will expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting to be held
on 4 May 2017, at which new authorities will be sought.

Further details of authorities the Company is seeking for tha alloiment,
issue and purchase of s ondinary shares are set out in the separate
Notice of Annual Genaral Meeting

Directors’ interests

The interasts of the persons (including the interests of any connected persons)
who were directors at the end of the year, in the share capital of the Compary,
and thair interests under share option and incentive schemes, are shown on
page 70.

Managemant of comflicts of interest

The Company's articies of association include certain provisions relevant
to the activity of the Board and its committees. Thase provisions include
requirements for cisclosure end approval by the Board of potential conflicts
of interesl. Thase procadures apply, inter alia, 10 extemal directorships and
1t is the Boand's view that they operated effectively during 2016.

Each director has a duty under the Companies Act 2006 to avoid a situation in
which they have or may have a direct or indirect interast that conflicts or possibly
may conflict with the interests of the Company. This duty is in addition t0 the
cluty that they owe to the Company to disciose 1o the Board any interest in any
transaction or arrangemant under considaration by the Company. il any director
becomes aware of any situation which may give rise to a confiict of interast, that
director informé the rest of the Board end the Board is then permitted under the
articles of association 1o decide to authorisa such conflict. The information is
recorded in the Company's register of conflicts and & conflicts authorisation
ietter is issued to the relevant director,

Change of control

The Company and its subsidianies are party to a number of agresments that
may allow the countemarties to alter or terminate the arangements on a
change of cortrol of the Company folowing a takeover bid, such as commercial
contracts and employse share plans, Other than as refarrad to in the next
paragraph, none of these is considered by the Company to be significant in
terms of its likely impact on the Group as a whole.

In the event of a change of contral of the Company, the Group's main funding
agreaments allow the landers to renegotiate terms or give notice of mpayment
for all outstending amounts under the retevant faciities.

‘The Gompany doas not have agreements with any direcior or employee that
would provida compensation for loss of office or empioymant specifically
resulting from a takeover, although the provisions of the Company's share
schemes include a discrgtion 10 allow awards granted 10 directors and
employeas under such schemes to vest in those circumstances,

information to be disclosed under Listing Rules 9.8.4R

Liating Rule Detad Section

8.8.4R (1-2)(5-14) Not applicable N/A

9.0.4R (4) Long-term incentive schemes 4.7
Intemnal control

The Board has responsibility for oversight of the Group's system of internat
control and confirms that the system of internal control takes into account the
Code and nelevant best practice guidance including the Financial Reporting
Councils September 2014 publication, *Guidance on Risk Management,

Alf operating umits prepare forward pians and forecasts which are reviewed in
detai by the Executive Committes and consolidated for review by the Board.
Performance against forecast is continuously monitonsd at monthly meetings
of the Executive Committes and, on a quartery basis, by the Board. Minimum
standards for accounting systems and controls, which ara documented and
monitored, are promulgated throughout the Group. Certified annual reports
are required from senior execiives of operating units, confiming compliance
with Group financial reporting requiremants. Tha intemal audit function, Group
Assurance, operates a roling programme of internal assurance on site reviews
at selectad operating units. Additionally, visits to operations are carmied out
by sanior Group finance parsonnel. Thess intamal assurancs Processes ane
co-ondinated with the activity of the Company's external awxiitor.

Capital irvestmants are subject to a clear process for investment appraisa,
referred for consideration by the Exacutive Committee and, according to their
materiglity, to the Board. In addition, the Executive Committee regularly reviews
the operation of corporate policies and controls including ihose relating to ethics
and compliance matters, treasury gctivities, envinonmental lssues, health and
safety, human resources, taxation, insurance angd pensions. Compliance and
internal audit reports are made avalable to the Board, the Audit Committes
and the Exacutive Committaa, to enable control issues and developments

10 be monitored,

Control processes are dynamic and continuous improvements ara made

to adapt them to the changing risk profile of operations and 10 implement
proportionate measuras 1o address any identified weakness in the internal
contio! system. The internal controt daclaration procass introduced in 2014 is
now fully embedded and is enabiing improvement in contral thraugh bi-annual
seli-assessments from all operating units. Action plans to improve controls

as a result of these assesaments ar being tracked and raported to the Auckt
Committee. More information in relation to nsk is given on page 40 under the
heading ‘Principal Risks and Uncertainties'. '

Through the procedures outined here, the Board has considerad the effectiveness
of all significart aspects of internal control for the year 2016 and up to the dale of
this Annua) Raport. The Board believes that the Group's systermn of intemal control,
which is designad 10 manage rather than eliminate risk, provides eascnabile but
not absclute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Financial reporting processes

The use of the Group's accounting manual and preseribed reporting requirements
by finance teams throughowt the Group are important in enswing that the Group's
accouniing policies are clearty estabished and that information is appropriatsly
reviewed and recorciled as part of the reporting process. Tha use of a standard
reporting package by all entities in the Group ensures that information is
presanted in a consistent way that faciliates the production of the
consolidated financial statements.
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Viability statement

In accondance with the 2014 UK Comporate Govemance Code, the directors
have assessed the viability of the Company over a relevant period. taking into
account the Group's finandial and trading position as summarised in this Annual
Repot, the principal risks and uncertainties set out on pages 4010 43 and the
five-year business plan reviewed by the Board in September 2016. Based on
this assessment, and other matiars considered and reviewed by the Board,
the directors corfimn that they have a reasonable expectation that the Company
will be able 10 continue in operation and meet it liabilities as they fall due over
the period from the date of this Annual Report to 31 Dacember 2021,

The directors have determined that the perod 1o 31 December 2021 constitutes
an appropriate period over which to make its assessment of viabiiity. Whilst the
directors have no reason 10 balieve the Company will not be viable over a longar
timing horizon, the five-year period 10 31 December 2021 was chosen as it
afigns with the Company’s business and strategic planning timing harizon and
is a sensibile period for such an assessment. It s beleved this perod provides
readers of tha Annual Report with an appropriately long-term view with which
to assess the Company's prospects although future outcomes cannot be
precictad with certairdy.

In making its assessment, the Board recognised the principal risks facing
the Company, inchuding those that woukd threaten its business madel, future
performance, solvency or Bquidity. A summary of these risikes can ba found
on pages 40 10 43.

The five-year businass plan was used to 8ssess the headroom on the
Company's faciities and to stress test ongoing covenant compliance under
‘'nmring business’ riskes, such as reducing revervses and marging, as wel as
one-off ‘event’ risks such as product recalls. The Board also considered the
Company's abiity to raise capital in the future, as well as both the ongoing
actions undertaien to preverk occurrence and the potential actions to
mitigate the impact of any particular risk.

The directors also recognisad a number of key features of the Company's
operations, The Company's wide geographical and sector diversification, and the
lack of a single major production site, halp minimise the risk of serious business
interruption. Furthermore, our business modal is structured so that ihe Company
is not overly reliant on & few targe customers. Our largest customer conatitutes
only 2% of Group revanue and our top 20 customers account for just over

16% of Group revenue. In adkiition, our ability to flex our cost basa reduces

our exposune 1o sudden adversa economic condiions.

Goling concern

Accounting standards require that directors satisty themselves that it Is reasonable
for them to conclude whather it is appropriate to prepare financial statements on
a going concem basis. The Group's business activities, together with the factors
fikaly to affect its future development, performance and position are set out in the
Strategic Report on pages 4 to 43, Principal risks are detailed on pages 40 to 43,
‘The financial position of the Group, its cash fows, iquidity position and borowing
taciities are described in the financial statements. In addition, Section 4.4 1o the
financial staterments includes the Group's objectives, policies and processes

for managing its capital; its financial risk managemant objactives; details of its
financial instruments and hedging activities; and its axposures to crecit risk and
liquidity risk. Section 4.5 t0 the financial statemenits addresses the management
of the funding risks of the Group’s employee benefit obligations.

The Group has considerable financial resources together with long-standing
relationships with a number of customers, suppliers and funding providers across
different gecgraghic areas and industries. The Group's forecasts and projections,
taking account of potential and reefistic changes in trading perforrmance, indicate
that the Group is able 10 operate within the level of faciities sither in place on

31 December 2018, or renewed since, without the need to renew any further
taciities befors 23 February 2018. As a consequence, the direclors believe that
the Group is wel-placed 1o manage its business risks successhully despits the
uncertainties inherent in the current economic outiook. Such uncerteinties as
have been identified are not regasded &5 matesial uncertainties for tha purpose
of the going concem assessmant.

After making due enquiry, the directors have a reasonable expectation that

the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational axistence for the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, thay continue to adopt the gaing concern basis
in preparing the financial statements.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Each director confirms that, so far as they ane each aware, there Is no relevant
audit informetion of which the Company's auditor is unaware; and each director
has 1aken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a dirsctor to make
himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the Company’s audtior is aware of that information.

Annual Gensral Meeting

The: Annual General Meeting will be held at the Hiltton Birmingham Metropole Hotel,
Nationat Exhibition Centrs, Birningham on 4 May 2017 at 10am. Notice of the
Anrual General Meating wil be published on the Company's websile,

vaw\
John ©"

Company Secretary
23 February 2017
IM! pic is registered in England No. 714275




138 iMi plc

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and the financial statements

Tha directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, which includies the Diractors’ Report, Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance Statement,

and the Group and parent company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and reguiations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statemenis for each financial year. Undar that law the directors are required to prepare the Group financial

statements in accordance with those International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and the parent company financial statements

in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicabls law). Under company law the

directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they prasent fairly the financial position, financlal performance and cash flows for

that period. In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:

¢ seiect suitable accourding poficies and then apply them consistently;

* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable;

» present information, including accounting poficles, in a manner that provides relevant, raliable, comparable and understandabla information;

» stata that the Group financial staterments have complied with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, subject to any material departures disciosed and
axplained in the financial siatemants; and

+ state {or the parent company financial statements whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosad and expiained in the financlal statements.

The directors ane responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient 1o show and explain the Company's transactions and disclose with

reasonabla accuracy &t any time the financial position of the Group and the parent company and enable them 10 ensure that the Group and parent company

financial statemenis comply with the Companies Act 20086 and Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation as appropriate. They are also responsible for safeguarding the

assets of the Group and the parent company and hence for taking reasonable sieps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other imegularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and finandia information included on the Company's website. Legistation

in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial stataments may diffsr from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors' responsibility statemant under the Disclosure and Trensparency Rulss
Each of the directors, as at the date of this report, canfirms that:

s the Group and parent company financial statements in this Annual Report, which have been prepared in accordance with applicable UK law and with the
applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the assets, fabilkies, financial position and profit of the Group: and

» the Annual Report {which includes the Directors’ Report and the Strategic Report) includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business
and the position of the Company and the Group taken as a whole, togethar with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

Tha directors ane responsible for preparing the Annual Report in accondance with applicable laws and regulations, Having taken advice from the Audit Committes,
the Board considers the report and accounts, 1aken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information necessary for shareholders to
8ssess the Group's parformance, business modsl and strategy.

wopgpe
Joh

Company Secretary

23 February 2017




Annual Report and Accounts 2016 137

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of IMI pic

in our opinion:

= IMI pic's Group financial statements and Parent Compary financial statements = tha Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in
(the #nancial statements} give a trua and fair view of the state of the Group's accordance with Unhed Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
and of the Parernt Comparty’s affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of the including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosune Framework”; and
Group's profit for the year then ended; « the inancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the

= the Group financlal statements have been properly prepared in accordance requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation.

What we have audited
Weaud!edemmandeCombwmh!simermofMplcfonheyearendedm December 2016 which comprise:

Group Parert Company

Consolidated Income statement for the year then endad Balance sheet as at 31 December 2016

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended Statemant of changes in equity for the year then ended
Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended Ralated notes C1 to C10 to the financial statemenis

Consolidated balance shest as at 31 Decamber 2016
Consofidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
Related notes 1 10 5 to the financial statements

Tha financial neporting framework thal has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements ts applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (FRSs) as adopted by the Eurapean Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company financial
statements is appiicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 “Reduced
Disclosure Framework”.

Overview of our sudit approach

Risks of material misstatement - Revenus and profit recognition
- inventory valuation
- Valuation of the overall pension scheme labiities
- Carrying valus of goodwil and ecquired intangible assets
Audit scope - We performead an audit of the complete financial information of 13 entities and
audit procedures on specific balances for a further 27 entities.
- The entities whene we performed il or spacific audit procedures accounted for
91% of profit before tax adiusted 1or non-recurring ftemns, 82% of revenue and

78% of totsl assets.

Materiality - Overall Group materiafity of £9.2m which represents 5% of profit before tax
adjusted for non-recurring items.

What has changed - In the prior year, our auditor’s report inclugied a risk of matarial misstatement in

refation to the accounting for the acquisition of Bopp & Reuther, There have been
no further acquisitions in 2016 and accordingly no associated risk.
- We have set performance materlality at £6.9m (2015: £4.7m) being 75%
(2015: 50%)} of our planning mateniality. The increased percentage reflacts
the improvement in IMI's intemal control environment.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of IMI plc
(cont’d)

Our assassment of risk of material misstatement

We identified the risks of material misstatement described below as thoge that had the greatest afiact on our overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources
in the audit and tha direction of the efforts of the audit team. In addressing these nsks, wepeﬁa-medmeprocedwabmmthmdesigmdhthemeﬂd
of the financial statements as a whole and, consequently, we do not express any opinion on these individual areas.

Risk

Ouwr responsa to the risk

Revenue and profit recognition (E1,657m,
PY comparative £1,567m)

Refer to the Audit Committee Report (page 55);
Accounting poficies (page 126); and Note 2.1 of
the Consolidated Financral Statements (page 85}

Revenue and profil recognition is a significam
audit nsk across all divisions within the Group.
Specifically there is a risk of inappropriate
revenue and profit recognition if deliveries are
recorded within the wrong accounting period,
management ovarride causes contract loss
provisions to be misstated or revenue is not
accounted for in ling with contractual terms.
The cyclical nature of deliveries within the
Critical Engineering division results in significant
shipments near the December period end
which increases the risk of a cut-off error.

Risk movement

el

We casmied out testing of controls ovar revenue recognition with a focus on those related 10 the timing
of revenue recognition.

We performed analvtical procedures 10 compare revenue recognisad with our expectations from past
epenence, management’s forecasts and, where possibla, esdemal market data.

‘W obtained support for individually unusual and/or material revenua journals.

We performed tests of detail for a sample of reverwe transactions to confirm the transactions had been

appropriately recorded in the income statement and verifled that the risks and rewards of ownership of

the products had been transferred to the customer by:

+ analysing the contract and terms of the sale to detarmine that the Group had fuffiled the requirements
of the contract;

» confirming reverwe could be rekably measured by reference to underlying documentation; and
» confirming collectabdity of the revenue was reasonably assured by agreeing to collection history.

We performed cut-off testing by tracing a sample of transactions anound the period end to third party
delivery note documentation and customer acceptance.

In respect of new construction contracts in the Critical Engneering division we tested a sample of
management’s assessment of forecast costs to complete, cormoborating the underlying assumptions against
histovic experience and future praduction plans 10 detarming any contract I0sses ane appropriately recognised.

We performed these audit procedures at full and specific scope entities over this risk area in 31 locations
whgna revenus is in scope, which represents 62% of the total revenue balance.

We also performed specific procedures over £302m of revenue recognised in the 50 Precision and Hydronic
divisions” marketing companies. These companies purchase IMI manufactured products, either directly from
the manufacturing IMI entity or through the Group's centralised warehousing, and sefl into local markens.
The specific proceduras performed included verifying the occurrence and completeness of a sample of
sales transactions recognised by the marketing companies through to goods despatch documentation.
We tasted a sample of transactions recognised in these companies 1o determine the measurement

of revenue recognised is consistent with the Group's transfer pricing policies and the inter-company
transactions elfminate on consolidation.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Commities:

Qur year-end audit procedures did not identify evidence of material misstaternents regarding revenue or profit recognition in the Group. All transactions tested
have been recognised in accordance with contractual terms.,
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Risk

Our responss o the risk

Inventory valuation {£255m, PY comparative
£233m)

Refer to tha Audit Comnmittee Report (page 55);
Accourting policies (page 126); and Note 3.1.1 of
the Consolidated Finencial Statements (pags 86)

The valuation of inventory across the Group is
depandent on establishing appropriate valuation
controls. This inciudes reliance on manual
processes. Managernent judgement is applied
to formulaic calculations for standard costing
and excess and obsolele inventory provisions.

If these judgements are not appropriate then this
increases the risk that inventory is overstated.

Risk movemnent

Sty

We carried out testing on controls over inventory valuation to verify the Group values irventory appropriately.

Wa tested the accumulation of cost within inventory, confirming the valuation reflected the products® stage
of completion including agreament 10 the physical inventory counts we atiended.

We obteined evidence to support the standard costs used and performed procedures to ensure only normal
production variances had been capitaksed in the year-snd inventory balance and any abinorma! inefficiencies
had been appropriately expensed including compering actual prodisction rates 10 budgst.

We audited the adequacy of axcess and obsolgte provisions heid against inventory by comparing forecast
product usape to customer onders, considering historical usage, historical accuracy of provisioning and
understanding management's future plans 10 utilise the inventory.

We performoed the same audit procedures at full and specific scope entities over this risk area in 26 locations
whara inventory is in scope, which reprasents 73% of the total inventory balance.

Key observations communicated 15 the Audit Committes:

inventory valuation across the Group is considerad appropriate including the adequacy of the excess and obsolete provision. Cur audit procadures confirmed
varances between standard and actual costs and the overheads absorbed in the inventory valuation had been correctly calcutated and accounted for.

Risk

Ouwr response to the risk

Valuation of the overall pension scheme
liabltities (£1,580m, PY comparative (£1,341m)
within the net pansion deficit of EBOm}

Refer to the Aucit Committee Report (page 55);
Accounting policies (page 126); and Note 4.5 of
the Consalidated Financial Statements (page 114)

The actuarial assumptions used to value the
UK and overseas pension scheme liabifities
are judgemental and sensitive. Dug to the
significance of he value of the pension
obligation, a small changa in assumptions
may resull in 8 material diffsrence to the
amounts reported.

Risk movement

i

Using external data we banchmarked the key actuarial assumptions, as detalled in Section 4.5.3.2 of the
consolidated financlal statements, used by management, in determining the pension obligation under IAS
19(R) to determine their assumptions were appropriate, met the mouirements of IFRS and were In line with
market practice,

This incuded a comparison of Bfa sxpectancy with relevant mortaity tables, benchmarking inflation and
discount rates against axternal market data, considaring changes in histosical assumptions and evaluating
the independence, qualifications and results of work performed by management’s experts involved in the
valuation process.

We used our pension specialists to assist us with these procedures.

The audit procedures performed 10 address this risk have been performed by the Group audit eam.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee:

The actuarial assumptions used in the valuation of the year-end liabilities are at the middie of the acceplable range when compared to extemal benchmarks.
We consider tha valuation of pansion schema liabilities to be appropriate.
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Risk

Owr responss 10 the risk

Carrying value of goodwill and acquired
intangible assets (£453m, PY comparative
£411m)

Refer to tha Audit Committes Report (page 55);
Accounting policies (page 126); and Note 3.2 of
the Consolidated Financial Statements (page 97}

As a consequance of the Group'’s growth strategy
a significant value of goodwill and intangible
asssts has ansen from acquisitions. Thereisa
risk that cash generating units {'CGUs') may not
achieve the anticipated business performance
1o support the carrying value of these assals
leading to an impairment charga that has not
been recognised by management. Significant
judgement is required in assessing the future
cash flows of the CGU, together with the rate
at which they are discounted.

Risk movement

-

Wae examined management's methodology, as detailed in Section 3.2 of the consolidated financial
statements, and models for assessing the valuation of significant goodwill balances to confirm the
composition of management’s future cash flow forecasts, the process by which they were drawn

up and re-performing the calculations in the model! to test the mechenical integrity. This included

confirming the underlying cash flows were consistent with the Board approvad budgets.

In accordance with the requirements of 1AS 38 impairment of Assets, management performed
an impairment test on all CGUSs that have goodwill alocated.

For all CGUs we calculated the degree to which the key assumptions would need to fuctuate before

an impaiment conclusion was triggered and considered the fkelihood of this occurming.

In respect of the OGUs identified as heving impaiment indicators or low levels of heacroom we performed

detailed testing to critically assess and corroborate the key inputs of the forecast cash flows including:

» comaborating tha discount rate used by obtaining the underlying data used in the calculation and
benchmarking it against comparable organisations;

= yalidating the growth rate assumed by comparing them to aconomic and industry forecasts; and

* analysing the historical accuracy of budgets to actual results to determine whether forecast cash
fiows are reliable based on past experience.

We have reviewed the disciosures in respact of goodwill and intangibles and the impairment of Stainless
Steal Fasteners (SSF) with reference to the requirements of IAS 38 and confirmed their consistency with
the audited impairment models.

The audit procedures performad to addness this risk have besn performed by the Group audit team.

Key observations communicated 1o the Audit Committes:

We consider management's impaimment of Stainless Steel Fasteners of £5.0m for the year ended 31 Dacember 2016 to be sppropriate. We agree with
managemant’s conclusion that none of the remaining CGUS are requinsd to be impaimsd as at 31 December 2016. Across the Group's CGRUS, the levet of
headroom and congervatism in the forecasts varies. Overall, management's valuations are around the mid-point of cur acceptabls range.
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Thea scope of our sudit

Tailoring the scope

Qur assessment of audit nisk, our evaluation of materiality and our allocation
of performance materiality determing our audit scope for each antity within the
Group. Taken together, this enables us to form an opinion on the consolidated
financial statemenis. We take intc account the level of Group revenue and
operating profit, risk profile (including country risk, risk determined 1o be
associated based on the grading of internal audit findings, controls findings,
historical knowledge and risk arising from change in the period including
changes to [T systems and key management personnel), the number of
significant accounts based on performance materiality and any other known
factors when assessing the level of work to be performed at each entlty.

In assessing the sk of material misstatement to the Group financial staternants,
and to achieve adequate quantitative coverage of significant accournts in the
financial staterments, of the 123 reporting entities of the Group, we selected

40 gntitieg, which represent the princinal business units within the Group.

Of the 40 entities selected, we performed an audit of the complate financial
information of 13 entities {‘full scope entities’) which were selected based on
their size or risk characteristics. For the remaining 27 entiies ('specific scope
entities’), we performad audit procedures on specific accounts within that entity
that we considered had the potential for the greatest impact on tha significant
accounts in the financial staternents either because of the size of these
accounts or their risk profile.

The reporting entities where we performed audit procedures accounted for
91% {2015: 85%) of the Group's profit before tax adjusted for non-recurring
items, 62% (2015: 86%) of the Group's revenue and 76% (2015: 83%) of the
Group's total assets.

We also performed procedures over the revenue recognised in the Precision
coverage of 18% in respect of the Group's revenue.

Exciuding full and specific scope entitias, there are a further 83 reporiing
entities with average revenuas of £7.6m and average profit before tax adjusted
for non-recurring tiems of £0.2m. In addition, these locations do not have
common systems and controls. As a consaquence, wa consider the likelihood
of any systematic error ariging within this population to be low. Notwithstanding
this, for the 83 entities we performed other proceduras, including analytical
review and enquirias of management to address the residual risk of

material misstatement.

The charts below llustrate the coverage obtained from the work performed
by our audit teams.

Changes from the prior year
‘The number of full scope entities has reduced to 13 (2015: 14) and the rember
of specific scope entities has reduced to 27 {2015: 28). These changes
predominantly reflect restructuring undertaken by the Group which has resulted
in a reduction of the size and risk profile of entities previously in scope.

In the prior year, cur auditor's report included a risk of material misstaterent
in refation to the accounting for the acquisition of Bopp & Reuther in 2015.
In the absence of further acquisitions in the current year, the risk was

not included in the cument year audit,

Involvement with entity teams

in establishing our overall approach to the Group audit, we determined the type

of work theit needed 10 be undertalen at each of the entities by us, as the primary
audit angagement team, or by entity auditors from gther EY globel network frms
oparating under our instruction. Of the 13 full scope entities, audit procedures were
performed on one of these directly by the Group audit team, For the 27 specific
scope entities, where the work was performad by entity sucitars, we detemmined
the appropriate level of nvolvement to enable us to determine that sufficient audit
evidance had been oblaingd as a basis for our opinion on the Group as a whole.

Profit before tax adjusted for non-recurring items - CY /7 (PY)

20% {26%)
Full scope entities
9% (15%)
Other procedures
B82% {59%}
Specific scope entities
Revenue - CY / {PY)
39% (40%)
Full scope entities
23% (26%)
Speacific scope entitips
18% (17%)
Procedures on
20% (17%}) marketing companies
Other procechures

Total assets - CY / (PY)

58% {63%)
Full scope entitiea

189% (20%)
Specific scope entities

24% {(179%)
Other procedures

The Group audit taam continuad to follow a programme of planned visits that
has been designed to ensure that the Senior Statutory Auditor or his dslegate
visits each full and specific scops location once every three years During the
curent year's audit cycle, visits ware underiaken by the Group audit team to the
enlity tearns in Belgium, China, Germany, Haly, Japan, Korea, Switzerfand and
the Uniled Kingdom. These visits involved meeting with our entity team 10 discuss
and direct their audit approach, reviewing and understanding the significant audit
findings in response to the risk areas including revenue, profit recognition and
inventary valuation, holding mestings with local managament, undertaking factory
tours and obtaining updates on local regulatory matters including tax, pensions
and legal. The Group audit team interacted regularty with the entity teams during
various stages of the audt, where appropriate reviewed key working papers and
were responsible for the scope and direction of the audit process. This, togather
with the addtiona! procedures performed at Group level, gave us appropriate
evidence for our opinion on the Group financial staternents.
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Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the audt, in evaluating
the affect of identiied misstatements on the audt and in forming our audit opinion.

Materiality

The magrituda of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in the
agxregate, coukd reasonably be axpected 1o infiuence the economic decisions
of the usars of the financial statements. Materiality provides a basis for
Oetermining the nature and extent of our audit procecures.

We determined materalty for the Group 10 be £9.2m (2015: £9.4m), which is
approximately 5% (2015: 5%) of profit before 1ax adjusted for non-recuring
temns. We believe that prolt before tax, adjusted for the itlems describad in the
table provides us with a consistent yeer on yesr basis for determining meaterialty
and is the most relevant performance measure to the stakeholders of the aniity.

 Profit before tax - £165.3m for the year
ended 31 December 2016

+ (3ain on special pension events - (£2.8m)
(Nota 2.2.3 to the Financial Staterments)

* Restructuring - £18.8m (Note 2.2.2 to the
Financlal Statemants)

» |[mpairment of Stainless Steel Fasteners (SSF) -
£5.0m (Note 2.2.4 to Financial Statements)

* Profit before 1ax adjusted for non-recurring tems -
£186.3m (basis for materiality)

« Matsriality of £9.2m {spproximately 5%
of maleraiity basis)

Performance materiality

The application of materality at the individual account or balance level. It is set
at an emount to reduce to an appropnately low jevel the probability that the
aggragate of uncomected and undetected misstatemnents exceeds materiality.

On the basis of our nsk assessments, together with our assessment of the Group's
overall control environment, our judgemean! was thal pariormance matenality
was 75% (2015: 50%) of our planning materialty, namely £6.9m (2015 £4.7m).
Woe have set performance materiality at this higher percentage reflecting the
improvermerit in IM)'s intemnal financial control envinonment and due to the

absence of audit differences being identified in recent periods.

Audit work at entity locations for the purpose of obtaining audit coverage over
significant financial statement accounts is undertaken based on a psrcentage
of 1otal performance materialty The performance materiality set for each entity
is based on the relative scale and risk of tha entity t¢ the Group as a whale and
our assessment of tha risk of misstatement at that entrty. In the current year,
the range of performance mateariality allocated to enfities was £0 45m to
£1.50m (2015: £0.45m to £1.35m).

Reporting threshokd .

An amount balow which klentfied misstatements are consiclerad as being

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all
uncorrecied audit diffarences in excess of £0.5m (2015: £0.5m), which is set

at 5% of planning materiality, as well as differences below that threshold that,
in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements egainst both the quaniitative
measures of mateniality discussed above and in light of other relevant qualitatve
considerations in forming our opinion.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

. Anaudi involves cbtaining evidencs about the amounts and disclosures in the

financial staternents sufficient to gve reasonable assurance that the finanoial

. statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.

‘This includes an assessment of: whathar the accounting policies are appropriate to
the Group's and the Parent Company's circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial
statements. In addition, we read all the financal and non-financial information in the
Annual Report and Accounts to identify materid inconsistencies with the audited
financial statements and to identify any information that is apparentty materiafy
incarmect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us
in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or ingonsistencies we consider the implcations for our report.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statemant set out

on page 136, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Qur
respansibility is to audit and express an opinien on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and Intemational Standards oh Auditing (UK
and Irelard). Those standards requine us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report is made solety to the Carnpany's members, as a boedy, in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companiss Act 2006. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpase.
TFo the fuilest extent parmitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsiiity
to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body,
for our audit work, for this repart, or for the opinions we have formed.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2008

In our opinion:

« the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report 1o be audited has been
praperly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006; and

+ basad on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financlal statements; and

- the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.
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Matters on which we are required 1o report by exception

ISAs (UK and Ireland) reporting We are required to report to you f, in our opinion, financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report Is:

* materially inconsistent wah the information in the audited financial statements; or

+ apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Group acquired in the course
of performing our audit; or

» otherwise misleading.

in particular, we are required (o report whether we have identified any inconsistencies between our knowladge acquired in

tha course of performing the auciit and the directors’ statement that they consider the Annua! Report and Accounts taken as

a whole is fair, balanced and understarciable and provides the information nacessary for shareholders 10 assess the entity's

performance, business model and strategy; and whether the Annual Report appropriately addresses those matters that we
communicated to the Audit Commitiee that we consider should have been disclosed.

Companies Act 2006 reporting In ligh! of the knowlecige and understanding of the Company and lis enviroryment obtained in the course of the audit,

we have identified no materia! misstaternents in the Strategic Report or Directors’ Report.

We are required 1O repon 10 you if, in our opinien:

+ adequale accounting records have nol been kapt by the Parent Company, or returns adequata for our audit have not
been raceived from branches not visited by us; or

+ the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report {0 be audited are not
in agreament with the accounting records and relurns; or

*» certain disclosuras of direclors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
+ wa hava nol received all the information and explanations we raquine for our audit,

Listing Rules review requirements | Wa are recuirad Lo review: )
* the directors' staternent in relation 10 going concam, set out on page 135, and longer-term viability, set out on page 135; anc

« the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the company's complianca with the provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code specified for our review,

We have no exceplions to report.

Statement on the Directors’ Assessment of the Principal Risks that Wouwld Threaten the Solvency or Liquidity of the Entity

1SAs (UK and ireland) reporting We are requirad! 10 give a statement as 1o whether wa have anything material to add or to draw attention to in relation to:

» the directors’ confirmation in the Annual Report that they have carviad out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing
the entity. including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, sohency or liquidity;

* the disclosures in the Annuat Report that describe thoss risiks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated;

 the directors’ statement in the financial staterents about whether they considered it appropriate to adop! the going
concemn basis of accounting n preparing them, and thelr identification of any matesial uncertainties to the entity's ability
lo continue [0 do s over a period of at least tweve months from the date of approval of the financial statements; and

« the diractors’ explanation in the Anrual Report as 1o how they have assessed the prospects of the entity, over what period
they have dona so and why they consider that pariod to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they hava a
reasonable expectation that the entity will be able to continue in operation and mest its liabilties as they fall due over the period
of their assessment, including any rlated disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualfications or assumptions.

Wa have nothing material 10 add or to draw attention to.

a3t 2 vo [ g

Andrew Walton {Senior Statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Emst & Young LLP. Statutory Auditor
Birmingham

23 February 2017

Notes:

1. The maintenance and integrity of the IMI pic website is the respansibility of the directors; the work carried out by the auditors does not invoive consideration of
these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially
presenied on the website,

2. Legisiation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financiai slatements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Company balance sheet
at 31 December 2016

2018 2015
tm fm
Fixed assets
Investments C5 173.2 173.2
Current assets
Debtors - C6 364.4 3973
Deferred tax assels c7 11 19
Cash st bank and in hand 4.8 13
. 370.3 410.5
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Other credtors c8 {3.0) 2.9)
Net cumrent assets 367.3 407.6
Total assots less current liabilities . 540.5 580.8
Net assets . 540.5 580.8
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital co 81.8 81.8
Shara premium account co 121 1.8
Capital redemption reserve Cco 174.4 174.4
Profit and loss account c9 2722 3128
Equity sharehoiders’ funds . 540.5 5680.8

Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 February 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman
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Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2016

Share Shere  Rademption PRetsined Parent
caphtal premium resarve samings acpity
£m £m omn £m £m
At 1 January 2015 81.7 10.8 174.4 3201 587.0
Retainad profit for the year : 91.8 91.8
Dividends paid on ordinary shares (102.5) (102.5)
Shares issued in the year 0.1 1.0 1.1
Share-based payments 1.1 1.1
Shargs issued by:
empioyee shane scheme tnust 2.3 23
At 31 Dacember 2015 81.8 1.8 1744 3128 580.8
Retained profit for the year 85.2 65.2
Dividends paid on ordinary shares . {104.2) {104.2)
Shares lasued in the year 5 0.3 0.3
Share-based payments i 58 58
Shares acquired for:
employee share schema trust : (7.4) 74

At 31 December 2016 81.8 121 174.4 272.2 540.5
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Company notes to the financial statements

C1, Significant accounting policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with
items considerad material in relation to the financial statements, except where
otherwise noted balow:

Basis of accounting

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework' {'FRS 1017).

The Company has not presented a separata profit and loss account as
permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006.

The Company has taken advantage of the following disdosure exemplions

under FRS 101:

8) the requirements of paragraphs 45 {b) and 46-52 of IFRS 2 *Share based
Payment’;

b} the requirements of IFRS 7 "Financial Instruments’;

¢) the requirements of paragrephs 91-99 of (FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement’;

d} the requirement in paragraph 38 of 1AS 1 *Presentation of Financial
Staternents’ 1o present comparative information in respect of paragraph 79(s)
M oftAS 1;

8) the requiremenis of paragraphs 10{(d), 10{f) and 134-136 of IAS 1;

) the requirements of IAS 7 *‘Statement of Cash Flows”;

o) the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of |AS 8 "Accounting Polices,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errars’;

h) the requirements of paragraph 17 of LAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures’; and

i) the requirernants in IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures' to disclosa related
party transactions entered into between two or more members of the Group,
provided that any subsidiary which is party 10 the transaction is wholly owned
by such 8 mamber. Related party transactions with the Company's key
management personnel are disciosed in the Remuneration Report on pages
§9 to 71 and in Section 5.2 on page 126 of the Group financial statements.

Judgemants and key sources of astimation uncertainty

The prepasation of financial statsments requires management to make
padgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported for
assats and liabiities as at the balance sheet date and the amounts reporied
for income and sxpenses during the year. However, the nature of estimation
means that actual outcomes could differ from those estimates.

Forelgn currencies

The Company's functional curmency and presantation cumency is stering.
Transactions in foreign curencies are recorded using the rate of exchange
ruiirgg at the date of transaction.

Monetary assets and iabliies denominated in foreign cumencies have been
transiated into stering at the ratas of exchange ruling at the belance sheet date
and the geins or losses on ransiation are included i the profit and loss account.

investments

{investmaris in subsidianes are accounted for at cost less any provision for
impairment. The Company's cost of investments in subsidiary undertekings is
stated at the agoregate of (g) the cash consideration and either (b) the nominal
value of the shares issued as consideration when Section 612 of the Companies
Agst 2008 applies or () in al other cases the market velue of the Companys
sharas on the date they wera issued as consideration.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into
account taxation daferred bacause of temporary differences between the
treatment of certain iterns for taxation and accounting purposes.

Defemed tax is recognised in respeci of all temporary differences between the
treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes which have
arisen but not reversad by the balance eheet dats, except as otherwise requinad
by IAS 12 'Income Taxes’, Deferred tax is meastwed at the tax rates that are
expected to apply when the temporary differences reverse, based on the tax
laws that have been anactaed or substantively anacted by the Dalance sheet
date. A deferred tax assat is recognised to the exient that & is probable that
{uture taxable profit will be available agamnst which the temporary differencs
can be utilised.

Equity and equity-related compensation benefits

The Company operates a number of equity and equity-releted compensation
benefils as set out in Section 4.7 of the Group financial statements. The fair
value of the ampicyee services received in exchange for the grant of the options
is rechanged in full to the principal employing compeny and accordingly, there is
no net charge recorded in the Company's financid statements. The recharged
amount is recognised as a debtor falling due for payment within ong year.

The total amount recharged over the vesting period is determined by reference
10 the fair value of the options granted, sxcluding the impact of any non-market
wvesting conditions (for example, profitablity and sales growth targets). Non-
market vasting concitions are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to bacome éwrciaable. The fair value of the options at
the date of grant is determined based on the Black-Scholes option-pricing modiel.

At each balence sheet date, the Company revises its estimate of the number
of options that are expected to vest. it recognises the impect of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the amount rechargad to subsidiary undertakings.

For newly issued shares, the proceeds received, net of any directly attributable
transaction costs ane credited to share capital (nominal vafue) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

Treasury shares

The consideration paid by the Company on the acquisition of treasury shares
is charged diractly to retained earnings in the year of purchase. Consideration
received for the sale of such shares is alst recognised in aqully, with any differance
between the procesds frivm sale and the original cost taken to share premium,

If treasury shéres are subsequently cancelied the nominal value of the cancetied
sharas is transfermad from share capital to the capita! redemption reserve. No gain
or loss is recogrised on the purchase, sale or cancedation of reasury shares.

Dividends

Dividends unpaid at the batance sheet dale are only recognised as a kabilty
at that date 1o the extent that thay are authorised and are no longer at the
discretion of the Company. Unpaid diviclends that do not meet these criteria
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

C2. Remuneration of directors

The detailad information concerning directors” emoluments, sharehotdings and
options are shown in the audited section of the Remuneration Report on pages
59 to 71 and Section 2.1.3 of the Group financial statements.

C3. Staff numbers and costs

The number of paople employed by the Companw, including directors, during
the vear was 29 (2015: 32) all of whom were emploved in administrativa rolas.
The costs associated with them wene borme by a subsidiary undaraking.

The Company participates in the IMI UK Funds, which are defined benefit
schemes in which the assets are held independently. The total net defined
benefit costs of these Funds are borne by a subsidiary undertaking and
theretore in accordance with IAS 19, no net defined benefit costs are
recognised in the Company's financial statemenis. Section 4.5 of the
Groun financial statements provides further detalls regarding the defined
benefit schemes.
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CA4. Dividends
The aggregate amount of dividends comprises:

2018

2015

om fm
Priar year final dividend paid - 24.5p per qualifying ordinary share {2015: 24.0p) 66.3 64.9
Current year intevim dividend paid - 14.0p per qualifying ordinary share (2015: 13.9p) 7.9 37.6
Aggregate amount of dividends paid in the financial year 104.2 102.5

Dividends paid in the year of £104.2m reprasent 37.9p per share {2015: 37.6p).

After the balance sheat date the following dvidends weme propased by the directors. The dividends have not been provided for and there are no income tax consaguences.

2018
£m

2186
£m

Current year final dividend - 24.7p per qualifying ordinary share (2015: 24.5p)

67.0

B86.4

Dividends proposed after the balance sheet date may differ from the final dividend peid. This is a result of the final number of qualifying shares entitled to dividends

differing from thoss in issue at the balance sheet date.
C5. Fixed assets - Investments

Subsidiary undertakings
2016 2015
£m £m
At 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 cost and net book value 173.2 173.2
Details of subsidiary undertakings as at 31 December 2016 are shown on pages 149 to 152.
C8. Dabtors
2018 2015
£m £m
Falling due for payment after mare than one year;
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 278.2 316.4
Falling due for payment within one year.
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 88.2 809
364.4 397.3
C7. Daferred tax
2018 2015
fm om
Thedehmdtaximludaglinmebahneeaheatisasfolhm o T
Empioyee benefits and share based payments 1.1 19
Defarred tax asset inciuded in the balance sheet 1.1 1.9
fm
Reconciliation of movement in deferred tax asset: . o
At 1 Januery 2016 e e 18
Dafatradtaxchargelnlheproﬁtandlossaoomm (0.8)

At 31 Dacember 2016

1.3

GChanges o the rate of UK comporation tax were substantively enacted in 2015 to reduce the rate to 19% from 1 April 2017 and to 18% from 1 April 2020. The
budget of 16 March 2016 then propased to further reduce the mate to 179 from 1 April 2020. This additionsl change was substantively enacted on 6 September
2018. Tha defarred tax balance has been calculated bassd on the rates applicable whan the balances are expected 10 reverse, which is mainly 17% (2015: 18%).
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Company notes to the financial statements
(cont’d)

C8. Other creditors falling due within one year

2018 2015
£m m
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 1.7 1.0
Other payables 13 19
3.0 29
C9. Share capital and reserves
Shere Shara  Redemption Retained Parent
capital premium reseve samings ecusly
em m £m n &m
At 1 January 2016 81.7 10.8 174.4 320.1 587.0
Reteined profit for the year 91.8 91.8
Dividends paied on ordinary shares® (102.5) {102.5)
Shares issued in the year 0.1 1.0 1.1
Share-based payments 1.1 1.1
Shares issued by*: -
employes share scheme trust 23 23
At 31 Decernber 2015 818 18 174.4 312.8 580.8
Retained profit for the year 85.2 85.2
Dividends paid on ordinary shares® {104.2) {104.2)
Shares issued in the year - 0.3 0.3
Share-based payments 58 5.8
Shares acquired for*:
employee share schems trust T4) {7.4)
At 31 Decomber 2016 81.8 12.1 174.4 2722 540.5

* Details of treaswy and empioyee trust share scheme movements arg containad in Section 4.6 of the Group financial statements and details of dividends paid
and proposed in the year are shown in nole C4. .

All of the retained earnings heid at both 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are considered o be distributeble reserves.

Share capital
2018 2015
Bm m
Issued and fully pald
286.2m (2015: 286.2m) ordinary shares of 28 4/7p each 81.8 §1.8

C10. Contingencles .
Contingant Rabifties relating to guarantees in the normal course of business and other items amounted to £82.4m 2015: £84.4m).

There is a right of sat-off with three of the Company’s bankers relating to the balances of the Company and a number of its wholly-owned UK subsiciaries.

Where the Company enters into financial guarantes contracts 1o guarantee the indebledness of other companies within its Group, the Company ¢considers
these to be insurance arrangerments, and accounts for tham as such. In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liabifity
until such time as it becomes probabile that the Company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee.
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Subsidiary undertakings

A ful ist of the Group's subsidiary undertakings and registerec/principal offices as at 31 December 2016 is included below. Except where indicated, the share
capitd congists of ordinary shares only. The principal courtry in which each subsidiary operates and has its registered/principa office is the country of incorporation.
M pic’s effective interest in the undertakings listed is 100%, except where Indicated, and is held in each case by a subsiciary undertaiding, except for IM! Group
Lid, I Deutschiand Verwahungs GrmioH, iMs Lakeside Australia Pty Lid and Uiguick 200 Limited which are held directly by M plc.

‘The Group has an interest In a parinership, the IMI Scottish Limited Partnership, which is fully consolidated into these Group accounts. The Group has taken
edvantage of the exemption conferred by regulation 7 of the Partrerships (Accounts) Reguiations 2008 and has, therefore, nol appended the accounts of this
qualifying partnership 1o these accounts. Separate accounts for the partnership are not required to be and have not been filed at Companies House.

Anson Cast Products Limited, Lakeside, Solinull Parkway, Birmingham Business Park, Birmingham, West Midiands B37 72,
Charles Baynes Nethedands BV Netherdands, United Kingdom

FCX North Amarica Limited,

FCX Pension Trustees Limited,

Hottord Estates Limited,

IMI CIF Trustea Limited,

IMI Deuischiand Limited,

IMI Eure Finance Limited,

IMI Fluid Controls (Finance) Limited,
IMI Germany Limited,

M| Group Limited,

IMI Kynoch Uimited,

iMI Lakeside Five Limited,

M1 Marsion Uimited,

Ml Overseas Investments Limited,
M| Pensions Trust Limited,

IMI pic,

WMl Property investments Limited,
IMI Rafiners Limited,

IMI Retirament Savings Trust Limited,
MI Sweden Finance Limited,

M1 Vision Limited,

Liquick 211 Limited,

Prerrier Profiles Limited,

Truflo Group Limited,

Trufio International Limited,

Taufo Investments Limited

Commiech Limited, 1020 Eskdale Road, Winnersh, Wokingham, RG41 5TS, United Kingdom
The Commtech Group Limited,
Engineering Appliances Limited,
IMI Group Services Limited,

IMI Lakeside One Limited,
Liquick 200 Limited,

Martonal international Limfted

IMI Critical Engineering Holding GmbH, Bruckstrassa 93, 46519, Alpen, Germary
M1 Deutschiand § GmbH & Co KG,

M1 Deutschiand Verwaltungs GmbH,
IMI Germany Holding Limited & Co. KG,
Norgren GmbH

IMi Fluid Controls Holdings Inc, CSC. Corporation Trust Centre, 1208 Orange Street, Wikmington DE 18801, Unlted States
IMI Holdings L1 C,

Nomren Automation Solutions LLC,
Nomgren Inc,

Norgren Kloshn Inc

IMI Americas Inc, Corporate Senice Company, 2711 Cantervilla Road, Wilmington DE 19808, United States
IMI Group Inc,

IMI interamerica Inc,
Zmmemmann & Jansen Inc

IMI Austrafia Pty Ltd, 33 South Corporate Avenus, Rowville VIC 3178, Australia
IM! Lakeside Australia Pty Lid,
Tube Fittings Sales Pty Limited

FCX Ireland Limited, 1 Stokas Place, St Stephens Grean, Dublin 2, Irsland
IM! Lakeside ireland Limited,

Lakeside Finance Unlimited Company,
Lakeside Treasury Unlimited Company
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Subsidiary undertakings

(cont’d)

CCI AG,
CCl Switzerland AG,
Nomgren AG

ltesienstrasse 9, 8362, Baerswil, Switzertand

IMI Holding aly S.ri.,
Orton SR.L.,
Truflo Rona S.rl.

Via Stendhal, 85, 20144 Miano, ltaly

IMI Hydronic Enginesring AB,
IMI indoor Clirnate AB,

Annelund, SE-524 80, Liung, Sweden

IMt Sweden AB

Aero-Dynamiek Belgie BVBA, Boomsesieenweg 28, B 2627 Schelle, Baeligium

IMI Hydronic Engineering NV

B & R Holding GmbH, Cari-Reuther Str, 1, 68305, Mannheim, Germarny
Bopp & Reuther Sicherhaits- und Regelarmaturen GmbH

Heimeier GmbH, Voellinghauser Weg 2, Erwitle, DE-58597, Germany

IMiI Hydronic Engineering Deutschland GmbH

IMi Components Limitad,
Trufio Marine Limited

Waestwood Road, Birmingham, BE 7JF, United Kingdom

IMI Hydronic Engineering BV,
IMI Netherands Holdings BV

Rontgenweg 20, Alphan aan den Rijn, NL-2408 AB, Netheriands

1M Hydronic Enginesring Switzerland AG,
TA Hydronica Holding AG

Milhlerainstrasse 26, 4414, Filiinsdorf, Switzertand

M| Scotland Limited,
The IMI Scottish Limited Partnership

15 Atholl Crescent, Edinburgh EH3 BHA, United Kingdom

Norgren Co Limited China, Bullding 3, No. 1885, Duhui Road, Minhang District, Shanghal, China

Norgren Manufacturing Co Lid

Norgren Manufacturing De Mexico SA DE CV, AV De la Montana 120, Parque Industrial Queretaro, Santiago de Quaretaro, Querstaro,
Norgren SA de OV CP 768220, Mexico

Remoaa Service & Construction Sit, Remosa Sil

Viale Pula 37, 09123 sede e stabilimento stradario, 03608, Cegliari, Sardinia, Haly

Vaives Holding GmbH, Z & J Technologles GmbH

Bertramsweyj 6, 52355, Diren, Garmany

Brookvale Intemational Insurance Limited

Clarendon House, Church Street, Hamiiton, HM11, Bermuda

Buschjost GmbH

C.H. Zikesch Armaturen GmbH

Mercatorstr. 16-18, 48485, Wesel, Garmany

CCl {Asia Pacific) Pte Lid

29 Intemational Business Park , ACER Building, Tower A, #04-01, Singapore, 603923, Singapore

CCl America do Sul Comercio de Equipamentos industrials Lida

Pua tapeva, 286 cjs 95/96/97, Sao Paulo, 01332-000, Brazi

CCl Czech Repubic s.r.o.

K Letisti 1804/3, Siapanice, 62700, Czech Republic

CCI Flow Control (Shanghal) Co Ltd

Roorm 108, Unit 15, 158 Tian Zhou Road, Cao He Jing Development Zone, Shanghal, 200233, China

CCl International Limited

Unit A3 Brookside Business Park, Gresngate, Middieton, Manchaster, M24 1GS, United Kingdom

CCl taly Sd Via Leopard] 26, 20123, Milan, Raly
CCI KK 8-2-2 Takatsukadai, Nishi-ku, Kobe City, 651-2271, Japan

CCI Limited 14 Dangdong 2-, Munsan-seup, Paju-si, Gyecnggi-do, 10816, Repubfc of Koraa
CCl Vave Technology AB ndustrigatan 1-3, Box 603, SE-861 20, Saffle, Sweden :
CCl Vaive Technology GmbH Lembockgasse 63/1, A1230, Wien, Ausiria

Controi Component India Pvt Limited

SJR iPark, €th Foor, EPIP Zone, Whitefield Road, Bangalore, 560068, india

Control Companents Inc

22581 Avenida Empresa, Rancho Santa Margarita CA S2888, United States

Deeside Titanium Limited (18%)

Moor Lane, Derby, Derbyshira, DE24 8B., United Kingdom

FAS Medic SA Route de Bossonnens 2, 1607, Patezieux, Switzerand
Fluid Automation Systems GmbH Schonbergstrasse 35, 73760, Osterfidern, Gemarny
Flid Automation Systems SA 126 Route da I'Etraz, 1290, Versoix, Switzerand
Herion Systerntechnik GrnbH Untere Talstrasse 65, D-71263 Weil der Stack, Germany

IMI Aero-Dynamisk BV

Havenstraat 9, VS 3861, Nijkerk, Netherands
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MI Consulting {Shanghaj) Co Limited

Units 03,06 9 Floor, No. 500 Fushan Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai, 200122, China

Ml Critical Engineering (Shanghai} Company Limited

B3-2, No. 303, Xinke Road, Qingpu District, Shanghai, China

M| Energi & VWS Utveckling AB

Annedialsviigen 9, 22764, Lund, Sweden

Ml France SARL

52 Boulevard de Sébastopal, 75003 Paris, France

M1 Hidronik Muhendiskk (klinrlendirme Sisternleri Lid Sti

Atasehir Bulvari Ata Carsi no. 50-59. Atasehir, istanbul, Turkey

IMI Hydronic Engineering A/S

Lyskaer 9, DIK-2730, Harlev, Denmark

M| Hydmonic Engineering AS

Giynitveien 7, Ski, N-1400, Norway

M| Hydronic Engineering China Room 306, Xin Mao Buiding, No 2 Tai Zhong Nan Road, Shanghai, 200131 Filot Free Trade
Zone, China

IMI Hydronic Engineering France S.A. 13, 1ue de la Perdirix - Las Flamants 8, Paris Nord Il BP84004, Tremblay-en-France, 85831, France

IM| Hydronic Engineering FZE Office 2107 (PO Bax 262611), Jatza View 19, Jafzs, Dubai, Unitad Arab Emirates

1M Hydronic Engineering GasmbH - Industriesirasse 8, Obj. 5, 2353, Gurdramsdor, Austria

Ml Hydronic Engineering inc

8908 Governars Row, Dalas TX 75247, United States

{MI Hydronic Engineering International SA

Route de Crassier 19, Lake Gengva Business Park, 1262, Eysing, Switzertand

IMI Hydronic Engineering Limited

Unit 3 Nimbus Park, Porz Averws, Dunstable, Bedfordshire, LUS SWZ, United Kingdom

IMI Hydronic Engineering Ltda Av Fagundes Fitho, 134 ¢j 43, S. Judas, Sao Paulo, 04304-010, Brazil
IMI Hydronic Engineering OY Robert Huberin tie 7, Vantaa 1510, Finland
IMi Hydronic Engineering Pte Ltd 223 Mountbatten Road #03-01, Singapore 388008, Singapore

IMi Hydronic Engineering S.A.

9, rue des 3 Cantons, Windhof, L-8399, Luxembourg

IMI Hydronic: Engineering (Spain) SAU

Complejo Europa Empresarial, C/Rozabela, 6, Las Rozas, 28290, Madrid, Spain

IMi Hydronic Engineering s.rl.

Via dei Martinit 3 cap, 20146, Milan, Raly

IM! Hydronic Engineering UAB

AuJuozapaviciaus 27-5, Kaunes, LT - 45258, Lithuania

IMi intermnational Co Sd

28 Chiparosului Street, 2nd Floor, District 3, Bucharest, 031122, Romania

IMI Intemational d.0.0

Alpska cesta 37b, Lesce, 4248, Slovenla

IMI internationat d.o.o.

Slavonska avenija 17, Zagreb, 10040, Croatia

IMI International d.o.o. Beograd

Milutina Milankovica 1b, Nowvi Beograd, 11070, Sarbia

IMI International Kft.

Kunigunda Uitia 80, Budapest, HU-1037, Hungary

IMI international LLC

Laninskaya Street 19 b2, 115280, Moscow, Russian Federation

IMI Intarnational s.r.o.

Contral Trade Park D1, ¢.p.1573, Humpolec, 396 01, Czech Republic

IMI International Sp. z.0.0.

Qlewin 50 A, PL-32300 ., Olkusz, Poland

IMI Norgren Herion PVT Limited

A-62, Sector - 83, Noida, Uttar Pradesh 201301, India

Mt Norgren Limited

137a Slaney Closs, Dublin industrial Estate, Glasnevin, Dublin 11, ineland

IMI Norgren Pneumatics (Shanghal) Co Limited

st Floor , No 71 Building, 1066 Quinzhou North Road, Chachejing Hi-Tech Park, Shanghai,
200233, China

IMI Nargren SA (Sociedad Unipersonal)

Cafle Colon, 381, 2 Edif. Tecno, 08223, Terrassa, Spain

IMI Norgren Terracco S.L. Consell de Cent 57, 08227, Terrassa, Spain

IMI Watson Senith Limited One Snowhill, Snowhill Quesnsway, Birmingham, West Midlands, B4 8GH, United Kingcom

IMI Webber Limited City Business Park, Easton Road, Easton, Bristol, BS5 OSP. United Kingdom

Industna Mecanique Pour Les Fluides SA 15 Averue daes Cures, 85580, Andilly, France

Interativa Inddstia, Avenicia Garabed Gananian, 386 Bairro Aparecidinha, Sorocaba, S80 Paulo, 18.087-340, Brezil
Comércio e Representagbes Lida

Kyroch Swaden Holding AB ¢/o IMI Hydranic Engineering AB, 52 4B0 Ljung, Sweden

Liquick 213 Limited Pinsent Masons, 2 Cornwall Street, Birminghamn, West Midiands, B3 201, United Kingdom
Newman Hattersiey Limitad 151 Superior Bivg, Mississauga ON L5T 218, Canada

Norgren A/S Vesteriundvej 18, DK-2730, Herlev, Denmark

Norgren AS

Karihaugveien 89, Oslo, 1086, Norway
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Subsidiary undertakings

(cont’d)

Norgren BV Netherlands Transistorstraat 2, 1322, Aimere, Netherlands

Norgren Co Limited 12034 M.12, Rachedewa, Bangplee, Samutprekam, 10540, Thailand

Norgren European Logistics Company Limited 4060 Lakeside, Softn Parkway. Birmingham Business Park, Bimingharn, B37 7X2Z, United Kingdom
Norgren Finland OY Huopalahdentie 24, A-talo FI-00350 Helsinki, Finland

Norgren Ges.m.b.H Industriezantrum No Sud, Strasse 2, Wiener Neudorf, 2355, Austria

Norgren GT Development Corporation CT Corporation System, 508 Union Ave SE, Sufte 120, Olympia WA 98501, United States
MNorgren Limited &/F Benson Tower, 74 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kewloon, Hong Kong

Norgren Limited 15A Vestey Drive, Aucidand, 1080, New Zealand

Norgren Limited Blenhaim Way, Fradley Park, Lichfield, Staffordshire, WS13 88Y, United Kingdom
Norgren Ltda Av. Eng. Alberto de Zagottis, 696-B, Sao Paulo SP, Brazl

Norgren NV F Walravensstraat 84, 8.1651 Lot, Baigium

Norgren Pte. Limited 16 Tuas Street, Singapore 638453, Singapore

Norgren SAS 4 Boulevard Michael Faraciay, 77700 Serris, France

Norgren SDN BHD Level 22, Axiata Tower No 9, Jalan Sentre! 5, 50470 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

Norgren SpA Via trieste 18, Vimercate, 20871, Milan, ltaly

Norgren Sweden AB Box 14001, Ventigatan 6, S-200 24 Malmo, Swedsan

Norgren Taiwan Co Limitad 3F, No. 540 Sec. 1, Minshang N. Rd.,, Guishan Dist., Taoyuan City , 333, Tawan
Pneumatex GmbH Planiger Str 34, Halle 53, 55543, Bad Kreuznach, Germany

Quanta Dialysis Technologias Limitad (23%)

Tything Rogad, Alcester, Warwickshine, B49 8EU, United Kingdom

SAIC CCl Vahve Co Ltd (44%)

Block B, 123 Chongming Xiushan Road, Chongming County, Shanghai, China

Shanghai CCI Pawer Control Equipment Co Lt (70%)

2200 Yang Shu Pu Road, Yangpi District, Shanghai, 200080, China

Stainless Steel Fasteners Limited Broombank Road, Sheepbridge, Chesterfield, Derbyshire, S41 904, United Kingdom
STis.rl Via dai Caravaggl 15, 24040, Levats [BG), ftaly

TA Hydronics LLC str. Pymonenko 13-K, Kyiv, 04050, Likraine

TA Regulator d.o.0. Orliska Ulica13, Brezice, S1-8250, Slovenia

TH Jansen Armaturen GmbH Otto-Kaiser Str. 6, 86386, Sankt Ingbert, Garmany

Thompson Valves Limited 17 Balana Close, Craakmoor, Poole, Dorset, BH17 7EF, United Kingdom

Truflo Rona S.A. 38 avenue, 16, Parc Industrial des Hauts Sarts, 4040 Herstal, Belgium

Z & J High Temperature Equipment (Shanghai} Co Ltd

818 Yinchun Road, Minhang District, Shanghal, 201108, China

Subsidiary audit exemptions

IMI plc has issued guarantees over the abiities over the following companies at 31 December 2016 under Section 479C of Companies Act 2008 and these entilies

are exempt from the requirements of the Act ralating to the audit of individual aceounts by virtue of Section 478A of the Act:

Company name Company number Company name Company number
Commitech Limiteg 01524025 IMI Rafiners Limitad 00148305
FCX North America Limited 03430451 IM| Scotiand Limited SCaras24
Holford Estates Limited 01181408 IMI Sweaden Finance Limited 07272731
IMI Deutschland Limited 07843551 IMI Vigion Limited 04421176
IMI Euro Finance Limited 07520408 Premier Profiles Limitec 02547749
IMI Fluid Controls {(Financa) Limited 08528502 The Commtech Group Limited 03331461
iMI Germany Limited 07843578 Truflo Group Limited 04430845
IMI Lakeside One Limited 00616526 Trufio International Limitad 00164822
IM! Marston Limited 001550987 Trufio investments Limited 04430927
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Geographic distribution of employees

The fallowing table shows the geographic distribution of employees as at 31 December 2016 and is nol required 1o be audited.

United Kingdom 1,386
Continental Ewope 8,021
Americas 2,075
Asia Pacific 1,229
Rest of World 210

Totad 10,801
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Five year summary

Reported revenue £m Reported profit before tax* £m Group revenue by geography 2016
Rest of the
World
—a— s i 2 5%
g =- |
- - & E g

-~ L} - -] o ” - - -
& # i B - & & : & H
* Before axceptional items.

Income statement

202 2013 2014 015 218

fm m fm £m m

Statutory revenue 1,684 1,743 1,692 1,567 1,657
Raported revenue* 1,696 1,744 1,686 1,557 1,649
Cperating profit* 300.1 321.6 295.5 236.9 2242
Reported profit before tax* 2748 297.7 278.1 218.7 208.0
Special pension avents 10.9 - 7.0 9.1 28
Restructuring costs {18.9) {14.2) . (8.8) 27.1} {18.8)
Acquired intangible amortisation and impairment (298 21.9) (60-4) 02.2) (25.8)
Acquisition and disposal costs {6.3) {9.9) {1.8) - -
(Loss)gain on disposal of subsiciaries - - 342 {8.4) -
Financigl instruments excluding economic hedge contract gains/csses {1.0} {2.4) {2.8) 26 {1.2)
Profit before tax from continuing operations 2299 2493 245.7 162.7 165.3
EBITDA! 318 332 371 2683 263
* Before exceptional items.
t Eamings before iMterest, 1ax, depraciation, amortisation and impairment.
Group revenus by geography

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

£m £m £m £m £m

UK 101 104 98 90 75
Wastern Europe 694 €86 644 563 630
North America 308 338 318 334 M4
Emerging Markets 482 504 544 505 520
Rest of World 133 112 B2 85 80
Reported Ravenue 1,696 1,744 1,686 1,557 1,649
Reversal of net economic hedge contract losses/{gains) ) (1) 6 10 8

Statutory Revenue 1,694 1,743 1,092 1,567 1,657
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Eamings and dividends
2012 2013 2014 2015 016
Reported basic earmings per share 64.7p 72.6p 78.0p 82.2p 59.8p
Statutory basic eamings per share {continuing) 53.9p 60.4p 69.2p 44.7p 48.3p
Qrdinary dividend per share 32.5p 35.3p 37.6p 38.4p 38.7p
Balance sheet
2002 2013 2014 x5 208
(5] m &m om £m
Segmental nat assets
Continuing 906 B97 849 026 1,041
Discontinued 189 196 - - -
Other net non-operating iablities exchuding borrowings (gross) (267 " {246) {95 {100} (175)
Net debt
Continuing {180} 226 200) {2370) (283)
Discontinued (16) [F14] - - -
Net assets 684 648 554 588 583
Statistics
2012 2013 2014 2015 a6
Segmental operating profit as a parcentage of segmental revenue 17.7% 18.4% 17.5% 15.4% 13.8%
Sagmental oparating profit as a percentage of segmental net yseats 33.1% 35.9% 24.8% 25.9% 21.9%
Effective tax rate on adjusted profit before tax 24.0% 22.0% 22.0% 22.0% 1.0%
Net assats per ghare (excluding treasury and EBT shares) 214.0p 210.0p 218.4p 17.3p 26.1p
et debl as a percentage of sharehotders' funds 23.4% 34.9% 36.1% 40.2% 48.5%
Nat debt: EBITDA* 0.5 0.7 06 0.9 1.0
EBITDA®: Interest 18 21 23 15 16

* EBITDA before excaptional tems.
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Shareholder and general information

Announcement of trading results

The trading resulls for the Group for the first haif
of 2017 will be announced on 28 July 2017.
The trading results for the full year ending 31
December 2017 will be announced in early 2018.
Interim management staternents will be issued in
May and November 2017.

Dividend payments in 2017
Final: 19 May 2017
Interim: September 2017

Share prices and capital gains tax

‘The closing price of the Comparny's ordinary shares
on the London Stock Exchange on 31 December
2016 was 1,040.00p {2015: 862.00p). The market
valus of the Company's ondinary shares on

31 March 1982, as calculated for capital gaing
1ax purposes, was 53.5p per share.

The Company’s SEAQ number is 51443.

Enquiries about sharsholdings
holdings, please contact the Company's Registrar:
Equiniti (contact detals appear to the right).

Piease remember to tell Equiniti f you move house,
change bank details or if there is any other change
to your account information.

Managing your shares online

Sharehaiders can manage their holdings onfine

by registering with Shareview, the intemet basec

platformn provided by Equinitl, Registration is &

straightforward process and allows shareholders to:

« halp us to reduce print, paper and postage
cosis and the associated environmental impact
of these;

» cast your AGM vote electronically;

* raceive an email alert when imporiant shareholder
documents are available online such as Annual
Reports and Notices of General Meetings:

» access details of your individual shareholding
quicidy and securely;

+ sal up a dividend mandate online; and

= change your registered postal address or your
dividend mandate details.

To find out more information about the services

offered by Shaneview and to register, please visit

www. shareview.co.uk,

Corporate website

The IM! plc website provides a wealth of useful
information for sharaholgers and should be your
first port of call for general quenies relating to the
Compary and your shares. As well as providing share
price data and financial history, the site also provides
background information about the Company
Shareholders are also encouraged o sign up to
receive naws alerts by email in the Invastors section
of the websHe. Thess include all of the financial
news refeasas from throughaout the year that are
not sent 1o shareho!ders by post. You can access
the corporate website at www.imlplc.com.

Annual General Mesting 2017

This year's AGM will be held at the Hilton
Birmingham Metropote, National Exhibition Centre,
Birmingham, B40 1PP on Thursday 4 May 2017 at
10am. For further information, please refer to the
Notice of Meeting which is on the corporate websile.

Individual Savings Account {ISA)

IM¥'s ordinary shares can be held in an ISA.

Fer information about the ISA operated by our
Registrar, Equinti, please call the Equiniti ISA
helpting on 0345 300 0430. Linas ara open from
8.30am to 5.30pm, Monday 1o Friday, excluding
UK public holidays.

Share dealing service

Managed by Equiniti, the Company's registrar, the
IM1 plc Shara dealing service provides shareholders
with a simple way of buying and salling IMI ardinary
shares. Talephone; 0345 603 7037. Full written
details can be cbtained from Equiniti {contact
details appear to the right).

Amaerican Depository Receipts

Ml pic has an American Depositary Receipt (ADR)
programme that trades on the Over-The-Counter
{‘OTC") market in the USA, using the symbol IMIAY,
ADR enquides should be directed to Citibank
Shareholder Services, PO Box 43077, Providence,
R 02940-3077, USA. Toll-free number in the USA
is 1-877-CM-ADR (877-248-4237) and from outside
the USA is 1-781-575-4555. You can also email
citibank@sharehoiders-oniine.com,

Headquarters and registered cffice
Lakeside

Solihull Parkway

Birmingham Business Park
Birmingham

B37 7X2Z

Telephone: +44 121 717 3700

MY pic is registered in England No.714275

Reglvtrars

Equiniti

Aspact House

Spencer Road

Lancing

Waest Sussex

BN99 6DA

Telephone: 0371 384 29186 or from overseas
+i4 121 415 7047

LUines are open 8.30am to 5.30pm, Monday to
Friday (excluding UK public holidays)

Stockbrokers

JPMorgan Cazenove
Bank of America Mermil Lynch

Share fraud

Share fraud includes scams where investors are
called out of the blue and offered shares that often
tum out to bs worthlass or non-existent, or an
inflated pnce for shares they own. These calls come
from fraudsters operating in 'boller rooms' that are
mostly based abroad. Further information on how
to spot share fraud or raport a scam can be found
an our corporate website.

Auditor
Emst & Young LLP

Cautlonary statement

This Annual Report may contain forward-focking
statemants that may or may not prove accurate. For
example, statements regarding expected revenue
growth and operating margins, market trends and
our product pipeline are forward-looking staternents.
it is befieved that the expectations reflected in these
statements are reasonabie but they may be affected
by a number of risks and uncertainties that are
inharent in any forward-looking statement which
could causa actual results to differ matenally from
those curently anticipated  Any forward-looking
statement is made in good faith and based on
information availabla to IMt plc as of the date of

the preparation of this Annual Repont. All written or
oral forwarg-looking staterments attributabls to IMI
ple are qualified by this caltion. IMI plc doses not
undertake any obligation to update or revise any
forward-looking statement to reflact any change

in circumstances or in IMI plc’s expectations.
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